AGENDA
THOMAS TOWNSHIP REGULAR BOARD MEETING
8215 Shields Drive, Saginaw, MI 48609

April 12, 2021
7:00 P.M.
Dial-in number (US): (844) 855-4444
Access code: 482236#

1. Call to Order

2x Roll Call

3. Pledge of Allegiance
4. Approval of Agenda
St Consent Agenda

Approval of Board Minutes March 1, 2021.
Approval of Expenditures.
Approve the promotion of Jean Lisee from probationary to regular, part-time Public
Safety Secretary for the Fire Department.
Approve amendments to Personnel Policy #810, Dress Code Policy.
Approve amendments to Administrative Policy #700, Park Refunds.
Approve amendments to Administrative Policy #701, Park Late Fees.
Approve the revised job description for the DPW Director position.
6. Communications-Petitions-Citizen Comments

It is requested that you state your name and address for the record.
7. Public Hearing

Q@Emg awp

A. None.

8. Unfinished Business
A. None.

9, New Business

A. Approve Resoulution 21-05, the Investment/Withdrawal Authorization Resolution for

the fiscal year 2021/2022.

Approve an agreement with Spicer Engineering to survey Owen Cemetery and provide

a GIS layer for our new cemetery management software.

Approve agreement with McDonald Ford to exchange three (3) 2020 F250 trucks for

three (3) new 2021 F250 trucks for the DPW Fleet.

Approve insurance carriers for health, dental, vision and liability coverages.

Approve Text Amendment 20-G-02 amending the Thomas Township Cemetery

Ordinance.

Approve the requested re-zoning of parcel #28-12-3-23-300-002 from its current A-1

zoning to R-1 zoning.

G. Approve amendments to Administrative Policy #900, Poverty Exemption Policy and
Procedure.

H. Approve Administrative Policy #901, a new policy on tax exempt properties.

w

MY 0

o

Thomas Township will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services to any individuals with disabilities who plan to attend this public meeting.
Persons interested in such services need to contact the Thomas Township Manager's offices at 249 N. Miller Road, Saginaw, Michigan 48609, by phone at
989-781-0150, or by fax at 989-781-0290 at least five (5) working days prior to the meeting, In the case that advanced notice for accommodations is not
possible, every reasonable effort will be made to accommodate the disabled.



I Approve purchasing a ladder truck for the Fire Department from Ferrara in the amount
of $723,417.00.

J. Approve Administrative Policy #703, a new policy on Park rentals.

K.  Presentation by Rob Eggers of Spicer Group on the updated Master Plan.

L Discuss local State of Emergency as declared by Saginaw County as it relates to future
public meeting formats.

10. Reports
A. Supervisor E Community Development L. Police Dept.
B. Clerk F. DPW J. Parks & Recreation
C. Treasurer G. Finance K. Board Members
D. Manager H Fire Dept.
11. Executive Session
A. None

12.  Adjournment

Thomas Township
Board of Trustee Meeting
Citizen Comment Instructions

Any citizen may address the Thomas Township Board of Trustees at item #6, which is
the Citizen Comment Section ot the Board Meeting.

Supervisor Weise will ask if there is anyone who would like to address the Board. If
there are multiple people, he will invite you to speak when it is your turn.

You will be asked to stand and to state your name and address for the records.

You may then address your issue to the Board Members. In the interest of time, all
citizens are requested to limit their comments to three minutes.

Thomas Township will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services to any individuals with disabilities who plan to attend this public meeting,
Persons interested in such services need to contact the Thomas Township Manager's offices at 249 N. Miller Road, Saginaw, Michigan 48609, by phone at
989-781-0150, or by fax at 989-781-0290 at least five (5) working days prior to the meeting. In the case that advanced notice for accommodations is not
possible, every reasonable effort will be made to accommodate the disabled.



THOMAS TOWNSHIP
REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES
CONDUCTED VIA ELECTRONIC REMOTE ACCESS, IN ACCORDANCE WITH
MICHIGAN LAW, WILL BE IMPLEMENTED IN RESPONSE TO COVID-19 SOCIAL
DISTANCING REQUIREMENTS AND LIMITATIONS ON THE NUMBER OF
INDIVIDUALS IN A MEETING HALL

8215 Shields Drive, Saginaw, MI 48609
March 1, 2021
7:00 o’clock p.m. via teleconference

1. The Regular Board Meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. via teleconferencing by
Supervisor Weise.

2. PRESENT PYSICALLY: Weise
PRESENT VIRTUALLY: Thayer (Bay County), Sommers (Thomas Twp.), Monahan
(Thomas Twp.), DeLine (Thomas Twp.), Witt (Thomas Twp.), Brosofski (Thomas Twp.)
ABSENT: None
ALSO PHYSICALLY PRESENT: Township Manager, Russ Taylor; Deputy Clerk,
Darci Seamon and Assistant DPW Director, Trevor Schultz.
ALSO PRESENT VIRTUALLY: Finance Director, Deidre Frollo; Director of
Community Development, Dan Sika; Police Chief, Al Fong; Parks and Recreation
Director, John Corriveau; Fire Chief, Mike Cousins; DPW Director, Rick Hopper, and no
interested parties .

3. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

4, Motion was made by Brosofski, seconded by Sommers to approve the agenda as
presented.
Roll Call:
Ayes: Brosofski, Thayer, Sommers, Monahan, DeLine, Witt, Weise
Absent: None
Nays: None
Abstain: None
Motion carried.
AGENDA
THOMAS TOWNSHIP REGULAR BOARD MEETING
TO BE CONDUCTED VIA ELECTRONIC REMOTE ACCESS, IN ACCORDANCE WITH MICHIGAN LAW,

WILL BE IMPLEMENTED IN RESPONSE TO COVID-19 SOCIAL DISTANCING REQUIREMENTS AND
LIMITATIONS ON THE NUMBER OF INDIVIDUALS IN A MEETING HALL.

March 1, 2021
7:00 P.M.
Dial-in number (US): (844) 855-4444
Access code: 482236#

1. Call to Order



Thomas Township Board Meeting March 2021

Page 2 of 4
2. Roll Call
3. Pledge of Allegiance
4. Approval of Agenda
5 Consent Agenda
A. Approval of Board Minutes February 1, 2021.
B. Approval of Special Board Minutes February 8, 2021.
C. Approval of Expenditures.
6. Communications-Petitions-Citizen Comments
It is requested that you state your name and address for the record.
7. Public Hearing
A. Receive comments pertaining to the proposed 2021/2022 fiscal year budget. The property tax
millage rate proposed to be levied to support the proposed budget will be a subject of this hearing. The
Board is NOT considering any increase to the property tax millage rate.
8. Unfinished Business
A. None.
9. New Business
A. Approve Resolution 21-04, the annual Appropriations Resolution for the 2021/2022 Fiscal Year.
B. Approve the proposed amended Appropriations Resolution to balance the 2020/2021 Fiscal Year
Budget.
C. Approve Resolution 21-03, to implement the 2021/2022 Fees Resolution.
D. Accept the audit proposal from Gabridge & Co for auditing services for the 2020/21 fiscal year
with the option to extend the contract for up to three additional years.
E. Waive all time limitations and fees for temporary sign permits for businesses in Thomas Township
until December 31, 2021. This will be retroactive back to January 1, 2021.
F. Award the Madeline Street sidewalk project to Wobig Construction in the amount of $78,699.00.
G. Approve Resolution 21-01 to allocate the matching funds of $300,000.00 for the Michigan Land
and Water Conservation Fund Grant for the construction of trails, interpretive signs, seating areas
and observation decks.
H. Approve Resolution 21-02 to allocate the matching funds of $300,000.00 for the Michigan Trust
Fund Grant for the construction of trails, interpretive signs, seating areas and observation decks.
L Approve the low bid of $7,000.00 from North American Overhead Door Inc. for the replacement
of five commcrcial-grade garage door openers.
J. Approve the proposed four-year labor agreement with the Police Officer’s Association of
Michigan (POAM) from 04/01/2021-03/31/2025 contingent upon POAM members’ approval.
10. Reports
A. Supervisor E. Community Development . Police Dept.
B. Clerk F. DPW J. Parks & Recreation
C. Treasurer G. Finance K. Board Members
D. Manager H. Fire Dept.
11. Executive Session
A. None
12. Adjournment
5. It was moved by Witt, seconded by DeLine to approve the consent agenda as presented.

Roll Call:

Ayes: Weise, Brosofski, Thayer, Sommers, Monahan, DeLine, Witt

Absent: None

Nays: None

Abstain: None

Motion carried.

A. Approval of Township Board minutes from the regular meeting 2/1/2021.
B. Approval of Township Board minutes from the special meeting 2/8/2021.
C. Expenditures consisting of:

Clearing Fund $240.00
General Fund 56,416.73
Christopher Thompson Fund 3133.00
Public Safety-Fire Department 6,955.87

Fire Apparatus 0.00



Thomas Township Board Meeting March 2021

Page 3 of 4
Public Safety-Police Department 5,489.57
Public Safety-Drug Law Enforcement 0.00
Downtown Development Authority 704.47
Road Revolving Fund 0.00
Sewer Fund 131,028.97
Water Fund 223,464.08
Municipal Refuse 52,639.78
Special Flood 0.00
Tax 3,380,580.03

6. Communications-Petitions-Citizen Comments

A. None.

7. Public Hearing

A.

The public hearing pertaining to the proposed 2021/2022 fiscal year budget
including the property tax millage proposed to be levied to support the proposed
budget was opened at 7:03 p.m. and closed at 7:04 p.m. with no public comment.

8. Unfinished Business

A.

None.

9. New Business

A.

It was moved by DeLine, seconded by Brosofski to approve Resolution 21-04, the
annual Appropriations Resolution for the 2021/2022 Fiscal Year.

Roll Call:

Ayes: Witt, Weise, Brosofski, Thayer, Sommers, Monahan, DeLine

Absent: None

Nays: None

Abstain: None

Motion carried.

It was moved by Witt, seconded by Sommers to approve the proposed amended
Appropriations Resolution to balance the 2020/2021 Fiscal Year Budget.

Roll Call:

Ayes: DeLine, Witt, Weise, Brosofski, Thayer, Sommers, Monahan

Absent: None

Nays: None

Abstain: None

Motion carried.

It was moved by Monahan, seconded by Sommers to approve Resolution 21-03,
to implement the 2021/2022 Fees Resolution.

Roll Call:

Ayes: Monahan, DeLine, Witt, Weise, Brosofski, Thayer, Sommers

Absent: None

Nays: None

Abstain: None

Motion carried.

It was moved by Thayer, seconded by DeLine to accept the audit proposal from
Gagridge & Co for auditing services for the 2020/2021 fiscal year with the option
to extend the contract for up to three additional years.

Roll Call:

Ayes: Sommers, Monahan, DeLine, Witt, Weise, Brosofski, Thayer



Thomas Township Board Meeting March 2021
Page 4 of 4

10.

11.

12.

Absent: None
Nays: None
Abstain: None
Motion carried.

E. It was moved by Sommers, seconded by Witt to waive all time limitations and
fees for temporary sign permits for businesses in Thomas Township until
December 31, 2021. This will be retroactive back to January 1, 2021.
Roll Call:

Ayes: Thayer, Sommers, Monahan, DeLine, Witt, Weise, Brosofski
Absent: None

Nays: None

Abstain: None

Motion carried.

IF, It was moved by Witt, seconded by DeLine to award the Madeline Street sidewalk

project to Wobig Construction in the amount of $78,699.00.

Roll Call:

Ayes: Brosofski, Thayer, Sommers, Monahan, DeLine, Witt, Weise
Absent: None

Nays: None

Abstain: None

Motion carried.

Report of Officers and Staff:

Supervisor’s Report — None.

Clerk’s Report — None.

Treasurer’s Report — None.

Manager’s Report — None.

Receive and file the Community Development report.
Receive and file the DPW Report.

Receive and file the Finance Report.

Receive and file the Fire Department Report.
Receive and file the Police Department Report.
Receive and file the Parks and Recreation Report.
Board Member Reports —None.

ACCEOEmEUOWR

Executive Session:
A. None

It was moved by Brosofski, seconded by Monahan to adjourn the mecting at 7:29 p.m.
Roll Call;

Ayes: Weise, Brosofski, Thayer, Sommers, Monahan, DeLine, Witt

Absent: None

Nays: None

Abstain: None

Motion carried.

Edward Brosofski, Clerk

Dated



TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

o MEETING DATE: April 12, 2021
® PERSON SUBMITTING: Deidre Frollo, Fiscal Services Director
o AGENDA TOPIC: Approval of Expenditures

o EXPLANATION OF TOPIC FOR BOARD MEMBERS:
The Appropriations Act passed in March Appropriated total funds for the 2020/2021
fiscal year for operating the budgets of the various finds. Monthly the board needs to
approve the total expenditures in each fund for the month.

In addition to the fund expenditures listed in the motion, Library Fund expenditures
were $28,723.87. Township Board approval is not required for Library expenditures.
Payroll expenditures are not required to be included in this motion.

o MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING INFORMATION:
Invoice approval list by fund
Cash balances report

o POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION:
Approval/not approve expenditures

e SUGGESTED/REQUESTED MOTION:

Motion by , supported by to approve the
expenditures totaling $4,270,531.79 with individual fund totals as follows:
Clearing FUNd .........ccccormmmmiirnieenninie e 3,410.16
General FUNd......oocvviviniienie e 616,308.30
Christopher Thompson Funds...........cccoeeueveennennn.. 0.00
Public Safety - Fire Department............cceoveen.... 28,678.90
Fire Apparatus .......ccovvieiinnienneciinnin s, 1,018.86
Public Safety - Police Department ....................... 25,423.10
Public Safety - Drug Law Enforcement ................ 0.00
Downtown Development Authority............. ........ 10,073.97
Road Revolving FUuNd......ccoccveerenveereeicnessisinnee s 0.00
SeWer FUN ..o e aeeeeeesaaes 117,013.71
Water Fund ... 315,384.62
Municipal RefuSe .......ccvcvieiiieiviiieiiiiciinicsinre e 83,224.19
Special Flood ....covviiiimimiineseessssnns 0.00
TaXsuwsmsmams s v 4,270,531.79

As shown on checks #63612-63791



8TLEY Z1°LL8'E SASNIAIXHE NOILOATH 0Z0T MIHTO ZINNOD MYNIDYS SHIIAYIS TYNOISSTIOUd 000 LTIB-T6T-T0T
89.L€9 00" %7€ AENIIA/JOTHSYIAS/ SHVSAVO ATLLIT/WOOZ MNVE HIVLIS SHITAdNS 9ONILVIALO 000G 0%L-T6T-T0T
€TLES 0% " TZ SEITdANS HITAAO NOIITIOdd0D TTIIND SHAITddNS HNIIVIHAIO 000 0%L-T6T-T0T
9G9€9 9T GET NOILOETE AV¥W - LOTIVE IAINISHY VIOJMOD TNIINIYd QTOWIZTT SATTIANS ONILVIHAIO 00C 0FL-T6T-T0T
SNOILDHTH T6T 3deg

6€°068°T AATIVEISININQY-dAOYNYR ZLT 3deg 704 T=30g
89LE9 ££°96 XENLId/ECIHSYIAS/SUYSAVO TTLILIT/WOOZ MNYE FILVIS ONINIYAL 3 NOIL¥2Ndd 00C 096-ZLI-T0T
899€£9 [ 4 HOOZ /WO IDAAS /SHMOE XANLIA/NZNY MNVE HIVLS ONINIVAL ® NOILVYDNQd 00C 096-ZLT-T0T
89LE9 6£°82 AENIId/ECIHSYTAS/SIYSEYD HTLIIT/ROOZ MNVE HIVLS SNOTIILVOINNRAOD SSTTAUIM 00T 0G8B-ZLT-TO0T
899€9 6€°82 HOOZ /WOMIDAAS /SIM0T AANLIA/NZWY MNVE ALVILS SNOILYOINNWWNOD SSHATAUIM 00T 0§8-ZLT-T0T
6GLEY TT°GT SEITdANS EDOIAA0 NCIIYMOd¥0D TTIND SATTdANS SNILYIALO 000" 0%L-ZLT~T0T
ETLES EP HT SAITAANS TDIAJO0 NCIIVIOdd0d T1Ind SHEITAANS 9INIIVIAIO 000°0FL-ZLTI-TO0T
£29€9 SP-T¢C NOISIA/HITYEH O JTAIHS FNTL SSOUD 3ANTd FATT/EYSIA WEHEL LMOHS/NOISIA 00T 9TL-ZLT-T0T
£29€9 96 F0L'T NOISIA/HIIVEH O QTHAIHS ANTd SSOUD INTd HAOHVINSNI HITVAH 000°9TL-ZLT-TO0T
FATIVYLSINTHAY-¥IOYNYN z.1 3deg

E0°L6S’F HATIVISIDIAT-AYV0og 10T 3deqg x0d Te=og
T16LE9 GG 116 1207 HOYYW - SOAS TVYNOISSEAOWd 0d OFX 3 03X SNOENVITADSINW 000°9G6-T0T-T0T
LELEY SG 116 SOAS TYNOISSHAOWA 2d OdFX 3 OHX SNOENVYTTAISIN 000°956-T0T-T0T
LOLES £€6°128 09/9IW IE9QNLE/FIIION 2ITd0d/IIAVAIIAY dno¥s VIQEW FAITH SADILON TYSIT 000 006-T0T-T0T
TG9E9 007096 SADIAYAS TYDEAT IANYdd OLLO SAJIAMAS TYDAT 000°Z08-T0T-T0T
zZr9e9 00°9L TESNAOD ¥YOEVT LINHOS 3 NOSYALIVA dASYW SADIAMAS TYDAT 000°208-TO0T-T0T
£19€9 00°0T6 SADIAYAS TYDAT LANY¥E OLIO SEOIANES TYDAT 000°208-T0T-T0T
AATIVISIDAT-AYY0od 10T 3deq

9T GLL DIZE 000 3deg.x04 Te1OL
€0LEY 007021 XGHHOEY TZ0Z TI¥9dVY - aNNAEd NIZNOOW YSSITHR AJAHO¥V SEEI WYID0Md 89L°0%9-000-T0T
619€9 00706 JINITO TIYEIdNSYE TzZ0Z - ANAATT SONYY MEICNY SOINITO SHAEA WYdD0dd 99L°0¥9-000-T0T
GGLEY 00°GT TYCIMIOETE - S¥HD ¥HAO - (NAART SYEENOA SHRYL SITINMEd NOILONYLSNOD 000°005-000-T0T
G89€9 00°0T ISNIDIT SSANISAE FLVOITAnd AdVMEHL EOVSSYW NIZ ASHEDIT SSENISAHL 000°85F-000-T0T
0CZLEY 00°29¢ 1Z0Z HOWYW SLOT I8 dOOMIDCHT TTENSVEIL AINDOD MYNIDYS SE3d AWOH FTILHORW 000°6%%-000-T0T
0ZLES 00°90F 1207 HOYUYW SIOT £0Z AV SI¥M YITINSYIAYI AINNOD MYNIOIVYS SHEId FAWOH ATIEOW 000°6%F-000-T0T
6TLEY 0506 TZ0Z HOYYW SIOT T8T dOOMIDGE WHINSYEAL AINNOD MYNIDYS SEEd HWOH HTIIGOW 000°6%%-000-T0T
6TLED 0S°T10T TZ0Z HOYYW SLOT £0Z AV SIMY JMINSYINL AINNOD MYNIDVS $EEd FACH ATILGOR 000*6%F-000-T0T
029€9 0070087 META NIYINNOW ZFOP - QNOAFI NOILONMISNOD HIOVHE YL/ SHTYMEAIS-dId AINVIRNOITHI 000°€8Z2-000-T0T
Fv9€9 9.°299 P# - ROINIYd dWOD SYIM¥OM WOD SYIMMOM TYdIDINOW IW NOIIVSNEdWOD SHYIIEOoM O =Nd 0GL"TE€Z-000-T0T
8L9€9 88 928 '7ET INAWESYNGWIEY 1dd 0Z0Z ALZAYS DITANd dMI SVYROHL S¥Ed O,T3Q SANNA JAEIO OL NG 000°LTZ-000-T0T
LLYEQ LL 666°T9 INFNESYNGWIAY 1dd 0Z0¢ AJEIVS OITHNd dMI SYWOHI s¥Ed 0,TIC SANAA ¥FEIO O 30d 000°LTZ-000-T0T
BL9E9 £1°21v‘2Z6 INIWESHALGWIEY 1dd 0zZ0Z  aNQd TY¥ENID dMI SYWOHL s¥Ed O, THC $ANNI JYIAHLO OL ANd 000°LTZ-000-T0T
€L9€9 60" €09 ‘FC INIWESINGWITE Idd 0207 NAWAINOE FIId dMI SYNOHL S¥Ed O, TAC SANAA ¥YIHIO OL HNd 000°LTZ-000-T0T
£79€9 17" %0€ NOISIA/HITIVEH O QTEIHS INTd SSOMD INTH NI HITVHEH ATIVAZHOHY SINAODOY 9TL"0¥0-000-TOT
z2Z9€9 Z1° €1 , EONVMOSNI HITVEH O JTHIHS HNTd SSOWD dnTd NI JITYEH FTEYAZHOEY SINNODOY waw.owo-ooo|%oa
000 3deqg
GNNd ONIIVYAJO TYIaANAD TOT Pund

9T 0TF‘E aNnd ONIYYETID 00T Fund 104 T30l

9T 0T%’E 000 1dsg 304 TPIOL
£29€9 0G6-¢Z¢ NOISIA/HITYEE O QTAIHS HCLTH SSO¥D dINTH XV¥d~02 SNI HITVAH A¥V4dIT LTL TEZ-000-00T
£29€9 99°LG0¢E NOISIA/HITVIE O QTHIHS ICTd SSO¥O HNTL SNI-00 NOINN S€/2d OL =nNd 9TL TEZ~-000-00T
89.L€£9 007091 XANIId/ECIHSYIAS/ SUYSAYD HTILIT/HOOZ MNVE FIVLS SAOUVYHD HENOHd HTIEORW SLG TEZ-000-00T
899¢9 00°09T HOOZ /WNYIDIAS/SAMOT ATNIII/NZWNY MNYE FIVILS SHOMYHO ANOHd TTIIHOW mﬁm.ﬁmwuoooumOH
000 3daQ
aNnd ONI¥VHETD 00T pund
# 3o8yd 2UNOUY z073dTI0S9Q 90TOAUT IOPIDA 0§83 SUTT 90TOoAUT IequmpN IO

AVAS reb2g

MOHHD ¥EdYd fddAL MDHHO - dI¥d
A4z ITYNINCL

1¢0Z/TE/€0 - T2Z0Z/T0/=0 SEIVA LS04

ZIHSNMOL SYWOHL ¥0d I¥Oddd NOILNIWLSIA TO HD3IOANI

dTysumo] sewoyl :dd
dYdIdEq :ass)
Wd $E£:20 TZ0Z/G0/%0



S69€9 29°9¢9 a3 ¥ATTIN N 62Z - TII€ ALITILN 00 ZOWANF SYAWASNOD SEILITIIN 000°026-592-T0T
6L9€9 00°09 Q¥ ¥ITIIN N 6%Z - TIIE ALITILIA YILYM dML SYWOHJI SHILITILA 000°0Z6~59Z-10T
89L€9 GG ZHT XINIId/JOLHSYTAS/SUVSAYD HILIIT/HOOZ MNYE FIVIS INOHdTTHL 000°058-692-T0T
899€9 85 ¢FT WOOZ/WNYLOAdS/SAMOLS AINIIL/NZRY MNVE FLVIS ANOHATTAL 000°068-59Z-T0T
FPT9€E9 06°8TT IOIAYES INOHIETHL IAN"€2T 000°058-59Z-10T
799€9 00°G¥ ONIQATIHS INAWRNOOJ SI¥AdXE AEYHS SHOIAYES ALOVIINOD 00T 0TB-59Z-T0T
88L€9 007902 SALYAdN EZTIOMANH VYAAOYINVE dO0¥D HOFIL ¥OIJHEA SHEITAANS ONILTIEI0 000 0%L-59Z-10T
B9LEY 8z TT¥ AENIId/JOIHSYTIAS/SHYSHAYD IILLIT/HNOOZ MNVE JLVLS SHITAANS DNILVIHIO 000°0FL-S92-T0T
6GLEY ZLTE8T SHITIINS HADIAJAO0 NOIIVIOqI0D TIIND SEITAINS INILVIEIO 000" 0%¥L-59Z-T0T
ETLES ST°Z¢ SEITIANS HIIAJIO NOIIYOd¥0D TTIIND SHITAANS ONIIVIAIO 000 0%L-592-10T
TTLEY 00721 NYZHO STADYVd O0d¥d IDIJAJI0 SSEMIXHT INTIHd SAITAANS INILVIHIO 000°0%L-G9Z-T0T
899€9 6629 WOOZ /HN¥LOEAS/SAMOY AENLIIA/NZRY MNVE FIVIS SHITAdNS ONILVIHd0 000°0%L-592-T0T
$59€9 66 TT SHITAANS HDITAJIO NOIIVYOdI0D TTIIND SHITAdNS INIIVIHIO 000" 0%L-59Z-T0T
£G9€9 00°66¢ 9478 NWAY - SAITIANS FDIJAA0 O¥d FDTAI0 SSHUAXH INIHd SHITAANS DNILVYIIO0 000°0¥L-592-10T
L¥9€9 29°%0% 9078 NWAY - S®ITAdNS SNILYHEHEJO ANVAWOD ¥EdVd ANYTIAIW SHITAdNS DNIIVIEIO0 000 0%L~G9Z-T0T
SANNOYD ® HNIQTING 69z adsqg

19°€21‘s ONISSHASSY (Gz 3deq x03 Te3oOL
89L€9 00°0T0'T AINLId/JOIHSYIdS/SYYSAYD HTLIIT/HOOZ MNVE FIVLS ONINIVIL % NOILYONd™ 000 096-LSZ~10T
LOLEY LT°SEL 0€/9IN LIEDANE/EDIION OITENd/IIAVATIIY dno¥d YIQIW FAITH SAOIION TYDAT 000°006-L52-T0T
6TLEY ST €65°¢ SHOILON FONVHD LNAWNSSESSY YAINSVIANI ALNNOD MYNIOVS SIDOIA¥ES TYNOISSHIONd GO0~ LTIB-L5Z-T0T
Z0LED G BET SEDILON ONISSHESSY WALNID HIIAYEAS WOOY TIVH SHOIAYES TYNOISSHIOEd CO0°LI8-LG5Z-T0T
899€9 Sz 26 WO0Z /WN¥IDAS/ SAMOT AENIIL/NZWY MNVE FLVIS SHNQ 3 dIHSYIININ C00"¥08-LGZ-T0T
89L€9 00709 AENLIG/dOIHSYIAS/SUYSAYD HTILIT/WOOZ MNYE HIVIS SHITIANS ONILVIIJO0 000 0%L-LSZ~T0T
vZLED SG Eh SEITddNS FDIJIO HOVINVAQY SHETIVIS SHITAANS DNIIVIHAJO 000°0%L-L52-101
€79¢€9 98°8 NOISIA/HLIVEH O QTAIHS INTd SSOED HANTH HAIT/EYSIA WEEL INOHS/NOISIA 00T 9TL-LGZ-T0T
ZZ9€9 26°T HONYINSNI HITVEH O dTIIHS ENTE SSO¥D =071d HAIT/9YSIA WEHEL I¥OHS/NOISIA 00T 9TL-LSZ-T0T
£29¢€9 LT 6LY NOISIA/HITIVEH O dTAIHS FNTE SSO¥D HNTH HINVIASNI HITVIH 000°9TL~LSZ~T0T
ONISSHESSY LGz adsqg

(A TR AN LNINLEYdI] IONYNIA-YAINSYAIL £67 1deg I0d TERIOL
89L€9 00°662 AINIId/JOLHSYIAS/SUYSAYD HTILLIT/NOOZ MNVE JLVIS ONINIVILI 3 NOIIVONAH 000°096-£G2-T0T
89LES 8L LET'T AENLIA/JOIHSYTAS/SUYSHAYD ATILIT/NOOT MNYE HIVIS dIN0H IDIAA0 SAITIANS ONILVIAIO 000°S¥L-£52-T0T
89L€E9 £0°16 XINITA/JOLHSYTAS/SUVSAVD HATILIT/HOOZ MNVE HIVILS SHEITAdNS ONIIVIHAIO 000 0%L-£GZ-T0T
FGLEY 067201 IOIAMES FJOD HOILON LEMNVTIE SHOIANES ITJENAS QAATOST SHITIANS ONIIVIHIO 000 0¥L~£SZ-T0T
¥ZLED 90°6¢ SHITAANS HADTAI0 HOVINVAQY STTIVIS SEITAJNS INIIVIEI0 000" 0%L-€£GZ-TOT
899€9 8619 WOOZ /WOMIDHEAS /SAMOE XINIIA/NZWNY MNVE HIVLS SEITAdNS INILVIHIO 000" 0%L-£G2-T0T
FGo€9 67781 SdIT4dNS AIIAIAO0 NOILV¥Od¥0D TIIND SAITAdNS ONIIVIHIO 000°0%L-£GZ~T0T
$G9€9 6712 SAITAINS HIIAAO NOTIIVYOd¥0d TTIND SEITAdAS DNIIVIHIO 000 0% L-€SZ-T0T
£29€9 9112 NOISIA/HIIVEH O QTIIHS FQTI SSO¥D @NTd HIIT/EYSIA WIEL IMOHS/NOISIA 00T 9TL-£G62~T0T
2Z9€E9 9L ET IIONVINSNI HITYVEH O QIIIHS FNTE SSOMD HANTd TAIT/EYSIA WIHL JJOHS/NOISIA 00T 9TL-£62-T0T
£29€9 L6°€ZF'T NOISIA/HITIVYEH O QTIIHS HNTIE SSOED ANTd HONVINSNI HITVHH 000" 9TL-€S2-T0T
ININIYYAEA HONYNII-9FENSYINL £Gz 2dag

78 1661 M9910 6T¢ 3deg xod Teaog
899€9 00°S¢ WOOZ/RN¥IDHAAS/SAMOLE AHINIIJ/NZWY MNYE FLYIS ONINIVYEL ¥ NOILYONAd 000°096-5TZ-T0T
879€9 L0°90€‘1 SHOVd INIWETAANS IIVYI0d¥0D HA0D TYAIDINAKW HONYNIQHO d0 NOILVYIIAIAOD 00€°006-STZ-T0T
89L€9 00°GLT AINLIA/JOIHSYIAS/SUVSAVD ATILIT/HOOZ MNVE FIVLS SANG 3 JIHSYTININ 000 ¥08-GTZ-T0T
2Z9€9 L9 IONVMASNI HITYEH O JTAIHS INTI SSOND FnTdg HATT/IYSIA WEFL IMOHS/NOISIA 00T 9TL-STZ-T0T
£29€9 €0"6LY NOISIA/HITYHEH O QUTHIHS INTd SSO9D ANTH HONVIONSNI HLTYIH 000"9TL-STZ-T0T
MYETO 61z 3deg

89 LLE'Y SNOILOHETE T6T 3Idag Ioi Teaog
SNOILOWTE 16T 2dsq
GNNJ ONIIVITAA0 TYY¥HANED TQT pung
¥ o9ayd junoury uot31dTaossg 90TOAUT IOPUDA 088§ 2UTT 20Toaul IsqunN 1o

v1/2 robeg

ADHHD ¥dAd¥d WAL MOHEHD - QIv¥d

T202Z/T€/€0 - T2Z0Z/T0/E0 SHIVA I1S0d

JIZITYNINOL

dIHSNMOL SVYWOHI d0d I¥Od3d¥ NOIIAGI¥LSIA T9 HDIOANI

dTysumo], sewoyl :dgg

JIAIHA :x8sn

Wd 7€£:20 TZ0Z/S0/%0



99L€9
£ZLEY
L9LEY
FcLED
£29€9
Zz9€9
£C9¢£9

89L€9
8939¢€9
ce9¢e9
LOLES
89LE9
899¢€9
999€9
099¢€9
TG63¢€9
€T9€9
89LE9
LTLES
899¢€9
L93€E9
€29¢€9
229¢€9
€£¢3€9

S69€9

0ELES
GG9¢€9

0ELES
069€9
899¢€9
89L€E9
¢LIE9
899€9
Tv9E9
LESED
G69€9
S69€9
G69€9
S69€9
G63¢€9
S69¢€9

00°vES
GL"SST'T
6L°6
80°F9
96" 1T
€8°¢

L TYZ'T

LETTO9L

ILTAd¥Y O3 LAYVADHWOH

- dIHSNMOL SYWOHIL
MATIAEY NYT4 dIVD 686

dIHSNMOL SYHWOHL

09°¢11
00°00T
9¢LLY
87 9LT'T
IT° 1%

0T 1%
00°0€¥
00°000°C
00°0SL
00708
SE'FLC
00706
AN 24
6% L
so-ec

TP ET
8E£°066°T

8L CLE

8L72LE

967981

96796
00706

88°682'8

LNE

ZET9ET’E
89°0¢F
99 °GET
08789
007961
0889
00°¢sZ
GETLLT
ve 0¢
oe1cC
9% "0¢
¢l e
80°T¢
L6 FED

SHYITIdNS HEOIAA0
SdITddNs HOIAAO
NOISIA/HLIVIH
HONVINSNI HITYIH
NOISIA/HITVHH

"ONI 4no¥d ¥adIds
"ONI 4nC¥9 J¥ADILS
IDVYILNVAJY SHTAVLS
HOVINVAQY SHTAVLS
O QT3IIHS FNTHE §50YD INTH
O QTHIHS dNTH $SCID HNTId
C JTEIHS HNTd SSO¥Dd HITd

ININJOTIAEA ALINOWWOD TLE 3deg x0d Telog

AUNLId/dOLHSYIdS/SHYSEYD HTILIT/WO0Z
WOOZ /WNY103dS/SIMOE AANLII/NZWY

A0 WWOD - XONINOI AHHD GT0C - ¥IVdAy
OH/SIW L1390Ng/EJIION 2ITENd/LIAVAIAAY

AINILId/JOLHSYIdS,/SYYSEVD HILLIT/NOOZ
WOOZ /WNILOAJS / SHMOE AINLIA/NZRWY
HIVAdN NYTd ddLSYW dIHSNMOL SYWOHL

JIHSYHINAN TYNNNY TZ0Z

SHIIAIES TVYDHT
SHOTIAYES TYDHT

AINLId/dOLHSYIdS/SUYSAVD HILLIT/WO0Z

SINIWIIIOV MTYMHAIS

WOOZ /AN IOEAS/SEMOE XIANIIA/NZWY

SHITdINS HOIAAO
NOISIA/HLIVEH
JONVEINSNTI HLIVAH
NOISIA/HITYHH

HOIN M¥¥d HOWIL SHMVT

dd WVYHYYD M 16€ - TII9 ALITILIN

JANVE HLYLS

JINVE HIVYILS

LHTOYAHIHO JHIIVD

d10d99 YIQHW JAITRH

JNVE HLYILS

JINVE HLYILS

"ONI dN0¥9 ¥dlIgs

ONI H¥NINd MYNIDVS
LANYYE QLLO

LANYYE JLILO

JINVE HLYLS

0 A0 YALSIDIAI OO MVYNIDVS
JANYHE HIYLS

I9VINVAQY SHTIYLS

O JTIIHS 401" SSO¥D =NTd
O dTHIHS d0Td SSOdD =N1Td
O QTAIHS dNTd SSOYD ANTH

LYEdD zg8g 2dsg xod TE30L

00 ADYWENIT SYHWNZNOD

ANALANAD 9.2 —deg I0d TEIOL

¥ad/IVINZY INZNdIN0A

LITIIOL FTEYIE0d - Jd JEAIY N G6E£EC

YHILYM dMI SYAOHL
MIS ALIDS AVIMOMLYS "€°Yd

SANQO¥D ® ONIQTIING G9¢ ~dea x0d TEIOL

¥Ad/TYINTE INIAWAIN0E

1Z/€T/%0-TC/%2/€0 — §5Z6D — N¥D
WOOZ /HNILOAAS / SAMOY XANIIA/NZWY
XENLIA/JOLHSYIAS,/ SHYSAVD TTLLIT/WOOZ
NOILOHASNI HHAHSINONILIXHE FAId TYANNY
HOOZ /WAMIOAdS,/ SHMOT XANLIA/NZRY

2d71d NWAY

LINDYID dWY J¢ ¥IVddd

HONYNALNIVYW/SYIV¥dHd

04 IOILVYD 0LZ8 - TTI9 AIITILO
ad a@¥zi071 T0T - TII9 ALIITILN
09 LOTIVYD 6069 - TTIIH ALITILA
04 LOILIVED €98L - TIIF ALITILN
ID 9UTIIW 6€Z - TII9 ALITILN
Gd ¥ITIIW M 6¥¢ - TTIY ALITILN

YALYM dML SYKOHL
WALSAS SSUNISNE SAJVIH
JMNVE 3IVIS

JNVE HIVIS
SHINVdHOD LIAWNS
YMNYd HIVLS

"ONI  DI¥IDWTH AJdHET
10dH3J =KWOH

02 ZADYHENI SYIWNASNOD
00 ZDYHENT SYHWNSHOD
0D ADYIANZ STHWNEHOD
0D ADYENE SYHWNEHOD
0D ADYENT SHHWNSNOO
0D AODMENT SYIWNSNOD

SHDIAGAS TUYNOISSHAOHUd
SHOIAYES TYNOISSHIOYd
SUITddNS ONILZIHdO
SAITAANS DONILYIIIO

JATIT/9YSIA WIIL IMOHS/NOISIA
HAIT/AYSIQ WIEL IL¥OHS/NOISIA

HONVINSNI HITYHH

ONINIVAL 3 NOILV¥ONAH
DNINIVEL § NOILWDNAA
ISNAdXE FTOIHIA
SHOILON TV¥OHT

ENOILYDINNWWNOD SSHTHYIM
SENOTIVOINDWWNOD SSHTHJIM

N¥YTd YHLSVH HLYdAdN
TINLNI MYNIDVS
SUIIAYES T¥DIT
SIDIAYES TYDHT

SHITIANS IDNILYYIJO

SUITI4NS ODNILYIHJO

SHITIANS ONIILVIAIO

SHITIANS ONIIVIHJO

HJ4IT/9¥YSZA WIHI IFOHS/NOISIA
HAIT/9¥SZAd WJHI IdOHS/NOISIA

ADNYIQSNI HLTYHH

000" LT8-TZF-T0T
000" LT8-TCF-T0T
000°0%L-TCV-T0T
000°0%L-TCP-TOT
00T 9TL-TZP-TOT
00T 9TL-TZP-T0T
000°9TL-TZP-TOT

STA0D NOIIONWISNOD TZ¥ 3deq

000°096-TLE-TOT
000°096-TLE-TOT
600" 8E6-TLE-TOT
000°006-TLE-TOT
00T 0G68-TLE-TOT
00T 068-TLE-TOT
00T "LTIB-TLE-TOT
00T " P08-TLE-TOT
000°C08-TLE-TOT
000°Z08-TLE-TOT
000°0%L-TLE-TOT
000°0%L-TLE~TOT
000°07L-TLE-TOT
000°0FPL-TLE-TOT
00T "9TL-TLE-TOT
00T "9TL-TLE-TOT
000" 9TL-TLE-TOT

INIWAOTEARQ AIINAWWOD TL§¢ 3deq

SHILITILN

000°026-¢82-T0T

AOIW M¥V¥d HOEL SHEMYT I¥TID Z8¢ 3dsg

TYINGY INAWEINOR
TYINTY INIWEIN0E

TYINTE INIWNEINDE

SININIATIOY HONYNILNIVRH
SLNHNHAADY HONYNHLNIVRN

HONVNIINIVW/SHIVdET
HONYNILNIVH/ SUYIVdad
HONYNIINIVR/ SUIVdET
HDONYNELNIVR/SYIVdEd
HONYNIALNIVW/SIIVdET
SEILITILN
SHILITILA
SHILITILA
SHILITILA
SHILITILA
SHILITILO

00T 0%P6-9L2-TO0T
00T 0¥6-2L2-T0T

AJHAIANED 9.2 2dea

00T 0¥6-59¢-T0T
000°9€6-597-T01
000°9€6-592-T0T
000°0€6-592Z-T0T
000°0€6-592-10T1
000°0£6-592-T01T
000°0€6-592-10T
000°0€6-59¢~-101
000°0Z6-S9C-T0T
000°0¢6-59¢~-10T
000°0¢6-59C-T0T
000°0¢6-S92-T0T
000°026-S92-T0T
000°026-992-10T

SANNO¥S 3 SNIATING 69z 3dad

ANNA DONILVIHdO TYIHINED TOT PUng

# soeud

1Unoury

AVAS :obeg

uot3dTI0S8C SO0TO0AUT

IOpUSA

MDOHHD ¥HEdV¥d :fHE4AL MOUHD - dI¥d

1202/1€/€0

Iz ITYNENOL

- TZ0Z/TO/E0 SELYA 1SOd
JdIHSNMOL SVYAWOHI ¥04d I¥Cddd NOILAIINMLSIJ TO HOIOANI

os8@ SUTT S90TDAUT

ToqumN IO

QHQmESO_H seuoyt :4dd

q4adI14dd =xesn

Wd $€:Z0 TZ0C/S0/%0



0L €cT

dEDD0S €£€9¢. 1Adag Io0g Tea0L

€9L€9 0L €21 MdA/SMEYd ~ INIVA SRYITTIM-NIMIHAHS SHITIANS ONILVIAJO 000" 0%L-£9L-TOT
gIOD0S €£9L 3Idaqg

00°0LS SWYYD0Yd WIMS 19, 3deqg iod Teiol
89L€E9 00°0LT XINLII/dOIHSYTdS/SYYSAVD FTILIT/NOO% MNVE HIVIS SHITIANS ONILVIAIO 000" 0%L-T9L-T0T
TSLES 00°00% ILYOTATLIEAD QY¥VNSHAIT - INIWASINGWITY INITID WHHIVIH N¥DIW - SIITIINS ONILYEHELO 000 0%L-T9L-T0T
SHYI209d WIMS T9( 2adag

L6°TZL’8T OMLSNOD/NOILISINDDY ALITIOVA 9G. 3dsq 10d TEIOL
LLLES 00°G€2 YN ML SYWOHL - 44V IIN¥Ed TYOINVHOAW  QNOd TYNEANEO dMI SYHOHL IAJESHId TINIYN “dWI TYIIAVYD SLS PL6-9GL~TOT
LLLES 00°02¢T LYN - MAM NYTd TYOINVHOEW AMUNIWITEMA  aNOZ TYSENED dMI SYHOHL AAGESTId H¥AIYN “dWI TYIIAVD GLS ¥L6-9GL-T0T
99.L€9 SLT6TZ'8 NINJOTIAZA HHINID FAONLYN - dMI SYWOHL “ONI dNo¥s ¥EOI4S IAMESHId FIOAIVN “dWI TYIIAYD SLS PL6-9GL-TOT
99L€9 00°G08‘T NOIIDIISNI TYHALONILS HATL ADVIINIAH "ONI dNo¥s ¥EdIds IAYISHId FIAIYN “dWI TYIIdvVD LS PL6-9GL-T0T
T0LEY ZZ°6EB’T 0¥ ILOILVID 0999 - HEDIANHES TYOINLIDATH TONI  DIMIDWTHE AAQHT IAJASTId FTINIYN “dWI TYIIAVD GLG ¥L6-95L-T0T
999€9 00°ZLZ NOIIDAASNI TV¥NIOAYIS 9d1d AOVITUHEH "ONI 4N0¥S ¥E0Ids IAYISTId FIAIYN ~dWI TYIIAYD GLS FL6-9SL~T0T
999€9 0S-zeL'z NINJOTAATA ¥AINIAD TANIVYN - dMI SYWOHL "ONI dNo¥d ¥HEDILS JAASTId FINIYN “dWI TYIIAYD SLS FL6-9GL-TOT
999¢€9 06°L80°T NOTIDAdSNI TVENIONYIS 95QT8 FOVIIMEH "ONI dN0¥S ¥FOIds FAYASHId FIAIYN “dWI TYIIdvD GLG %L6-9GL-T0T
999¢9 00°TTS NENOTIATA MAINAD AIAIYN - dMI SYWROHL "ONI dno¥9 ¥EDIAS FAYISTId HINILYN “dHI TYIIAYD SLS FLE-9GL-TOT
819¢€9 00°006°T dSYHOUNd Q¥ HOINA - I HSYH4 SSATIAEd LMY STYTIOT SINIWIAOEAWI TYLILYD 068G ¥45-9GL-T0T
JNEISNOD/NOIIISINDOY ALITIOVA 9G. adsg

8670962 NOIIVMLSININAY zZGL 3dea@ rod TelOlL
899€9 0L TTT WOOZ /HNYIDHAS/SAMOY XINIId/NZWNY MNVE HIVLS ONINIVYL ¥ NOIIYDNQd 000°096-2SL-T0T
TTLED 00" %61 dINHOO¥E ONVTYIINOM ¥IINIM O¥d HFOIJIAO SSAHAXT INIHUd ONIHSITHENd ¥ 9ONIINI¥d 000" T06-2SL-T0T
LOLES €9°6L O0€/DIW I1A9ANF/EDIION JITHNd/IIAYAIAAY dNo¥d VYIGHIW FAITH SHOILON TYOHT 000°006-Z5L-T0T
9TLEY 00°002 OIHAVED 050T AAYESHENd YEINID FWNIYN HISNOD GNYT NISYE MYNIOVS SHOIAYES TYNOISSIIONJ 000" LT8-2SL-T0T
1G9€9 00°00T SADIANAS T¥DIT IANYY" 0LLO SHOIANES TYNOISSHIONJ 000" LT8-2GL-T0T
899€9 (00 06) HOOZ/WNY¥IDAAS /SAMOE AENLIIL/NZWY MNVE JIVIS SHENG ¥ JIHSYEININ 000" %08-ZGL-T0T
88LE9 00°902 SHLYAdN FZIDYANT VAOOVIUVL dNo¥d HOEIL ¥OILOFEA SEITAANS ONILYYHIO 000 0% L-ZGL-T0T
L9LES SL'6T SEITIINS FDIAJIO HOYINVAQY SATIVIS SHITAANS DNIIVIAIO 0007 0%L-ZGL-T0T
ZrLES £6°LE 12/92/%0-12/L2/€0 - ITT0E - WMIDOXM WILSAS SSANISNG SAAVHL SAITAdNS INILVIHIO 000" 0¥L-2GL-T0T
vZLEY 86" L¥ SAITddNS HOIAJIO HOVINYAQY STTIVIS SHEITAANS SNILVIHAO 000 0%.L-2SL-T0T
TTLEY §9°6¢Z NYNIIOH - FIVIJANYN OUd IOIJAI0 SSAYAXT INTHd SEITAdNS INILVIHIO 000" 0FL—ZSL-T0T
729€9 €6°LE T12/92/€0-12/L2/20 ~ ITIOE - VYEDOAM WALSAS SSENISNG SAQvyd SEITAANS INIIVIHIQ 000" 0%L-2GL~-T0T
£29€9 60°GT NOISIA/HIIVEH O QTIIHS HNTd SSO¥D =INTH HATT/GYSIA WEEL LHOHS/NOISIA 00T 9TL-ZGL-T0T
£29€9 26 VLS NOISIA/HIIVEH O QTAIHS ANTY SSO¥D =NTIg IONVINSNI HITYIH 000°9Ti~-2SL~T0T
NOIIWILSINIRAY zGL 2dag

EL6ER 'S ONILHSIT LEZYIS 8%p 3deQ I0§ TeIOL
LZ9€E9 S6°TTIZ'T 04 IHOIT QT 6098F - TTIIE ALITILO 02 ADYHEANT SWAWASNOD SIILITILIN 000°0Z6-8%%-T0T
L2Z9€9 BL™LZT'Y SIHOIT IdTELIS - TTII9 XIITILIO 0D XDJHANA SHAWASNOD SEILITIIN 000°0Z6=-8%%~-T0T
ONILHDIT IAAMIS 8%F 2adaqg

20" b SYTVYMHQIS Z¥y 31dsQ 104 Telog
899€9 20" k¥ WOOZ /WNMIJHdS /SHAMOE AINLIL/NZWY MNVE ALVIS SININIAOIAWI TYLIJYD 000" ¥L6-2F¥-T0T
SMTYMAAIS Zpy 3deq

L0°985°¢ $HJ0D NOILONYWISNOD Tz 3dsq x0d Teloq
929¢9 00°G68T AIS - EONIYIANOD ONI¥AS TZ0Z W A0 JINOD SIVIDILAC HJOD DNINIVEL 3 NOILIYONAH 000°096-TZ%-T0T
£89€9 [olh 474 THNd TASHIA/SYO ONI X#M TINd TASEAIA 3 SVO 00T 8E£6-TZF-TO0T
89L€9 TLTLT AINIId/JOIHSYTIAS/SYYSHAYD HILLIT/HOOZ MNVE TIVIS SNOILVJINAWWOD SSHTAIIM 00T 0S8-12ZF-T0T
899€9 ZLLT HOOZ /WOMIDHAS/SEMOT AINIIA/NZNY MNVE FIVIS SNOILYOINAWWOD SSETHYIM 00T"0S8~TCH—-T0T
SHA0D NOIIDNWISNOD Tzy adeg
ANNA SNILVEHdO TYNENID TOT pung
# osyn Junoury uoT31dTIOSSQ SOTOAUT IOPUSA 083(Q SUTT 90T0OAUT JISquNN 19

iAVAZ :abeg

ADEHD ¥HEdVd HdAL MDHHD - QIv¥d

T202/T€/€0 - T202/T0/€0 SHIVA 1504

JIZITYNINOL

dIHSNMOL S¥WOHL ¥Od Id¥0ddy NOILNEIMISIA T9 FDIOANI

dTysumo] sewoy] :gqg

dd9dIIa :xssn

Wd ¥€:20 120Z2/S0/%0



9GLEY 0Z°69 NIVIL - STVES TIO ATddNS OINY SAUMVT FONYNIINITH/ SEIVI AN 000 0€6-9LL-T0T
£GLEY PT 6ET FONYNILNI YW/ SHIVA T 1039a FWOH FONYNIINIYH/ SEIvdTd 000" 0E€6-9LL-TO0T
PrLED LT 2ve NITL OSIW/SENVNE dvad SI¥Yd OLNVY SYTWASNOD HONVNAINIYA/ SI-VdTd 000°0£6-9LL-T0T
8ELED 88°66L SYVED - NIVMLI ‘ANVAWOD TIXHOSYIH NVITIY HONYINIINIYW/ SY-vddy 000°0€6-9LL-T0T
GZLEY 00759 TYMANT - SYOLOAdSNI/NOILDEASNI NIVHL NVOZHOIW 40 FLVIS HONYNAINI YR/ S9-v¥dEd 000" 0E€6-9LL-TOT
60LED 6V C FONYNIINIYW TTOIHIA $3dVd OLOY Vd¥N FONYNAINIYH/ SOV Td 000 0E6-9LL-TOT
F69€9 88°80¢€ SIL¥VYd NIVEL JOSIW/ASYAIDEQ SI¥Yd OLNY SYHHASNOD FONYNALNI YR/ SHIvdTd 000 0£6-9LL-T0T
0L3€9 00709 TYMENTY - NOILOEASNI NIVSL NVSZHOIW 40 HIVIS FONYNALNIZH/ SHIVART 000°0E6-9LL-T0T
NIYYI 9LL 3dsa

T%°€80°9 HONYNIAINIVN 3 SNOILVVAdO 0(: 2deg x0d TP3of
0ELEY B9 LZE'T ¥aa/TYINGY  INZAd IN0H MALYM dMI SYWOHL TYINTY INARdINDHE 00T 0%6-0LL-TO0T
£89¢€9 9% "GST TANd TISHIA/SYD ONI XdM TANI TASAIA ® S¥D 00T 8€6-0LL-TOT
GBLEY 02 €V d - XAFHD Z00Z - HAONYNAINIVA FTOIHEA NI ISEAMHIMON HYIL NIIIOI ISNAIXE FTOTIHIAA 000" 8E6-0LL-TOT
LGLED ¥6 0€T HONVNIINIYA TTOIHIA SIMYd OLNY ¥A¥N A3NAIXT ATOTIHIAA 000°8£6-0LL~TOT
TELEY 00°0¢Z SMYVYd - FIIL ¥IVdAd NI ISAMHIMON A¥IL NHLLIOL I5NFdXd FTOIHAA 000°8€6-0LL-TOT
L8LEY €6 €T FONYNIINI W/ SUIVATT SEYOLS JSI FONVNIINIVH/ SYIVdET 000°0€6-0LL-TOT
89L£9 9L EGE AANII3/dOLHSYIAS,/ SHVSHAYD HTLLIT/WO0Z MNVE HLVIS FONYNAINIYW/ SIIVdTT 000 0€6-0LL-TOT
£GLEY PETELY FONYNALNI YW/ SYIVITT 10340 TWOH FONVYNIILNIVH/ SEIVdES 000" 0€6-0LL-TOT
80LEY 00° 006 TIVIL — AEdL LOD AOTAYIAS AL SMNOW FONYNIINIVH/ SEIVdTI 0007 0£6-0LL-TOT
ZLIEY SL PSP NOILJHdSNI WHHSINONILXE F4Td TYANNY SATNYAROD LIKWAS AONYNALNI YW/ SUT VTS 000 0€6-0LL-TOT
TLIEY v8°8€Z MAINAD FHOIYN — ANVS 'TTId ONI LSENd ENOLS FONYNALNIVA/ STV 000 0€£6-0LL-TOT
899€9 667851 AOOZ/WNY LIS /SAMOE AANLIA/ NZHY MNYE AIVIS FONYNILNIVA/ SIIVdTA 000 0E€E6-0LL-TOT
FBLEY 61" %€ d HIVEE - SATIIHS 6129 - TTIId AIITILN YAIYM dMI SYKOHI SHILITILN 000°0Z6-0LL-TOT
SPLED 9p-9L ay IOILVED 0999 - TII9 ALITILIN 02 Z9¥ANT SYAWASNOD SATIITILIN 000°0Z6-0LL-T0T
G69€9 19°9¢ a4 AQdaT 00F - TIIS ALITILO 00 Z99EANT SUIWOSNOD SHEILITILN 000°0Z6-0LL-TO0T
G69€9 SETLL T004 - Q¥ AQQIT 00F - TIIE ALITILO 0D X9¥9INI SYIWASNOD SEILITIIN 000°0Z6-0LL-TOT
S69€9 86°261 ad XagdT 00€ - TII9 ALITIIN 00 ZD¥ANI SYAWASNOD SETLITILD 000°026-0LL-TOT
G69€9 16°8 Q¥ I0ILIVED GE€G6 - TIIE ALITILN 0D ADYEANI SHIWNSNOD SATLITILO 000°026-0LL-T0T
G69€9 60°LL Q¥ JAATY S 00L - TIId XIITILO 0D A9¥HNI S¥EWASNOD SEILITILIN 000°026-0LL-TO0T
G69E9 9719 IS NOO¥E GGL - TII9 ALITILIN 0D Z9¥ENI SEAROSNOD SHILITILA 000°026-0LL-T0T
G69E9 ELTLEY a9 ¥ATIIN § SGF - TII9 ALITILO 0D Z9¥ANT SYAWNSNOD SATLITILO 000°0Z6-0LL-TO0T
6L9€E9 86°LT a4 I0ILIVED SEG6 - TIIE ALITIIN YHLYM dMI SYWOHL SEIIITIIN 000°0Z6-0LL-TOT
6L9€9 8% " LE Q4 AQQdI 00€ - TTII€ XIITIIN YEALYM dMI SYWOHL SEILITIION 000°0Z6-0LL-TOT
LZ9€E9 62°%6 IH9ZT ¥~ IS NOOVE SGL - TTIIE ALITILN 02 ZDYINZ SYARNSNOD SATIITIIO 000°0Z6-0LL-TOT
LZ9EY 177 09¢ IEDZT p= Q¥ AQQET 00€ - TIIE AIITILN 00 ZO¥EANT SUEWASNOD SEILITIIN 000°0Z6-0LL-TOT
LZ9€9 9e"LL a4 ¥ETIIW § €09 - TIIS AIITILIN 00 X9YENT SHARASNOD SEILITILN 000°0Z6-0LL-TOT
L29€9 05°69 ad IOILYYS 0999 - TIIF AIITIIN 0D ZDYANI SYAWNSNOD SATLITILO 000°026-0LL-TOT
89LE9 GSTLB AENIId/dOLHSYIAS/ SUYSAYD FTLLIT/HOOZ MNYE FIVIS SNOIIVOINAWNROD SSTTIUIM 00T 068-0LL-TOT
899€9 GG L8 WOOZ /WNYLOHEES/SAM0T XANLIA/NZRY MNYE AIVIS SNOTIYOINAWWOD SSHTHIIM 00T 068-0LL-T0T
89LEQ €821 XANLIA/JOLHSYTdS/SYYSAVD ATLLIT/ROOZ MNYE FIVLS ANOHdATAL 000 0G8-0LL-TOT
899¢€9 087821 WOOZ /WAMLOHZS/SEM0E AFNIIA/NZRY MNYE HIVLS ANOHAATAL 0007 058-0LL-TOT
FONYNALNIYW 3 SNOILVNEAO 0LL 23d=q

96" LS¥ AGIAHOMY 89,L 2dsQ xod T2307
TZLEY 00°99¢ SINIHS AYEHOAY STTIW ONILLINY MYNIDVS SIMIHS-I SEITddNS ONIIVIHAO 00E°0VL-89L-T0T
89LE9 v6 LT XENLII/JOLHSYTIAS,/SIYSEYD FTLLIT/WOOZ MNVE HIVIS SAITdINS ONIIVIEAO 000°0¥L-89L-T0T
899¢€9 Z9° €k WA00Z /HNYLOASS/SAMOES AANLIA/ NZHY MNVE FIVIS SEITAdNS DNIL¥IAIO 000°0PL-89L-T0T
XJIHOY 89L 2deq

G9°GTT AHEMOOH ¥ODTA/SOINITO HINOX 99. =deg Xod TEIOL
TZLEY GT°GT SIMIHS JINITO TIVALAASYL STIIN SNILIINM MYNIOVS SIMIHS-I SAITIANS ONILIWIAIO0 00E°0¥L-99L-T0T
299€9 057001 SIMIHS TZ0Z DINITD TIVHLIEMSYY STIIW DNILLIINY MYNIDVS SIMIHS~L SIITIANS ONILVIHJO 00£°07L-99L-T0T
AMMOOH ¥OOTd/SOINITO HINOA 99¢ 3deq
aNnd ONILVIHEAO TYHHANED 10T Pung
# o9Yyd AUNOUY uot3dIIossg 90ToAUT JIOPUDA CsSsg SUTT S90TIDAUL I9qUMN 9

MOEHD ¥AdYd AJAI MOEHD - AI¥d

Az ITYNINOL drysumog, sewoyg :dq

¥1/S :abeg

1202/T€/€0 - 12Z0Z/T0/€0 SHAIYA LSOd IIAIHEA ASSN
dIHSNMOL SYWOHL ¥0d I¥OdEd NOILNGIWLSII TOD ADIOANI Wd ¥E€:20 TZ0Z/S0/%0



L¥9€9 TE°GLT IDITOd 3 HYIA - SAITIAAS ONILVEEIO ANYVAROD ¥HAYd ANVIAIR HONYNAINIVH/ SSIVAET 000 0€6-000-G02Z
BE9EY 00°G% 90749 Sd - ¥AZZAd I¥ETY QHAOHHY ONI ALTI9NDES ¥ONOH HONYNIINIVW/ SHIVATS 000 0£6-000-502
S69€9 96° %09 ad IDIA 0L66 - TIIE AIITILN 0D ADYANZE SYIWASNOD SEILITILO 000°0Z6-000-502
S69¢€9 LLT£8¢E ¥0 SATIIHS GIZ8 - TIIL XIITILN 00 ADJENH SWIWASNOD SEILITILN 000°0Z6-000-502
G69€£9 8G°LIL 0¥ ¥ATTIIW N SG¢ - TTIIE ALITILA 00 ADYENE SYIWASNOD SEILITILIO 000°026-000-502
6L9€9 9g-zee Q9 ¥ETTIK N G6¢€ - TIId ALITILN MALYM dMI SYWOHI SEIIITILN 000°0Z6-000~50¢
LZ9€9 88 €z ad NHIIS 6098y - TTIIE ALITILN 0D ADYINI SYIWNSNOD SEILITILN 000°026-000-502
LOLEY 00962 0€/DIW LESANE/ADILON 2ITINd/IIAVAIIIY dN0¥s YIAEN HAITH SEOIION TYOAT 000°006-000-50¢
89L€9 0872ST X3NITd/JOIHSYTdS/SYYSAVD ATILIT/HOOZ MNVE HIVIS SNOILYDINOWHOD SSATHIIM 00T 0S8-000-50¢2
769€9 G6°9LT'T THId - IIOYQ 'SNOIIYOINNWWOD HONOWHD SNOILYOINONWHOD SSHTIMIM 00T 068-000-502
899€9 08°26T WO0Z/WNYLOAdS /SAMOS AENIIJ/NZHY MNVE FLVIS SNOIIVOINAWHOD SSHTHIIM 00T°058-000-502
89LE9 GZ'GS AHNLITd/JOTLHSYTAS/SYYSAVD HTILIT/HOOZ MNVE HLIYIS INOHJHTAL 000°058-000-50C
899€9 96°96G WOO0Z /WAMLOEdS /SAMOT AEINIId/NZWNY MNYE HIVIS INOHJHATAL 000°058-000-50¢
FT9€9 0S"BTT HOIAYAS HENOHAETHL LAN €21 000°058-000-502
629€9 00°069 SNOILYZINNWWI FIXOTANI TYNOILYINIO0 INYNIAOD SNOILYZINONWAI 00T 9€8-000-50¢
£€9€9 00°G80°T dd SYWOHL - SYIIHDIA TYIJ LI ISISSY (LT ‘ONIIVAYOXI WENGIVID SHEOIA¥IS TYNOISSEAIONd 000°LT8-000-50Z
89L€E9 €T 9¢€ ZAUNIII/JOIHSYTIAS/SYYSHAVD ATLLIT/HOOZ MNVE HIVIS SEOIAYAS dILOVIINOD 00T 0T8-000-502
EVLEY GL"8LT SSHYAQY dI WYEIISANYHED INVITASNOD NOIIVDINAWWOD SEDIAYAS TEIOVHINOD 00T°018-000-502
899€£9 69°79% HOO0Z/WAMIDHAS /SAMOT AENIId/NZWY MNVE FLVIS SEJIANES QALOVHLNOD 00T°0T8-000-502
¥99€9 06°zzZ ONIQATIHS INIWODOA SI¥3dXd dHYHS SHEOIAYAS QALOVIINOD 00T°0T8-000-502
€19€9 00°0€T SHADIANIS T¥DET LANYI" OLLO SEOIAY¥AS TYOHAT 000°208-000-502
SL9€9 00°20% ‘L d34 NOIIVMISINIWAY  aNNd TYYENID dMI SYWOHL H3J NOILVILSINIWAY 000°008-000-502
9ELEY 86" TL HYIA - SIREOAINA (AHL) TIOLS ¥VEMMMOM SWEOAINA 000°Z¥L-000-502
0TLED 00709 II - d¥0 IINYM WALLITALNO ALIIVS XINAOHJ SHEOAINN 000 Z¥L-000-502
0TLEY 00" FE A4 - SWIOJINA YIALLTAINO AITIVS XINIOHA SWJ0AINN 000" Z¥L-000-G02
259€9 08°88 Id - SIWYOAINN HAILIAING ALEAVS XINIAOHA SO IND 000°Z%L-000-502
ZS9€9 00°9¢2 HYIA - §d¥D I¥S ¥HALIIALINO XI1ZAYS XINFOHJ SWIOIINA 000°Z¥L-000-G0¢2
TE9€9 GL"S68 LSYNENAS YHIHOIA HYIA - ¥DAYE WOLSND  ONI SHDIANAS ENIT LNOEI SW¥0J INN 000°Z¥L-000-502
88LEY 007902 SHLVYAdN FZIDWANH VaANOVIdvd dN0¥9 HOFAL ¥OLDIA SEITAANS INILVIEIO 000" 0%L-000-502
89L€9 00°8% AENLIA/JOLHSYTAS/SHVSHAYD ITLLIT/WOOZ MNYE FILVIS SEAITAdNS ONILIVIHAO 000°0%L-000~-502
FZLES €2°82 SEITAINS FDOIAIO ADVINYAQY SETIVIS SHITAANS ONILTIAJO 000°0%¥L-000-502
£¥9€9 TL°9F YT - SHITAAAS DNIIVEEAO T TYIIQEW TMOOW/NOSSHMOW SHITAdNS 9NIIVIEIO 0007 0%L-000-502
£¥9€9 09T HYII - SHITAANS ONILIVYEHAQ T TYIIAEW HEOOW/NOSSTAMIW S3ITAdAS INILVIHIO 000" 0%L-000-502
6£9€9 0S°LbZ TITI -~ FAIXO TYLIA NYDIHOIW QIW 30 ASLOH SAITAANS INIIVHEIO 000°0%L-000-502
FE9€E9 08" TTT HYId ~ SHITIANS SNIIVYEEO HAINI VIO SHITAANS ONILVIHAIO 000°0%L-000-50¢
129€9 0T GhT NI - SHIMHELIVE TTIOVENd NI ‘SNOILNTIOS TYDIdINOTd SHITAdNS ONILYYHAJO 000°0%L-000-502
£29€9 61°6Z NOISIA/HITYEH O QTEIHS 3NTId SSO¥D =NTH FITT/9I¥YSIA WEAL IHOHS/NOISIA 00T 9TL~000-50C
€729€9 0e"TOoL'T NOISIA/HITYEH O dTAIHS INTD SSO¥D =NTIL HONVANSNI HITYIH 000°9TL-000-502
F79£9 2Z°L68 P# - WOINEYd dWOD SHEMMOM WOD SWENIOM TYIIDINAW IW NOILVSNAJWOD SNYWMHOM OL Fnd om».ﬂmmlooolwom
000 2deg
INIAIYYIEd F¥II~-ALAIVS DITE0d G0Z puna

0£°80€£°9T9 ANNd ONILVYEJO TVIENAD T0T PUnNd IO04 Telof

05°670°81Z LNO-¥EASNYYL G66 3dag x03 TEBIOL
6ZLEY 0S°9ZS‘0¢T HOITOd - YHASNYMI JELEYND HIP 5 Qe XIIVS DITENd dMI SYHOHL g0IT0d - ALEAVS 2ITdnd L0T 666-G66-T0T
8ZLEY 00" €ZS‘L8 HITA - YHASNVEL 9EIYVA0 HIF 3 Q¥9€ ALEIVS OITINd dMI SYWOHI HIId - ALIIVS OITdNd S0Z°666-566-T0T
LNO-YHAISNVEL G66 2deg

TZ LLO'Z NIVIL 9., 3deQ I0d Teaol
LE9EY 6% °18¢E HONVNALNI VI/ SEIVdTd 10d3d FWOH AYTILOO TYIIAYD 000°0L6-9LL-TO0T
89LES 0L LL AENLId/dOIHSYTAS/SHYSAVYD HTLLIIT/NOOZ MNYE HLVIS HONVNAINIYA/ SIIVdTT 000" 0E€E6-9LL-TOT
LSLEY 9z°1¢ FONUYNAINIVW FTOIHEA SI¥9Yd 0INY ¥d¥N FINYNAINIVH/ SHIVATY 000 0E£6-9LL-TOT
NIVEL 9.L 3deqg
aNNJ ONIIVIASO TVNENED 10T pung
4+ 0o3yD Junoury uoT3dTIOS3Q SDTOAUT IOPUSA 0§3Q SUTT SO0TOoAUT ISqUNN TH

MOFHD ¥EdvYd :HEdAL MOFEHD - dIVd
QEZITYNENOL drysumoy sewoyy :dq
T20Z/TE/E0 - TZ0Z/T0/€0 SALYA LSOd IYAIdag :assn
?1/9 :abeg dTHSNMOL SYWOHI ¥O0d I¥Oddd NOTINGINISIA TD FDIOANI Wd $€:20 120C/S0/%0



S69€9 8L E8E ¥d SUTHEIHS ST¢8 - TII9 ALITILN 03 ADGENE SYAWNNSNOD SHILITILD 000 0¢6-000-L0C
89L€9 € 8% T AENLIIA/JOTHSVYIAE/SUYSIYD TTLLIT/HOOZ MNVE FLVIS SNOILVOINOWAOD SSHTTIUIM 00T 058-000-L0¢C
899¢9 ZEBPT WOOZ/MNYIDEdS/SAMOT AUNLIG/NZWY MNYE JIVLS SNOILYOINAWAOD SSHTHEIM 00T 068-000~-L0C
FPT9€£9 0G°8TT H2IAYHES UNOHJHETEHL LIN"ECT 000°058-000-L0C
6TLEY 06 6%C TZ0C X4¥NYdidd SINIWANOIVYNY dI¥NSYIYI ALNNOD MYNIOVS SHDIAYHES dILOVIINOD 00T°0T8-000-L0C
$29¢€90 06°2¢ DNIQQHEYHS INEWO20d SLYEdXHd dHAYHS SHOIAYHAS dALOYIINOD 00T"01B-000-L0C
POLES 00°€9 dTHSYIIREN ILN0X KNOD SAYO0dASSOED NVSIHDIA SENA ¥ dIHSHAIWERW 000" %08-000-L02
TG69E9 00°0F6 SHOIAYIS IV¥DdT LANVIE OLLD SHOIAYHS T¥DIT 000°208-000-L02
£€19€9 00°006°T SHIIAYHES T¥YDET LANYYd OLLD SHADINYHS TYDHT 000°208-000-L0C
GLI9ES 00°Z0% ‘L HHd NOILVALSINIWAY aNpd TYIANED dML SYWOHL HHd NOILYILSININAY 000°008-000-L0C
9GLES 00" g€s d0IT04d - SWJIOAINN ANYIAOD WEOJINN HAN SHIOAINN 000" 2¥L-000-L0C
673€2 00°9¢ SSYYHE ¥¥TIT0D WOLSND ANYIAOD WIOAINN HAN SWIOATINN 000" C¥L-000-L0C
673€E9 00°13¢ SYTICTdXHE HIOITOd - SWIOAINN ANYAWOD WHOAINN HXN SWI0AINN 000°2¥L~-000-L0C
88LED 00°90¢ SHLYAdN FZIDYEINE YANO79¥vd dNodD HOEL ¥OLOdA SHITAdNS DNILYIAJO 000°0%L-000-L0C
49LE9 00°0¢ AENLId/dOLHSYTIS,/SIVYSAYD HAILLIT/HWO0Z ANVE JIVYLIS SHITAdNS ONILVIHEdO 000"0%L-000-L0OC
€VLES SL BLT SSHYAAY dI WYHALSANYED INYLTIASNOD NOILYOINNWWOD SHITd4NS HNILVIHJO 000" 0%L-000-L0C
PZLED £2°8¢ SHITd4NS HDIAAD dOYILNYAAY SHTAVYIS SHITIANS DNILYIHJO 000°0%L-000-L0Z
TTLEY 00°¢CtT dZIT0d - SHIT4dNS dDIAAD 0dd IFDIAAO SSHUYAXH LNIdd SHITIdNS ONILYTIHJO 000°0%L-000-L0OC
LV9ES TEGLT FOIIO4 ¥ FNIE - SHITAANS ONILYEEAD ANYAHOD 9HdVd ANVIAIH SHEITIANS DNIIVIHIO 000°0%L-000-L02
€79¢€9 SETVTIT NOISIA/HIIVAH O JTIIHS dNTId SSO¥D INTH HAIT/9YS-0 WEIL JIOHS/NOISIA 00T 9TL-000-L0C
229¢€9 80°€¢ AONVINSNI HITYEH O dTHIHS HNTd $S09D dnId HAIT/9¥S-A WMAL I¥MOHS/NOISIA 00T 2TL-000-L0C
€29¢€9 SO vPZ L NOISIA/HIIYHE O dTHIHS ANId S5S0¥0 INId HONYIOSNI HLITYHH 000°9TL-000-L0C
779€E9 GT"G¢E6 P# - WOIWINd dWOD SYAMYOM KWOD SHAMYOM TVAIDINAA IR NOIILVSNHEJIWNOD SNYRMYEOM OL d0d omh.HMNIOOOIMON
000 3d=d
HO0ITOd-ALHAYS DITHNd L0Z pund

93°8T0'T SNIYIVIdY HIIA $90¢ Pung 104 TRIOL

93°8T10°'T 000 ~deqg z0d TR3OL
6ELED 00" T0¥% SL009 HdLOID ILNFHAIN0E AYIA OTT0dY AYTLAC "INLIAYD 000°0L6-000-90C
Z59€9 93°Zpe SIMOAINA ~ INAWGINDHT FITd WALLLIALANO ALAIVS XINIOHA XV¥TLIO0 TYLIAYD 000°0L6-000-90¢2
9T9€E9 00°§Le SNIYYddVY HdId - TEJOW HOVYYOVYd OdINISIC ALEAVYS HLIVIIDDV AYTILAC TVYLIIAYD ooo.o#mlooolWON
000 3cG=d
SNLVIYddY d¥9Id 90¢ pund

06°BLS ‘8Z INTRINVIAd FITA-ALIAYS OITdNd C0Z Pund 204 T2305

06°8L9°82 000 3dsg zod 2305
LTIE9 00°0L0O’S d - SYX £ - JETAILYHEDEY SATd GQHEY TTI0%Z LHMIYH dHY AY¥TLNO TYLIGYD 000°0L6-000-G0¢
89L¢€9 86°¢9T AINLII/d0LHSY'IdS/S¥VYSEYD TTLLIT/WO0Z MNVY HLVLS ONINIVAL 3 NOILVONAA 000°096-000-S0¢
g99¢€9 86 " 0LF HOOZ /MNYLOHAcS/SAMOE AINLId/NZHY MNVE HIVYLS ONINIVAL ® NOILV¥ONAH 000°096-000-50¢
0ELES T16°08% ¥ad/IVINTd ILNIRdINOHE ¥ILYM dMIL SYWOHL TYINAY INAWdIN0H 00T 0¥6-000-50C
£B89€9 22 °0T1% TaANA TASIIA/ SV ONI XHM Tdnd THSHEIA ¥ SYD 00T°8£6-000-60¢
FOLES Sh° TP IONYNILNIYW dTOIHIA OTT HENT MOIND SATIIHS ISNIdXd JTOIHIA 000°8€6-000-50¢
089€9° 00°0GT d9Id ~ 9899(T-¢999LT SIHMDIL HSYM dV¥D DONI 913491 ASNIIXHE HTIDIHEA 000°8€6-000-G0C
063¢2 Ze 9L TZ/TZ/S0~-T1¢/T0/€0 — DAS HONVYNALNIVH ANVENOD JOLVAHTH 3ILO SLNHNIHMOVY HAONVYNHILNIVHW 000 2€6-000-502
89LE9 LY 62 AANLIA/dOLHSYIAS/ SUVYSAYD ATLLIT/WOOZ MNVE ALVLS T#SJ FONVYNILNIVW ¥ SUIVdTT 00T 0£6-000-50¢
£GLED FT ELE AONYNALNIYW/ SYIVdTd 10ddd IWOH T#Sd JONUYNHLNIYW ¥ SYIVdEY 00T "0E6-000-S0C
669E£9 00°0T¥ T4 NLIS EHId - HONYNILNIVW/SHIVdTI TONI  ¥MIY 3 ONILVHH MD T#SA HONYNHLNIVW ¥ SYIV4dEY 00T"0€6-000-502
669E9 00" L86 T# NILS THId — YATOMINOD/YHINWY] TONI  ¥IV 3 ONILVYHEH MO T#Sd IONYNALNIVW ¥ SYIV4E™ 00T "0€6-000-S0¢
ST9E9 00°00¢ T# NOILVYIS ddId - TVAOWIY IDA ONI ‘-00 MNY¥d “1I°VY T#S4d HONYNHLNIVW ¥ SYIVdEY 00T "0€6-000-S0¢C
89.LE9 9L"ET XANIIA/Jd0OLHSYTIAS,/SHYVYSAYD HTILLIT/NO0Z MNVYG HIVY.LS HONVNIILNIVH/ SEIVddEyd 000 0E6-000-S07C
899¢9 9L7ET ACOZ/MNYLDAAS/SIMOY AENLIA/ NZWY JINVYE HIVLS AONYNILNIVA/ SEIVdHd ooo.ommIOOOIMON
000 3d=d
INERIGYdEA FdIJI-ALHAVS 0ITIAd S0Z Pund
# o9y AUNOUY uoT1dTIOSDSg S0TOAUT JIOPUSA cgoQ 2UTT 90ToAUT IsqunN T9

y1/L :obed

MOUHD ¥ddv¥d :HEdAL MOHHD - dIVd

120Z/1€/€0 ~ 120Z/T0/€£0 SEAIYA 1S0d

aazITYNINor

JIHSNMOL SYWOHL ¥04d I¥0ddd NOILAIIYLSIA TO HOICANI

dtysumo], sewoyyl :gd
d4dIdd =X=sn
Wd $£:20 TZ0Z/S0/%0



TTLES 00°8%T AGVEEIT - SEITAINS EDIAA0 O¥d EDIJA0 SSTIAXHT INITHd ONIHSITENd 3 ONIINI¥d 000 T06-000-TLZ
06LE9 9Lzl SAIINAN/WNILOALS /TAT TR/ LIV NOINN IIQAYD AYIAATIM ANOHdETHL 000°0S8-000-TLZ
¥7B3€9 8Z €Th NOAIOHdS/ LSHEND AMOIS/ LIV NOINA IIQHYD FIIJIATIM ANOHJdHTHT, 000°058-000-T.C
S0LEY 007002 HIENAR *D0SSY THA/WNINTYd TMNEE TOOd OSYET TYdTIINAW NYSTHOIW SANA 3 JIHSYAIWIR 000°%08-000-T(CZ
SL9E9 00°LL9’0T HHd NOILVIISINIWAY ONDJ TVIENID dMI SYWOHI H34 NOILVYISINIWAY 000°008-000-TLZ
TVLEQ 6E€°LLZ SMO0H" TVNSIA/0IANY ONIHSITENd INOLSMOVIL $3M009 TYNSIA/0IANY 00Z°82L-000-TLZ
689€9 6T°20T SMCOE TYASIA/0IANY ONIHSITENd HANOLSMOVTILI S¥00d TYASIA/0IGNY 002°8ZL-000-TL2
689€9 06°GT SY¥00Y TVYASIA/0IQNY ONIHSITINd INOLSMOVTIL SMOOH TVNSIA/0IANY 002°8ZL-000-TLZ
67LED 9.L°021 s¥ood ONINYVIT FOVONAD/ ATV L6V6L6EL - SYO0OH 1TNAY 00T°8ZL-000-TLZ
00LEY 00°S¥E NLATH¥3S4dNS TZ0Z ATHHS FINTIFITT "0D NOSTIM MH SMOO€ I1na¥ 00T°82L-000-TLZ
869€£9 428454 $31009 DNINYVET IOVONHD/ITYD L6EET6EL - SM00d 1TNAV 00T 8CL-000-TLT
889¢€9 €5°96G6 SMOCH ITNQY/NAMATIHD MOTAVI ¥ WEyvd CTLLSLSGEO0Z - SMOOH IInav 00T°82L-000~TLZ
889€9 98°26¥% SMO08 ITNAY/NA¥ATIHD YOTAYI 3 dEMvd 9Z6LILGEDNC — SM00d SNAIATIHD 000°82L~000-TLZ
€ELES oL €2 W/ ZONVNIILNIVW/ SIIYdTI/SHITAANS FDIII0 HSVYD ALLAd AYVIHIT Il SIITAdQS HDIAJO 000°L2L-000-TLZ
TILED T LSY AYVIEIT - SAIT4ANS EDIAAC O¥d HOTAAO SSTIAXH INITHd SHITAINS HDOIJAA0 000°LeL-000-TLZ
PELES ¥6° %99 AdVI9IT - XLITIEVYSIA SEEANS WANN ALITIEYSIA 00S°2TL-000-TLC
€¢9€9 LT 0€8 NOISIA/HITIYEH O ATIIHS FNTI SSO¥D INTL HONVENSNI HITYEH 000°9TL-000-TLZ
000 3deg
aNQd AIVIEIT TLZ Pung

L6 EL0'0T A3T1a0Y3NY JuswdOTLASQ UMOIUMOQ gpz PUNI I0F TB210%

L6 ELO'OT 000 3ds@ x04 Te3IOL
0€LEY TL LY ¥Yad/TYINTY INAWRdINOHE YALYM dMI SYWOHL HONVYNALNIVH/ S3IVdad 000°0€6-000-8%¢
TH9€9 00°0TE’T O'IVS ¥IVH HEONIAY - JIVdEY IHOITIEANILS “ONI OIMIDATH XAQFT HONVYNIINIVW/SUIVdH 000°0€6-000-8%¢
TF9€9 FLTE09'T JELOd¥d NOISYIANOD IHODITIHIYIS JLOIIVHED “ONI QJIMIDYTH XQQaT TONYNILNIVW/ SEIVdTd 000 0£6-000-8%2
T79€9 98°GH9 ‘T OHLO¥d NOISYHANOD IHOITLHEILS IOIIVHD *ONI  J2I¥IDATH XAAHT HONYNHINIVN/ SEI¥dHd 000°0€6-000-8%2
T#9€9 0L799T'T DELO¥d NOISHEANOD IHOITIEFILS TOILVHED TONI  DI¥IDAETE XQ03T HONYNIINIYN/ SYIVdHT 000°0€6-000-8%2
T%9€9 99 ELT'¥ JHLO¥d NOISYIANOD LHOITIIMILS IOILVHD ‘ONI  DI¥IOATA XJAET HONYNILNIVH/ SEIVddd 000°0£6-000-8%2
G69€9 £€0¢ Q¥ LOILV¥S 0L28 - TTII9 AIITIIN 0D ADYEANT SYAWNASNOD SHILITILO 000°026-000-8%2
S69¢€9 0€°T¢C Y ¥MZINT TOT - TII9 ALITILO 03 ADYENE SYFAWASNOD SHILITILIN 000°026-000-8%2
S69€9 L?"0€E d¥ IOILVYD 6069 - TTIH XIITIIN 0D ADYENA SYTWNSNOD SAILITIIN 000°026-000-8%2
G69€9 ZT €2 a¥ IOIIV¥D €98L - TTI9 ALITIIN 0D ADYENE SYIWASNOD SHILITILA 000°0Z6-000-8%¢C
S63€9 B0 1€ LD YATIIN 6€C - TTII9 XIITIIN 00 A9¥IANE SYHWNSNOD SHILITIIN ooo.o~m|ooo-MvN
000 3deqg
Altaoyany JuswdoTsasq uUMOIUMOQ 87z pung

0T €2v ‘Gz HOITOd-ALIAVS JITLNd (L0Z Pund Iod Te10]

0T €Tv’se 000 3dsg xo0g Te30g
6L9€9 00°00B‘T ISVIAT EDVIOLS AT0D YILYM dMI SYWOHL ISVAT IOVY0LS dTOD 00Z2°0%6-000-L02
0ELED €0°€8¢€ YaqQ/TYINTd INTHIINOE YHIVM dMI SYWOHL TYINTY ILNEZWdINOI 00T 0¥6-000-L0C
£89¢€9 6E°6LE'T TENA TESHIA/SVYD ONI XdMm TdNd TISEIA ¥ SUYD 00T 8£6-000-L02
98LE9 00°€TT SHHSYM FTOIHHEA ONI €Iddl ISNIJXT HTIOIHIA 000°8£6-000-L0C
0GLED =5 24 EOITOd - ¥A¥OTdXE QH0d 6T0Z - 9IVdEd LETOYATHD YHIIVD ASNEdXH HTOIHAA 000 8€6-000-L0Z
ZTLES £9°0L TOd - ¥IY0TAXE d¥0d 6T0Z - HONYHD TIO D OIOY ® WMIL ENVT MOIND HSNEIXE HTIIHAA 000°8€6-000-L02
0B9E9 0S°%8 SHHSYM HTTIDIHAA ONI dI3¥L HISNAdXE HATOIHIA 000°8£6-000-L0¢C
ZE9EY G6°G8 EDITOd - ¥E¥OTAXE Q¥0d LT0Z ¥IVdEd LITOYAEHD ¥HGIYD HSNEdXE HTOIHIA 000°8€6-000-L0C
ZE9E9 L0 €S JITOd - YHEY0TAXE Q¥0d LT0Z - SNHD TIO LETOIATHD ¥IFIVD ASNIIXT FTOIHAA 000°8€6-000-L02
0G9¢€9 ZET9L T¢/T1E€/S0-TZ/T0/€0 — DAS TONYNIINIVA ANYdWOD ¥OIVATTA SIIO SINANITIOY FINVNHALNIVH 000°9€6-000~102
89LE9 9L ET AENLId/JOLHSYIdS/SYYSEYD FTLLIT/NOOZ MNYE "IYLS -~ HONVNHALNIVW/SHIVddd 000°0€6~000-L0C
899¢€9 9L7¢€T WOOZ /WNYIOHdS/ SHMOE AHANLIA/NZWY MNYE ALYLS HONYNILNIVRN/ SYIVdHd 000°0£6-000-L0C
8E9EY 00°G¥ 24Td Sd - ¥HZZAE IYITY QIAOWHL ONI AIIMODHAS WONOH HONYNILNIVN/SUIVddd ooo.ommnooo|mom
000 3deq
ADITOd-ALHAVS OITHAd L0Z Pung
# o9y Junoury uotadTIDSaQg 90TOAUT IOPUSA 0S8 SUTT S0T0AUT IsqunN 19

71/8 :9beg

ATEHD ¥HAYd E4AL MOEHD - dI¥d

TC0C/TE/E0 - T20Z/T0/E€0 SIIVA IS0d

QEZITYNINOL

dIHSNMOL SYKOHL ¥Od I¥Oddd NOILNAIHISIA 1D IDTIOANI

dTysumo] sewoyl :dd

ddd14dd -aIesn

WNd ¥€:20 120Z/S0/%D



S69€9 69°90T ¥d NEFES NYTIHSIH 00£6 - TTId ALITILA 0D ZDWEANE SYAWASNOD SEILITILO 000°0Z6-0%5-06G
S69€9 £€0°62Z Q9 ¥ETIIW L99T - TIId ALITILIO 0D ADWENT SMAWNSNOD SAILITILN 000°026-0%5-06G
S69€9 Z6°15 ad ¥ERIOM NYA 0%8 - TTIE AIITILQ 0D AOYANT SYAWNSNOD SHEILITILO 000°0Z6-0¥5-06G
G69¢€9 02 9LT ¥ 4EISAINCTD E GZT - TIIA ALITILA 00 ZOYENT SYEWNSNHOD SEAILITILIN 000°0Z6-0%5-066G
G69€9 £8°838T 1Y WYHYYES S $6FT - TII9 ALITILN 0D Z9YEANH SYAWASNOD SHEILITILN 000°026-075-066G
G69€9 £0°62Z a9 ¥ANYATD § GZ - TII9 ALITILO 00 ZOYANE SYAWNSHNOD SAILITILN 000°0Z6-0¥5-06G
S69€9 oL Loz CTSd# 0f WYHYEO N 68 - TII9 XIITILN 00 AOWENET SMIWASHNOD SEIIITILO 000 0Z6-0%5-06G
S69€9 VLT LIT ¥ MY¥IS @ 0¢ - TII9 AIITILAN 0D ZDYENT SYIWNSNOD SAILITILN 000°0T6-0%5-065G
G69€9 0£°05% ‘T Jd TEEAOELS 0969 - TII9 ALITILA 0D A9YANF SYIWASNOD SATIITILIN 000°026-0%5-06G
0%9€9 00°G5 TIFAOMLS 000T - TII9 ALITILA CIHSNMOL SIRYL SATLITILN 000°026-0%5-065
89.L€9 067211 XANIII/d0IHSYIAS/SUYSHTYD ATLLIT/HOOZ MNVE HIVLS SNCILVYOINIWWOD SSATHEIM 00T 0S58-0%5-06G
899€9 167211 ACOZ /WNYLOEAIS /SAMOE AENLIJ/NZWT MNVE HIVIS SNOILVOININWOD SSHETHEIM 00T 0S58-0%G~06G
89L£9 Z77 ST XENLIA/dOLHSYIdS/SUYSAYO TTLLIT/WOOZ MNVE HIVIS INOHAITIL 000 058-0%5-065
899¢€9 by BST HWOO0Z /MOYLOASS/SEMOL XAEANLIJ/ NZWY MNVE AIVIS ANOHJATAL 000 058-0%G~06¢
FT9€9 6% 81T F0IAYES INOHAATHL IAN €2T 000°068-0%5-065G
£29¢9 82T NOISIA/HITIVYEd O QTAIHS IFOTH SSOID FNTL FATT/EYSIA WEEL IHOHS/NOISIA 00T 97L-0%5-06S
z29€9 10°8 FONVENSNI HLTYEd O QTAIHS ANTH SSOMO =NTL FATT/9YSIA WIHL I¥OHS/NOISIA 00T 97L-0%5-066
€29¢€9 ST LNZ'T NOISIA/HITYEH O QIIIHS FATd SSONO 4NTd TONVINSNI HITYIH 000 97 L-0%5-06GC
ACNYNAINIYH 3 SNOILVYEd0 0vG 3deg

¥Z°0G69 10T NOIIVILSINIAQY 9£¢ 3dag I04 T=230]
LLLEY gz ez MdT - INJWISYNEWIEY LI ONAJ TYEANID dMI SYWOHL SADIATAS QALOVEINOD 00C"028-9€5-06G
099€9 0070002 JIHSYEINAN TIYONNY TZ0Z ONI F¥NINE MYNIDVS SENA % dTISYTANAN 00C " $08-9£5-066G
GLIE9 00 TEL'LG T34 NOILYSLSINIWAY  dNOJ TYEEANID dMI SYHOHI F3d NOIIVILSININAY 00C " 008-9£5-06S
89L£9 66°¢€ XENLIA/cCOLHSYTIAS/SIYSAVI ATLIIT/RO0Z MNYE HIVIS dIndd F0IAI0 SATITAINS ONILVHEELO0 00C GFL-9EG-06G
899¢9 LE"TB HOOZ /MOMIOHEAS,/SAMOd AENIIA/NZHY MNYE HIVIS JINdE EOIALC SHEITAANS DNIIVIHAO0 00C S¥L-9£5-066G
88LE9 007302 SAIYAAN FZIDYANT YANDIIVE dnO¥H HOEI ¥OLOFEA SEITAANS DNIIVAEIO0 00C " 0FL-9EG-066G
STLEY GL 88 AZINO Q-Cd ‘ONILNIYd ON - TII9 ¥ALYM Yd0d4d¥0D TNIINI¥d QTOHIHY SEITddN$ ONILVAId0 00C 0FL-9EG-06G
£G9€9 0Z°5¢L MEMIS/TEI¥M - SHITAdAS FOIAA0 O¥d HEIIAIO0 SSHIAXH INIUd SEITAdNS 9DNILIYHEA0 00C 0FL-9EG-06G
€29¢9 8T°3T NOISTIA/HLIVAH O JQTIIHS FNTd SSOUD ZNTd HATT/EYSIA WAL IMOHS3/NOISIA 00T 9-L-9€5-066G
£29¢€9 06°3TH’T NOISIA/HIIVEH O QTHIHS IOTE SSO9D HANTIH FONYINSNI HIIVIH 00C"9-L-9€5-06G
NOILVYISINIWAY 9¢£G 3ded

£€8°29¢ 00C 3dsg 103 T=23101
Fr9€9 £8°29¢ FP# - ANINENd JHOD SHEM¥OM KWOD SUTNMOM TYSIDINAW IKW NOTI¥SNAJWOD SNYRMYIOM O Ind omn.ﬁmm|ooo|Mmm
000 3dea
aNQd YEMHS 066 pung

L8 ETL 8T aNQd REYIEIT TLZ Pund I0d T230%

L8 €ZL82Z 00C 3dsg z0d 2307
CELED 00702 W/ EONYNIINIVR/ SYIvddd/SHITAINS TOIAIO HSYD ALLHEd AMYMEIT IL SNOINYTITAISIN 000 956-000-TLZ
169€9 0E€ ETH AIVIEIT - SHIJOD SSYd A9 SWILSAS SSENISNE TYEINED SIMIWNATIOY HONINIINIVA 000°9€6-000-TLZ
06LEY 8L 6TT SAUYNAN/NOELOTdS / TATTH/ IIY NOIND IIQHED FHIAATIM EONYNIINIVH/ SYI¥dES 000 0€6-000-TLT
LV LEY ST Ve AdV¥EIT - SHITAANS ONI  OOWHA HONYNIINIVH/ SIIVdTI 000" 0E6-000-TLT
£E€LEY 0z LL W/EONYNELNIV/ SHI¥dad/SAITddNS FOIAIO0 HSYD ALLEd AYVMEIT 1T HONYNIINIVA/ SIIVdTd 000 0€6-000-TLZ
9ZLEY ze Tl FIVIEIT - SOVE ¥AdYd AJAD0ED DNI SATYS ALS HONYNALNIVR/ SEIVddd 000 0£6-000-TLT
989€9 007006 AIVEEIT - ITYS 3 MOTd HONYNILNIVA NMYT 939 HONYNTLNIVR/ SEI¥dTd 000°0£6-000-TLZ
pBIED 11763 WONIOAAS/LSEND ENOLS/LIY NOINA LIATHD FITIITIM HONYNTINIVH/ SET¥d T 000 0£6-000-TLZ
0ELES 09795 ¥ SQTIIHS L0Z8 - TIIS ALITIIN MALYM dML SYKOHL SATLITILO 000" 026-000-TLZ
G69€E9 Z0" 659 ¥a SATEIHS L0Z8 - TIIS ALITILN 00 Z5YENE SHEWNSNOD SIIIITILN 000 026-000-TLCZ
S0LEY 00°90% 6 YEENIA 00SSY TWH/WAIWEEd TMNEY TOOd QSVIAT TYEIDINOW NYDIHOIW ALITIEVIT TVEINID FONVEASNI 000°0T6-000-TLZ
06LE9 €% 112 SQIYNTW/WNELIEdS/AAT TR/ ILE NOINN IIQHEED FEIIATIM DNIHSITINd ¥ DNIINI¥A ooo.Hom-ooolwﬁm
000 adaag
aNnd A9VYEIT TLZ pund
# o=yl Junoury COHMQHHOW@O S0ToAUT TIOPUSA 089 SUTT 2D0TOAUT I=aqunN TH

MOHEHD ¥HAYd dJAL MOHHD - dI¥d
ddzZITYNENOL drysumoy, sewoyyr :dgd
1202/T€/€0 - 120Z/I0/€0 SAIWA ISOd =MAIEd :issn
v1/6 :9beg JdIHSNMOL SYWOHI ¥W0d I1d0ddd NOILNGIWLSId T9 ADICANI Wd $E€:2C TC0Z/S0/%0



GZ 089101

NOIL¥MISININGY 9€¢ 3deq 1oi Teaor

Mdd - INIWISINEWITE II

dIHSYIAIWHIN TYONNY 12027

HHd NOILVALSININAY
AENLId/dOLHSYTAS/SYYSAYY FTILIT/HOOZ
ROOZ /WO LIAJS/SEMOY XANLIJ/NZNY
SHLYAdN AZIDYINT YANOVI¥vVd

ATINO Q704 ‘ONIINIMd ON - TTII9 YHLVM
YAMIS/HILYM - STITAANS FDIAIO
NOISIA/HLIIVIH

NOISIA/HLIIYIH

NIVW ¥HI¥YM SWIH/INOANA - dMI SYWOHL
ENIT 99Id SWIH INOdNd - FT3 EDVNIVIAY

P4 - WHNIWEYd dHOD SYEYIOM
00-526000-NATY :3unoooe I0J pungsx dn

NI TYIINID dMI SYNOHIL
ONI 3dNLNd MYNIOYS

aNQd TYHdINED dMI SYWOHI
ANVH HIVLS

JNVY HILIVLS

dN0¥D HOEL YOLDEA
YI0d¥0D ONIINI¥d QTOWIEM
0¥dd dDIJI0 SSTIAXHT INI¥d
O dTAIHS INT SSOID WNTIgD
O QTAIHS HNTY SSO¥D INTd

000 3deg x0Jg TE3OL

"ONI 400¥9 ¥dDIds
LYAYIXH XIYW 3 ENDVAWYHD
HOOD SYHENOM TYdIDINQW IKW
35 S\NHIATIHD SS09D X'IOH

aNQd ¥IMHAS 06§ Pung xojg Te30L

HONYNEILNIVA % SNOILVYEdO 0%S 3dsg 108 Teiog

TENA TISIIA/SYD

Mad - NIOLEY EFOEVHD 0D

Mdd - A¥HILVE d¥

HONYNIALNIVW TIJOIHIA

HONYNAINIVH ITOIHIA
HONVYNIINIVH/SYIVATY
AENLId/dOLHSYTdS/SYYSEVD ATILIT/NO0Z
Mda/sMuvd - INIVd

HAONVYNAINIVH/ SEIVdRd

Mdd - SEIIILLYYE AZT

HONVYNILNIVW/ SYIVdEd

@9 JUINVIATO N

Mdd - SHEITAINS TONYNILNIVNW

Mdd - YOSSTIIWOD HIV JFFT1adnd
HOOZ/WNYLOEdS/ SEMOE AINLIA/NZWNY
Mdd - SHEITIANS ONILVIFIO
AONYNIAINIVH/ SHYIVdET

Mdd - SEITIANS TONYNIINIVR

LD YETTIN 16Z - TIIE ALITILIN

J¥ SVYWOHI N 00Z¢€ - TIId AIITIIN
09 SVYWOHL N 0€£S% ~ TIIE AIITIIO
QY ¥EATY N €2€¢ - TTII9 AIITIIN
IS ENITHQVYA 89LL - TIIE ALITILIN
0¥ ¥EATY N 8267 - TTII€E ALITIIN
Q¥ ¥EATE N ¥P6E€ ~ TTIE ALITILIN
Q¥ ¥ENYATD N GO0ST - TTId ALITIIN
LINA Q¥ ¥aNVATO N GOST - TII9 ALITIIN
¥d SATIAIHS G128 - TTIIE ALITILA

ONI XHEM
dINdE 3 EMV¥L OIATIINIIOS
dIndd ¥ FMYIE DIAIINIIOS

SIMYd OLNVY Yd¥N

OTT HENT MOINd SATHIHS
SHYOLS DOSL

ANYH HIVLS
SHYITIIM-NIMIIHS

LOdEd HIWOH

08¢ - SNTd SHIYILIVE
SHYOLS 2SiL

MdS ALIDS AYIMOMIYS -"€°4
ANTYA 3 H4Id NYDIHOIRW
FO0gINTIYSN

JNVI UIVILS

ANYARNOD ¥ddYd ANYIAIW
LOdHEd FWOH

NHEIYISIA ALAIVS FLIVINDIDVY
dIIYM dML SYWOHL

00 XDYANT SYHWASNOD

0D ADYINA SYHAWNNSNOD

0D ADYANA SYHAWNSNOD

00 ADYHENH SYEWAOSNOD

0D ZOYHNH SYHWNSNOD

00 ADYANT SYHWOSNOD

0D ADYANT SYEWOSNOD

00 ADYENH SYAWASNOD

0D ADYMHANA SYHWASNOD

SEIDIAGHS JdILOVILINOD

SdNd ® JdIHSHIEWNHN

34 NOILVILSINIWNAY

dIN0d ADIIA0 SHITAANS ONIIVEEIO
dIN0F FDIAIO SAITIANS OHNIIVEFAIO
SHITAdNS ONILYIIJO0

SEITddNS ONIIVYIIO

SHITIdNS DNIIVIIdO

HATT/9YSIQ WIEL IMOHS/NOISIA
JONVINSNI HITYVEH

XT EHLYM SWIH 1SO0d3d YIHOLSND
Xd ¥ALYM SWIH LSOd3d WIAWOLSND
NOIIVSNAJIWNOD SNYIINMOM OL INd

HALYM-TO

TINA TISHIA 3 SYD
ASNIIXHE HTIDIHIA
HSNHIXH HTOIHIA
ASNIIXH HTOIHIA
HASNHIXE HTOIHHA

AONYNIINIVR/ SIIVITd
HONVNALNIVH/ S9IvVdayd
JONVNELNIYH/ S9IvdaT
TONYNIINIVHN/ SIIVdHS
AONYNILNIVYH/ S9IVdad
AONVNALNIVH/ SIIVddd
FONYNIINIVK/ SYIVdET
AINYNIINIVYW/ SYIVdTT
AINVYNALINIVW/ SYIVddd
HAONYNIINIVH/ SYIVddd
AINYNILNIVN/ S9I¥ddd
FONYNELNIVN/ SYIVdHYT
AONYNHILNIVH/ S9Ivddd
SHILITILN
SHILITILN
SHILITILN
SHILITILN
SHILITIIN
SATILITILIN
SHILITILN
SHILITILN
SHILITILA
SYILITIIN

000" 0T8-9E£G-T6G
000 ¥08-9€6-166G
000" 008-9£5-T6S
000 G¥L-9E£5-T66G
000 S¥L-9ES-T6G
000 0%L~-9ES-T6S
000" 0FL-9ES-T6S
000 0¥L-9£5-T6G
00T 9TL-9EG-T66G
000°9TL-9€G-16G
NOIIVYISINIWAY 9€G 2daq

0ET"5S2-000-T6S
0E€ET"G5Z2-000-165

0SL TEZ-000-T66
000°202-000-T65

000 3deg

aNQd ¥IILVM T6S5 pung

00T 8€6-0%S-069
000°8€£6-07S-06G
000°8E6-07S-06G
000°8€6-0¥S-069
000" 8€6-0%¥5-066
000°0E6-0%S-06G
000°0€6-075-06G
000°0€6-0%S-06G
000°0€6-0%5-069
000°0€6-0%5-06S
000°0€6-0%¥5-06S
000°0€6-075-06G
000°0€6-0%5-06S
000°0€6-0%75-06S
000°0€6-0%7S-06S
000°0£6-0¥5-06G
000 0€6-075-06G
000°0€6-0¥S-06G
000°026-0%S-065
0007026-0%S-065
000°026~0%S-065
000°026-0%S-069
000°026-0¥5-068
000°026-0¥G-06G
000°026-0%S-06S
000°0C26-07S-06G
000°026-0%5-06C
000°026-0%7S-06S

HONYNHULNIVHN 3 SNOILVYEAO 0FS 3deq

aNOA ¥HFMAS 066 pung

LLLEY ql 22
099¢9 00°000‘¢
GLI9EY 00°TEL L6
89L€9 00" ¥
899€9 LE'TSB
88LEQ 00°30¢
STLEY SL 86
£€G69¢9 0Z° QL
£€29¢€9 8T°GT
€29€9 0G6°9Tv ‘T
66 T9T'¥
993¢€9 007966
G29¢€9 €6°0T18°¢
FF9E9 L6°92¢€
9€3€E9 60°89
TLET0'LTT
¥9 00T ‘ST
£€89¢€9 7S LED
ZCLEY (0L"62)
ZCLES LETFOT
60LED LL"PE
£99¢€9 SP TS
L8LES L6°2¢
89LE9 19°6¢c
€9LE9 PyTITT
€G6LED LZ"TFS
0FLES 28789
ZELES 987LS
FTILES 00700672
90LES 00006
289¢£9 g€ 09L
899€9 ¥2°0¢
L79E9 8% "GE
LESES 667 LTV
9T9€E9 00" 2c€
Q0ELED 08" LL
S69€£9 96°GE9Q
G69€8 28°00T
G69E2 £€0°6¢C
G69€9 S6°G6E
G69£9 £€°8%
G69¢€9 FE"E9
969€9 0b"¢c
G69€9 96°G6T'T
G69€E9 99°G6LG
# AO9YD  3Junoury
P1/0T :obeg

uoT3dTIOSS 2DTOAUT

TopusA

MAOEHD ¥HEdVd HJAL MOHEHD - dIvVd

T¢0¢/1€/€0 - 120Z/T0/€0 SAILVA ISOd

AdZITYNIAOL

0S9g dUTT DOTOAUT

dIHSNMOL SYWOHIL ¥0d IMOdTY NOIINEINISIA 19 HADIOANT

I2qUNN ID

drtysumol sewoyy :gq
dIAIEq :I988
Wd $€:20 120Z/50/%0



aNDd XYL €0L pung

6T "%2z'c8 aNnNd FSNATI TYAIDINAW 96G PUNd 104 TeIOL

6T°FzZ‘€c8 000 3deg 703 T®I0J
9t9¢€9 ZT'1L6°GS SHOIAYIS HISYM QITOS X¥YANYL. OHINY TISVM NYDIHOIW QIW ZOVELINOD ASnAFd 000°808-000-96G
GL9EY 00°0€CLZ g3d NOIZVYISINIWGY  aNAd TYHENID dMI SYWOHL HEd NOILVEISININAY 000°008-000-965
pFIED L0"€z 4 - WOINFId JWOD STMIEOM WOD SIHEMNOM TYAIDINAW IW NOTIVSNEIdWOD SNYWXIOM O HNd 0GL TEZ-000-965G
000 3daqg
aNnd ESNAAI IVAIDINAW 96§ pung

29°FBE'GTE aNnd ¥EIYM 16§ Pund Iod Te3lol

8£°2L5'602 HONYNASNIYW 3 SNOILYYAdO 0pS 3dsg Iod [Baog
LS9€9 S6°60T°¢C ¥ 90 N GLGZ - DAS ¥HIVM DNOT TIVISNI NILVYAYOXYE SHEHIOYE HAHOY SNOILJANNOD QHLOVEILNOD 000 6£6-0%5-T65
£69€9 PG LEQ TdNd TASATIA/SYD ONI XdM Tand TASIAIT 3 SO 00T 8E£6-0%G-16G
ZILES (0L°62) Mdd - N¥ALFEY HOWVHD F90D JINDE 3 FNVYE DIAIINIIOS HSNHAAXT FTIDIHIA 000" 8£6-0¥S-16G
2ZLEY 8E°%0T Mdd - X¥ALIVE dF dINDE 3 IMVYIE DIJAIINIIOS HSNAJIXA ATOIHIA 000" 8€6-076-T66G
60LEY 8L VE HONYNALNIVA ITOIHIA SI¥Vd OILOVY YdYN TSNIIXA ATOIHIA 000 8E£6-0F5-T65G
€99¢£9 S¥°1S HONYNILNIVA TTOIHIA D11 FEAT ¥0IND SATIIHS ESNIIXA ATOIHIA 000 BE6-0%S-T65S
LB9EI 60°LTZ IYINTTHD/LINA DAS ONILSOH TIW NOOVHH *ONI YELEW ¥Eodvd SININIAEOVY HONYNIALNIVH 000°9€6-07G~T65S
S9LE9 OF"6EF‘CT Ld ONZ 9Y¥INTTAD NOI¥O ¥IHAVE O°TTT ‘MEALIR DTS INAWIOVIdHT HALAW WHLYM 00€°0£6-0%S-1665
G99€9 L0"82L'E MIAATADSNYEL TTIGON W *2°I°T ‘NIALEW OIS INANAOVIATY JIIIN JHELYM 00€£°0£6-0F5-T65
68LED 00°GTzZ HLATANDD WSINVHOEW NIOD INNOWHSNTA ONTYALIVANNYR NONJAA AONYNIINIVH/ SAIVAET 000°0£6-0¥S-T6G
LBLEY L6722 FONYNALNIYW/ SII VI T STIOLS OSI HONYNHAINIVH/ SOIVadTd 000°0£6-0¥S-T165
89LE9 757622 K3INLIA/dOIHSYTAS/SYYSIVD ETLLIT/NOOZ MNYE HLYLS AONYNALNIVA/ SUIvdTT 000 0€6-0%5-T65
£9LE9 PEOTITT Mda/sWa¥d - INIVd SRYITIIM-NIMIFHS AONYNALNIVH/ SIIVd T 000°0£6-055-T6G
€GLES LZ71%9 IONYNALNIVH/ SUTIYITA 10dEd JWOH AONYNILNIVH/ SITVATT 000°0€6-0¥S-165
0vLES £8°99 Mdd - SHATEALLVE AZT 08f - 3014 SEIWIALIVL FONYNILNIVH/ SEI¥dTd 0097 0£6-0%G~-T6G
ZELES L8°LS FONVNALNIVYA/ SYIVddd STMOLS DSI HONYNIINIVA/ STV 000°0€£6-0¥S-166G
899¢€9 $9°0C WOOJZ/MNMIDEAS/SAMOE XANILIA/NZWY MNYE HLYLS TONYNKILNIVA/ SEIVdT 002°0€6-0%5-16G
LV9ES BF"GE Mdd - SEITAANS ONILYHEEAO ANVAWOD ¥A4Yd ANYIGINW HONYNIINIVA/ SEIvdad D02 0E6-0%G-T6G
SH9EG 00°€€T mdd - SEITAANS FINYNIINIVRH AATIA 3 FdId NYOIHOIW AONYNILNIVA/ SIIVdHTT 002°0€£6-0¥G-T6G
Lg9gS 66°LTH AONYNILNIVH/ SUI VAT 10d3d THOH AONYNILNIVH/ SIIVdTd 0037 0€6-0%5-166G
8z9¢€¢ 00°088°¢ HONVTI /IATYA - Q9 FDIQ JYIVdad O°T1 T ‘ONILVAVYIXE ¥HJ00D AONYNALNIV/ SYIVAHT 002" 0£6-0%5-16G
£69€¢ €7 9%L’G8 HAY LOIIVED £0L9 - EIYSN MYNIOYS 40 ALID ALID FAJAS OL SSANIQVAA 00T L26-0%G-T6G
£69€C $9°262°c6 HAY I0IIVYD €0L9 - AIYSN MYNISYS A0 ALID NMALYM ONISYHOYNd 000" LZ6-0%G-T65S
0ELES T8°LL LD ¥FTIIW 162 - TTI€ ALITIILN JALYM dMI SYWOHIL SAILITILN 000°026-0%5-166G
G69€¢ €0°62 A FISSYMYEIVYLISIL S9%6 — TTIE ALITILA 00 XODJENZE S¥IWASNOD SHILITILO 002°0Z6-0%5-T6S
G69€C 99°6LG ¥l SQTIAIHS GTZ8 — TIId ALITILN 02 X59EANT SUARASNOD SEILITILO 003°026-0%G-T66G
G69€C GB €LY a3 WYHYYND N £L9TT - TII9 ALIIILN 0D ADJEANT SYIWASNOD SHILITILN 000°026-0%S-16G
L29€% €0°6¢C a4 SIAATD JSEZT - TIIE ALITILN 0D X9JEANT SYEWASNOD SHILITILN 000°0Z6-0%G-T66
89L€C 16" 21T AENIIA/AOIHSYTdE/SIYSTAYD FTLIIT/AOOZ MNVE HIVIS SNOILYOINNWAOD SSATTIIM 00T 058-0%G-16G
899¢€¢ 167211 WODZ /WNYI0AAS/SAMOE AANLIA/ NZWY MNVE FALYLS SNOILYJINAWAOD SSITIEIM 00T 0SB8-0%S-T6G
89LES 6G°9¢ AANIId/A0IHSYTAS/SUYSAVD ATLLIIT/ACOZ MNVE JIVIS ANOHEETHEL 000 068-0%G-T6G
899€¢ 06°9¢ WOD2%/WNYS0AdS /SaMOd ZINIIA/ NZWY MNYE HIVIS ANOHETTAL 000°0S58-0%S-T16G
pI9Eg 65" 8TT AOIA¥AS ANOHAATIL IEN €T 009°068-0%G-16G
0LLES 00° 0S¢ T1Z02/01/Z0 - ONITAWYS HQST NYDIHOIW 40 AIVIS SHADIAMAS TYNCISSHIONA 003°LTI8-0%G-T6G
SELES G8°2 T34 INEWAYd FILVT sdn SHOIAMAS TYNOISSHAOMA 002" LT8-0%5~T6G
T89S IS LY anyoId 9¥d sdn SADIANAS TYNOISSHIOEd 000" LT8-0%G-T6G
£29€¢ F8°CT NOISIA/HLIVAH O QTAIAS ANTI SSO¥O INTH HITT/EYSIC WI3L I9DOHS/NOISIA 00T 9TL-0%G-T6G
229¢€¢ T0°8 AONVYNASNI HITYEH O QTAIIS FNTd $SO¥D dNTd HATT/AYSIA WEAL L¥OHS/NOISIA 00T 9TL-0¥S-T6G
£z79¢e¢ GT"L0Z'T NOISIA/HLIVAH O QTIAIHAS HINTd $SO¥D INTL AONVIASNI HITVAH 000 9TL-0%S-T6G

FONVNHAINIVN 3 SNOIIYSHdO 0FS 3dad

aNQd ¥HLYM T6§ pPUung

# ceud  Junouwy

uoT3dTIOSSg SOTOAUT

JIOLUSA

MOHHD ¥HEAVYd fHdAL XDHHD -~ aIvd

0S3Q SDUTT S90T0AUT

TaqumN TD

AazZITYNENOL drysumo], sewoy] :dd
T202/TE/€0 - T2Z0Z/T0O/£0 SALYA 1SOd IddIdd :assn

PT/TT :obea JIHSNMOIL SYWOHIL ¥0d Id0ddd NCILAGIMISIA T9 FDIOANI Wd $E:Z0 TZ0Z/S0/¥0



TLLED ZE62B709 Id - TZ2/20/€0-T2/LT/20 - SINAWAYd XVI ¥MISIA TOOHDS XHITIVA NYMS ONIIVYEdO ATTIVA NVYMS OI dInd 0€T"S2Z-000-€0L
ZSLEY 06°LT9'E Id - T2/20/€0~T12/LT/20 - SINAWAYA XYI IDTMISIA TOOHOS MOOTIWAH ANQd ONIMNIS MOOTWHH €80°522-000~-€0L
GEIEY P9 B8TLE9T NOTLOETIOD X¥I SIAI 020Z LOIYLSIA TOOHDS MOOTWIH IAI STOOHDS MOOTWHH Ol =0d 280°G22-000-£0L
ZGLES FETOTT WL Id - T2/20/€0-12/L1/20 - SINIWAVd XYL IDIMLSTIA TOOHDS MIOTWHH LEHA TOOHDS MOOTWAH OL dnNd T180°622-000~-€0L
ZGLES 6T LFF 9 Id - 12/20/€0-12/LT1/20 - SINHWAYd XV LIOTIYISIA TOOHIS MOOTWHH LYYHEd0 STOOHOS MOOTWHH OL 3N 080°S2Z-000-€0L
8¥LEY GZ 6LE'T Id - 12/20/€0-12/L1/20 - SINEWAYd XYI IOIYISIA TOOHDS ANYTIZTHA NIMNIS TOOHOS ANVYTIAHEYI OI HNd 2L0°S2Z-000-€0L
8vLEY L8°0T6°C Id TZ/20/€0-12/L1/20 - SINIWAYA XYL IDINISIO TOOHDS ANVIZTNA L9930 TOOHOS ANVTIIXYA O =Ng TLO"SZZ-000-€0L
8V LEY PT 6TE Id - T2/20/€0-12/LT/20 — SINAWAYA XVI LOIYISIA TOOHDS ANVIATMI IY4Ad0 TOOHDS ANVIEHYA OL End 0L0°S22-000-€0L
T9LES 9T 10L’L 14 12/20/€0-12/L1/20 - SININAYA XYL HIINSYHEIL ALNNOD MYNIOVS LES ALNNOD MYNIDVYS OL AN 00% " 222-000-E0L
09L€9 ¥b 2506 TUNTA - SNIVEQ ¥MHOSYEIL AINNOD MYNIOYVS - WWOD NIVMA 0D MYNIOVS OI E0d 00€°222-000-£0L
09LE9 £€S°LLT ALTHOHINY MNVE QNVT 0207 YHEINSVAYL AINAOD MYNIOVS MNNVE ANYI AINAOD MUYNIOVS OI HOQ 0GZ°222-000-£0L
g59€9 TLLL8'FST SHXYL YILNIM 0Z0Z - SIAI HRIASYIYL ALNNOD MYNIOVS LA SYHIL OO MUNIDVS Ol And 00T"22z-000-£0L
09LE9 L87958°0L T4 T2/20/€0-12/L1/20 - SINAWAYA XVI FHINSYIIL ALNNOD MYNIOVYS ANSYIIL ALNNOD MYNIDVS OL dNA 000°222-000-€0L
09L€9 29°GL0’9 T4 12/20/€0-12/LT/20 - SINIWAYd XVI dIINSYEEL ALNONOD MYNIODYS dASYHEIL AILNNOD MYNISVS OL =N 000°222-000-€0L
Z8LEY 02 2Z¥5‘s AT09 AATIVA NUYMS NOA ONIATOATY JMI SYWOHL LNI IV¥ISE Q709 XATIVA NYMS 220 LTZ-000-£0L
ZBLES 0Z°LEO‘ST dT0D AFTIVA NVMS NNOJI ONIATOATY dMI SYWOHL NI¥d SHIVLSH XHATIVA NUYMS TZ0°LTZ~000-€0L
Z8LES BZ°GGT‘2Z SHLYLSHE dOOMAYYH NOd ONIATOARY dMI SYWOHL LSTIAINI SHIYLSE GOOMAYVH 020°LTZ-000~-€0L
Z8LEY L6°000°0T SALYLST QOOMQYYH NOJA ONIATOAHTY dMI SYWOHL ATJIONINd SHIVISHT JOOMAMYH 6T0°LTZ-000-£0¢L
Z8LE9 B9 TL9‘C SHLYLST IANA NDA DINTIATOARY dMI SYWOHIL ISEMALNI SHLVILSH HFANA 8T0°LTZ~-000-£0L
Z8LEQ 08°8F6°9T SHLYLST 3ANd NOI ONIATOATY dMI SYWOHI TYJIDNINd SALVLISH HA0d LTO LTZ-000-€0L
£8LE9 €0°GL6 YHEMAS - ¥d M9VIS YAMES IMI SYWOHL ISHYIINI AVOM MIVYIS 9T0°LTZ-000-£0L
€8LE9 0T €068 YAMES - 90 MUVIS ¥AMAS dML SYWOHI TYJIONI¥d AVY0d MHMVYLS STO0"LTIZ-000-£0L
SLLEY S¥ 252’81 NOILOETIOD XYL $10¢ TV¥A ISVL SUAd ¥ad dML SYWOHI 0Id¥D XAINNOD MYNIOVYS vad OF And GZG 9T1Z-000~€0L
SLLEY 79 16C‘GT SEXVIL ALYHd09d TYNOSHIJ ¥Qd dML SYWOHI vdd dMl SYWOHIL OL 3ng 006°9T12~000~-E0L
SLLE9 £S°%06'09 SUXVL AL¥IJI0Td TYEA ¥ad dMI SYWOHIL ¥dd dML SYWOHI OL 3Nd 005°9TZ-000-€0L
LLLEY AR SHEA NIWAY MNVd ANVYTI ANQd TYIENED dMI SYWOHL 4 NOILVILSINIWAY TINID Ol 3INd 067 "912-000-€0L
LLLEY PO 8I0‘LTT NOILOZETTIOOD XYL Hdd NIWAY  ONAA TYIENID dMI SYWOHL 33 NOIIVMISINIWAY TINI9 Ol And 0SF°"2T1Z2-000-€0L
LLLEY 8619006 NOILOHTTIOD XVl d3d NIWAY ONDA TYIENED dMI SYWOHL 44 NOIIVILSINIWAY TINID O dNd 0S% "9TZ-000-E0L
LZLED 6L %ZEZT NOIIJHTTIOD X¥I SIHA NIWAY SIAT ON0A TYEANAD dMI SYWOHL Hd NOILVILSINIWAY TINID Ol INd 057 "9TZ-000-€0L
LLLEY 06°09Z°0L SIHOITIHAILS aNNd TYYENTD dMI SYWOHL SIHDIT LATYEIS TYIANAD OI dI0d 00€°9TZ-000-€0L
FLIEY Z8°0€G°1¢ NOILOJETTIOD XVI SLAI 0202 aNnd TYHANTD dMI SYWOHL LAT TVYENED dMI SYWOHL OI dInd 06Z°9T12-000-€0L
LLLES 89°6%Z‘1H SHXVYI XI1Y¥¥d0dd TYNOSYAd aNQd TYEENTD dMI SYWOHL TYYENTD dMI SYWOHL 0L 3NG 00Z°912-000-£0L
LLLES B0°GSLO‘0ZE SHXYL ALYAA0Ed TYH ONOA TYEHENID dMI SYWOHL TYIENID dMI SYWOHILI OL FNd 00Z°91Z2-000-£0L
V8LED L6 FIZ'T gaIvm 0,130 YALYM dMI SYWOHL JIYM INIINONITAQ-NYALYM OI INd 165°GST1Z-000-€0L
LLLEY [ TARSARE SQEEM  ANOJ TYEENAS dML SYWOHI HIM O,THA ANOJ TYIEANTD OL Fad TLE STZ-000-E£0L
LLLEY 66°00%°G NOILDATTIOO X¥I ¥¥¥d HOIL aNnd TYYENAD dMI SYWOHL HONYNIINIVW M9V¥d HOEL OL INd €8Z°GTZ-000-€0L
LLLEY 00°6L8°€E NOILOATTIOD XVl ¥dv¥d HOIL aNnd TYEHENTD dML SYROHL ONLIHOIT ¥M¥¥d HOAL OL And Z8Z°STZ-000-€0L
8L9€9 LZ 0VF 'SP NOILOATTIOO XYL SIAI 0202 ALAAYS DITHINd dMI SYWOHL III "DITOd/Sd Ol 3Nd LTZ"STZ-000-€0L
€L9ES 26°25€°8 NOILDITIOO XVI SIAI 0202 NIWAINODE FYId dMI SYWOHL LAT SNIVI¥YddY d4Id OL dNd 91Z°STC-000-€0L
LL9ES 99°€8€°12 NOILOATTIOO XYL SIJAI 020Z ALIAVYS 2ITHNd dMI SYWOHL LAT INIWNIYMVdIA AJTd/Sd dANd STZ°STZ-000-€0L
08LEY G8°9%¥ ‘665 SEXVL ALMEJOEd TYNOSYHd AIHAVS JITdONd dMI SYWOHL HDIT0d/Sd 0L 3Ind LOZ STC~000-€0L
08LES 2GS SFE‘08S SHXYL AIYHdO¥d TVEM ALdAYS DJITdNd dMI SYWOHL #2ITO4d/Sd 0L INd LOZ STZ-000-€0L
9LLEY PSTLZ6'0T SEXYL ALYII0Yd TYNOSH¥Ed NIAWIINOE FNIA dMI SYWOHI SALYYYdAY F¥Id OL 3INd 90Z°STZ-000-£0L
9LLEY 66°6G59°90T SHXVI AL9EA0Md TVEY NIAWGINOE F9Id dMI SYWOHL SOLYYYddY FYId OL =N 90Z°GTZ-000-£0L
6LLEY 66°¥L6°LT SHUXVL ALYEd0Ed TYNOSYAd ALEAVS DITINd dAMI SYWOHJI INIWLEVAEd FITA/Sd OL F0A G0Z°STZ-000-€0L
6LLEY LLTE0TELT SHXYIL ALHEIOMd TVHY XALFAVS DITdNd dMI SYWOHL INZWIMYdEd TMIA/Sd OL 3NA G0Z GTZ-000-€0L
9L9€S 8T TOL'FT NOILJHTITIOD X¥I SILAI 0202 XIvdadIT dML SYWOHL LdT AIVILIT dMI SYWOHI O dANd 0GT"STZ-000-€0L
8LLES 76 Z€T 6T SHXVI ALYEdOMd TYNOSYAJ AYYYEIT dML SYWOHL ZdVEEIT dML SYWOHI O E0d 00T°GT1Z-000-£0L
BLLE? T8 LEL'LBT SHXVI AIYHEdONd TVdI AYVAEIT dML SYWOHL AYVIIIT dMI SYWOHIL O dnd 00T "GTZ-000-€E0L
T8L€E9 00°S8LELY NOIIDJATIOD XWdL ASNAET dML SYWOHL ASOdHEd TYdIDINAW OL H|Nd 000 STZ-000-E0L
FLOES 00" FET SHSNEDOIT 900 0202 aNnd TYIEANED dML SYWOHL HSNIDIT 904 (dSD) HSVD 00% "200-000-€0L
6G9¢9 00°6LY SESNADIT 904 0Z0Z JAYNSYIYL XLNNOD MYNIOVS ISNIDIT H0Q (€8D) HSVD oow.moolooolwo>
000 3deqg
aNQJI XYL €0, pung
# osyD 1Unouy uoT1dTIOSSQ SDTOAUT JIOPUSA 0§83 SUTT S90T0AUT I9quInN 19
) MOHHD ¥HdV¥d ‘H4AL MOHHD - 4IvVd
AdZITYNINOL drysumo] sewoy] :gd
T202/1€/€0 - TZOZT/T0/€0 SAIVA 1504 F¥QIda :assn
v1/2T :obeg dTHSNMOL SYWOHI ¥0d I¥Oddd NOILNEIMISIA TD EDIOANI Wd %€:Z0 120Z/G0/%0



6L°TES'0LZ Y

6L TES'0LZ ¥

aNnd XYL €0L pund r104 TE30]

000 3deg zoa Te3lof

TLLED €0°82 ALTYOHIAY NNVE ONVT NYDOIHOIW d0 HIVIS 9 ANYT NYDIHIDW J0 HIVYLS O ANd 062°9€Z-000-€0L

6938€9 65°656°559 SIXYL 0202 YHLMNIM - SILAT N¥YDIHDOIW 40 dIVLS ILJI IW 40 HIVLS OL dNd 00T 9€Z-000-€E0L

Z9LEY €0°2ZLT 0% Id - TZ/20/€0-12/LT/20 — SINEWAVYd XV1L dsI MYNIDYS dd TYIDEdS/dSI MYNISVYS OL HOd 000°9€2-000-€0L

0€9€9 LS 052789 NOILDETTIOD XV¥i SLATI 0202 ADETTOD ¥ITdd LAT HOFTIOD YITHA OL dNd 00T "S€Z-000-€£0L

9V LED TE°18G°9¢ Id - TZ/20/E€0-12/LT/20 - SLMEWAYd X¥dL ADETTOD YITdd ADETTIOD VYITHd O dNA 000°SEZ-000-€0L

T99¢€9 62 €LZ'8¢E NOILJHTTIOD XYL SidI 0Z0¢ dsI MVYHIODYS LAT dSI MYNIDVYS OL HNd 00T " ¥EC-000-£0L

€LLEY TO"E66°TT Id - 1Z2/20/€0-12/LT/20 - SINHEWAVA XV¥I ¥{ISIA TOOHIS AHTIVA NVYMS dNNI ONIMNIS TOOHOS XATIVA NYMS CET"SZ2-000-£0L

cLLED T0°696°GS Zd - TZ/T0/E0-TC/LT/20 — SINIWAYA XYL HYISIA TOOHIS ATTIVYA NVYMS 193d AHTTIYA NYMS OL d0d ﬁMH.mNNIOOOIMOP

000 3d=ad

ONDd X¥1I £€0L PUng

¥ 3osyD Jjunouy ucTl1dTIOSS SDOTOAUT IOPUSA 089 SUTT S90TOCAUT IoqunN TS
JDHEHD ¥Ed¥d :fHEJAL MDHHD - dIvd

ddzZITENENOL drysumo] sewoyy :g9d

1Z0Z/1£/€0 - 120Z/T0/£0 SHIVA LS04 IIAIZQ :I8Sn

PT/€T :obeg dIHSNMOL SVWOHI d04d Id0ddyd NOILAII™NISIA TOD HDIOANI Wd #€:20 TZ20C/S0/%0



L7 T6L66%'S

ispung TTV 704 Teieg

6L TES0LE F aNnd XYl £0. pung
61" %zz‘c8 A¥9 TY4IDINOW 96G pung
29 %BE'GTE aNNA ¥IIVM T6S pung
TL ETO'LTT aNnNd 9EIMAS 065 Pung
L8 €2L B aNOd X¥V¥dIT TLZ pung
L6 ELOOT SASQ umolumMmog gyz pung
0T €2%'GZ ALIIVS DIT9Nd L0Z pung
9B°8T0‘T NIVYVddY MTd 902 pung
06°BL9 8¢ ALAIYS JITHNd G0C Pung
0E"80£‘9T9 Y¥EJ0 TYHENED TOT pung
9T 0TH‘E aNNd SNIYYATD 00T Pung
isTelol pung
# 3o9yn Junoury uoT1dTIOSSQ SDTOAUT IOPUDA 0se(Q SUTT 8D0TI0AUT IsqunN TH
JOHHD ¥EdV¥d ddXAL MOHEHD - qIvd
AAZTTYNINOL drysumogl sewoyyl :gd
T20C/TE/€0 - 12Z0Z/T0/€0 SHAILVYA 1S0d T9qIEa :ISsn

PI/%T :obeg

dIHSNMOL SVWOHI ¥O4 I¥0d3Y NOIINGIYLISIA TD FIDIOANI WNd PE€-20 TZ0Z/S0/%0



04/05/2021 10:09 AM CASIl SUMMARY DY ACCOUNT FOR THOMAS TOWNSHIP Page: 1/2
UsStin DETDRE , FROM 03/31/2020 TO 03/31/2021
DB: Thomas Township
FUND: ALL FUNDS
CASH AND INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS
Beginning knding

Fund Balance Total Total Balance
Account Description 03/31/2020 Debits Credits 03/31/2021
Fund 100 CLEARING FUND
001.000 59 11,200.25 30,670,735.55 30,668,470.78 13,465.02
Fund 101 GENERAL OPERATING FUND
002.000 CASH THE STATE BANK 1,103,758.05 3,749,636.87 3,194,516.56 1,658,878.36
002.010 THE STATE BANK SAVINGS 1,013,139.56 602,747.90 477,757.55 1,138,129.91
002.350 CASH CHASE BANK 10,776.61 14.54 3.19 10,787.96
002.385 CASH CHEMICAL BANK 1,138,880.01 2,407,547.87 2,275,737.77 1,270,690.11
003.175 Certificate of Deposit Chemic 250,000.00 1,379,521.19 1,379,521.19 250,000.00
003.375 CHERTIFICATE OF DEPOSITS HUNTINGT 750,000.00 250,000.00 250,000.00 750,000.00
003.400 CERTIFICATE OF DEP CHASE BANK 234,486.37 243,873.67 478,360.04 0.00

GENFRAT, OPERATTNG FUND 4,501,040.60 8,633,342.04 h_é,055,§96a30 5,078,486.34
Hentalitts CHRESHGRHEREEON DS Gipuiihtinin EEND
002.000 CASH THE STATE BANK 1.00 129,039.00 129,040.00 0.00
002.010 THE STATE BANK SAVINGS 146,429.17 1,123.23 142,536.17 5,016.23

CHRISTOPHER THOMPSON FAMILY FUND 146,430.17 130,162.23 271,576.17 5,016.23
Fund 205 PUBLIC SAFETY-FIRE DEPARTMENT
002.000 CASH THE STATE BANK 744,777.44 738,931.24 511,012.07 972,696.61
Fund 206 FIRE APPARATUS
002,000 CASH THE STATE BANK 857,696.13 161,903.31 21,058.45 998,540.99
Fund 207 PUBLIC SAFETY-POLICE
002.000 CASH THE STATE BANK 1,291,460.76 1,181,785.48 989,839.40 1,183,4006.84
Fund 246 ROAD REVOLVING FUND
002.000 CASH THE STATE BANK 256,875.60 682,975.95 629,499.29 310,352.26
003.175 Certificate of Deposit Chemic 610,966.47 629,499.29 610,966.47 629,499.29

ROAD REVOLVING FUND 867,842.07 1,312,475.24 1,240,465.76 939,851.55
und 240 Downtown Development Authority
002.000 CASH THE STATE BANK 83,190.47 120,650.32 93,241.25 110,599.51
Fund 265 P.S. DRUG LAW ENFORCEMENT
002.000 CASH THE STATE BANK 6,103.,34 87.00 8.70 6,181.64
Fund 271 LIBRARY FUND
002.000 CASH THE STATE BANK 480,450.35 310,172.91 394,002.85 396,620.41
003.271 CD LIBRARY 08/2016 .50 205,340.00 0.00 0.00 205,340.00

LIBRARY FUND 685,790.35 310,172.91 394,002.85 601,960.41
Fund 590 SEWER FUND
002.000 CASH THE STATE BANK 898, 060.30 1,472,242.72 1,322,356.13 1,047,946.89
002.010 THE STATE BANK SAVINGS 506,569.77 4,284.41 1,263.30 509,590.88
002.200 RESERVED CASH SYSTEM EXPANSIO 106,068.65 44,730.00 0.00 150,798.65
002.385 CASH CHEMICAL BANK 1,984,644.58 513,267.12 3,448.14 2,494,463.56
002.386 CHEMICAL BANK SYSTEM EXPANSIO 117,933.00 0.00 0.00 117,933.00
003.175 Certificate of Deposit Chemic 463,667.01 0.00 463,667.01 0.00

SEWER FUND 4,076,943.31 2,034,524.25 1,790,734.58 4,320,732.98
Fund 591 WATER FUND
001.100 CLEARING CASH 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00
002.000 CASH THE STATE BANK 976,814.86 3,712,678.24 3,998,902.98 690,590.12
002.010 THE STATE BANK SAVINGS 3,284.89 3,940.55 6,468.97 756.47
002.200 RESERVED CASH SYSTEM EXPANSIO 81,343.99 30,625.00 0.00 111,968.99
002.375 CASH HUNTINGTON BANK 246,568.30 385.22 131.39 246,822.13
002.385 CASH CHEMICAL BANK 1,329,619.92 10,060.88 2,617.02 1,337,063.78
002.386 CHEMICAL BANK SYSTEM EXPANSIO 266,176.00 0.00 0.00 266,176.00
002.387 CHEMICAL BANK BUSINESS CHECKING 506,234.47 2,055.79 722.27 507,567.99
002.390 CASH FIRST STATE BANK 245,996.98 324.38 116.94 246,204.42



04/05/2021 10:09 AM
Uscr: DEIDRE
DB: Thomas Township

CASH SUMMARY BY ACCOUNT FOR THOMAS TOWNSHIP

FROM 03/31/2020 TO 03/31/2021

FUND: ALL FUNDS

CASH AND INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS

Page: 2/2

Beginning Ending
Fund Balance Total Total Balance
Account Description 03/31/2020 Debits Credits 03/31/2021
003.375 CHERTIFICATE OF DEPOSITS HUNTINGT 250,000.00 0.00 0.00 250,000.00
WATER FUND 3,908,039.41 3,760,070.06 4,008,959.57 3,659,149.90
Fund 596 MUNICIPAL REFUSE FUND
002.000 CASH THE STATE BANK 605,773.23 3,406,678.32 3,320,648.66 691,802.89
002.385 CASH CHEMICAL BANK 305,492.60 101,920.83 300,500.89 106,912.54
MUNICIPAL REFUSE FUND 911,265.83 3,508,599.15 3,621,149.55 798,715.43
Fund 610 CONSTRUCTION WATER/SEWER/MISC
002.000 CASH THE STATE BANK 25,178.20 0.00 25,178.20 0.00
Fund 703 TAX FUND
002.000 CASH THE STATE BANK 0.00 19,349,257.52 19,349,256.89 0.63
TOTAL - ALL FUNDS 18,116,958.33 71,912,696.30 71,040,850.52 18,988,804.11






DEPARTMENT

I

TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: April 12,2021

SUBMITTED BY: Chief, Mike Cousins

AGENDA TOPIC: Fire Secretary Jean Lisee Promotion from probationary to
regular part time employee.

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: The fire department secretary, Jean Lisee has
served her six-month probation time. During this time Jean has proven herself to
be an excellent employee and extremely professional. She has received a very
positive evaluation. She performs her job very well and is an excellent addition to
our office staff. Her promotion has been brought to the Personnel Committee for
approval.

MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING INFORMATION: None

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve, Deny, Amend or Table.

SUGGESTED/REQUESTED MOTION: Motion by

supported by to promote public safety
administrative assistant Jean Lisee from probation status to regular part time
status.

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED? No




i . LI 1" . (Rl B B, PE T
.l.l u = L | u I*I. -.II-L Ili-“ u

: d1° =TT, Ly e
. N .

j_ o



« 400

MEETING DATE: April 12, 2021

TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

PERSON SUBMITTING: Deidre Frollo, Fiscal Services Director
Russ Taylor, Township Manager

AGENDA TOPIC: Approve amendments to Personnel Policy #810, Dress
Code Policy.

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC FOR BOARD MEMBERS: The Personnel Policy #810, Dress
Code Policy was last evaluated and amended in April of 2003. As the acceptable dress
code in the office environment has evolved into more casual attire we felt it was time to
update the policy to bring it more in line with the current trends. The policy was
reviewed by Deidre Frollo, Sarah Dorr, Sherri Simerson, and the Township Manager.
Each of us submitted thoughts and suggestions that we felt should be either changed or
incorporated into the policy. The new policy does relax the dress code a bit however we
feel it is in line with the office attire that is currently being worn in the Thomas
Township office and other office environments. The policy has been submitted to and
approved by the Policy Committee

MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING INFORMATION: Draft of Personnel Policy #810
Dress Code Policy

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve/not approve amendments to Personnel Policy
#810, Dress Code Policy.

SUGGESTED/REQUESTED MOTION: Motion by supported by

to accept the amendments to Personnel Policy #810, Dress Code

Policy as presented.



Dress Code-Policy No. 810

Page 1 0of 3
THOMAS TOWNSHIP

Policy No.: 810 (page 1 of 2)
Effective Date: February 3, 1997
Reviewed on: October 2, 2000
Amended on: April 7, 2003
Amended on April 5, 2021
Policy Regarding: Dress Code

N
o5

g

y

R VS =AY

full time and regularly scheduled part-time employees who work in jobs wherc they routine
interact with and service residents of the Township.

The purpose of this policy is to provide guidance and direction regarding appropriate dress

p—

Township Manager

With very few exceptions, where discretion is to be used, the Township Manger is expected to
dress in a professional manner at all times. A male manager would be expected to dress in a
business-suit-or-sport-coat dress shirt with dress slacks er-dress-slacks-with-a-sweater-or-vest,
Pressshi ‘e-reguired. a tie is optional. 4 suit or sport coat should be worn when
appropriate. A female manager would be expected to dress in an appropriate suit-dress, dress
slacks, skirt or dress, sweater or vest with dress slacks or skirt.

Uniformed Emplovees

Uniforius will be provided by the Township for permanent employees in designated job
classifications (police, fire, DPW). Uniforms must be worn on the job at all times unless specific
authorization to wear something other than the required uniform has been granted by the
department head and/or Township Manager. Safety clothing will be issued as needed depending
on the work assignment. Uniforms should not be worn elsewhere afier regular working hours.

Non-Uniformed Employees

The image that we portray to our community and to one another is very important. Therefore,
employees who are not required to wear specific uniforms are expected to dress in a manner
consistent with regular business operations.

Males:

¢ All male employees shall wear dress casual staeks-pants/khaki, long or short sleeve dress
shirts, 3 button knit polo shirts, sweaters, vests or jackets. A tie is not required. Denim
staek : i tate-attire-Jeans may be worn when approved by the
Township Manager. Dress shoes or boots should be worn. Sneakers are not permitted.
Foot wear should be clean and in good repair.




Dress Code-Policy No. 810
Page 2 of 3

Females:

Smce there are more clothmg options available for women, the following are acceptable skirted

* Nicely fitted tops, blouses and sweaters, tops should never be tight or revealing. Denim
Jjackets are permitted as long as they are in good repair without holes and are worn with
appropriate attire underneath. Sleeveless tops are not deemed appropriate.

® Business casual dress slacks or skirts are permitted. Jeans may be worn when approved
by the Township Manager Skirts should be no shorter than 3” above the knee. Any
higher while potentially fashionable, is considered inappropriate for business. Leggings
are acceptable as long as the length of the top is no shorter than mid-thigh.

e Dress shoes, mules, dressy clogs or boots are permitted, open toe shoes may be worn as
long as they have a heel strap. Shoes classified as flip flops, beach shoes, sneakers and
sandals without a heal strap should not be worn. Foot wear should be clean and in good
repair.

All Employees:

e Revealing clothing (i.e. low cut or tank style tops, dresses, etc.)

T-shirts, polo shirts or sweatshirts with offensive, political or inappropriate
language or designs on them.

Denim pants/jeans unless permitted by the Township Manager

Sports outfits (i.e. tennis, running, etc.)

Evening wear (i.e. beaded/sequined clothing)

Clothing should not be ripped, stained, frayed, messy or have holes

Not every possible dress code situation can be anticipated and addressed in a policy such as this
one. Each employee is expected to use good judgment and common sense when dressing for
work. If you are in doubt regarding the appropriateness of a certain outfit or item of clothing,
ask your immediate supervisor before wearing it to work.

In the interest of creating a greater team spirit and conveying to our residents a sense of pride in
working for Thomas Township, employees may purchase one or more shirts with a township
logo from selected styles and wear such a shirt with more casual pants, such as khakis or jeans
providing they are in good repair and free of holes and excessive wear and tear, to work on

Fridays and other occasions as approved by the Township Manager—BDenim-pantsijeans—as-well



Dress Code-Policy No. 810
Page 3 of 3

as-the-other-items-listed-above;-will-still- be-prehibited. This change to “casual business attire” on
Fridays takes into consideration casual dress policies that have been implemented in both the
private and public sectors and provides respect for the public as well as promotes comfortable
clothing alternatives for employees when work assignments do not require more formal business
attire.

Personal appearance and hygiene are important in our work practices. The public and the
citizens that we serve will, to a certain extent, judge the quality of the services that we perform
and the care we show in our jobs by our personal attire and appearance. Each person is to report
to work wearing clothing that is clean. A neat, well groomed appearance is important to
yourself, your fellow workers and to the citizens that we serve. In addition, hair and nails must
be groomed and maintained in a manner that will avoid any interference with work
responsibilities.



TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: April 12" 2021

SUBMITTED BY: John Corriveau, Parks & Recreation Director

AGENDA TOPIC: Approval of Administrative Policy #700, Park Refunds

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: This agenda is item for the Park Refund Policy update.
The Park Refund Policy was last updated on August 7%, 2000. The old policy required
the Park Commissions approval for any refunds for pavilions or swim passes. The new
policy allows the Parks and Recreation Director to make that decision. The new policy
also allows under extenuating circumstances for the Township Manager and Parks
Director to grant refunds for any program or activity after they start, the old policy did
not allow any refunds after a program started. The old policy allowed for a 70% refund to
adult teams who canceled after scheduling was complete, the new policy only give a 50%
refund due to the amount of work required to fix schedules or deal with not enough teams
after cancelation. If the Township cancels an event for any reason a 100% refund will be
given, this was not in the old policy.

MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING INFORMATION:. Attached Park
Refund Policy 700.

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve, Deny, Amend or Table.

SUGGESTED/REQUESTED MOTION: Motion by supported
by to approve amendments to Administrative Policy #700, Park
Refunds.

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED? No




THOMAS TOWNSHIP ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES

Administrative Policy No: 700 (Page 1 of 1)
Effective Date: April 6, 1998
Amended: August 7, 2000

April 12,2021

Policy Regarding PARK REFUNDS

No refunds on pavilions or swim passes will be made witheut Parks-Commission-approval. unless
there are extenuating circumstances as determined by the Township Manager and the Parks
and Recreation Director.

No refunds will be made for any program or for youth sports after the start of the activitys unless
there are extenuating circumstances as determined by the Township Manager and the
Parks and Recreation Director

sehedulingis

No refunds will be made for any program or youth sports after the start of the activity A
100% refund of team fees will be made if the Township cancels the program after
scheduling is completed.

A 50% refund of team fees will be made if the team manager withdraws their team after
the schedule is made and prior to the first game being played.



g

TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: April 1212021

SUBMITTED BY: John Corriveau, Parks & Recreation Director

AGENDA TOPIC:  Approval of amendments to Administrative Policy #701, Late
Fees.

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: This agenda is item for the Park Late Fees Policy update.
The Park Late Fees Policy was last updated on August 7™, 2000. The old policy stated
that late registration fees had to be established by resolution by the Parks and Recreation
Commission. The new policy states that late registration may be permitted under certain
conditions and all late fees will be reviewed and established annually by the Parks and
Recreation Commission and the Township Board of Trustees.

MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING INFORMATION:. Attached Park
Refund Policy 700.

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve, Deny, Amend or Table.

SUGGESTED/REQUESTED MOTION: Motion by supported
by to approve amendments to Administrative Policy #701, Park
Late Fees.

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED? - No



THOMAS TOWNSHIP ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES

Administrative Policy No: 701 (Page 1 of 1)
Effective Date: April 6, 1998
Amended: August 7, 2000
April 12, 2021

Policy Regarding PARK LATE FEES
Late registration fees-shall-be-established-byresolution by-the Parks& Recreation-Commission

may be permitted depending upon participation levels, time of request to rent or participate
and other factors as determined by the Township. Late fees will be reviewed and established
annually by the Parks and Recreation Commission and the Township Board.



TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: April 12,2021

SUBMITTED BY: Russ Taylor, Township Manager

AGENDA TOPIC: Approve revised job description for DPW Director position.

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: In the process of reviewing the transition plan for the
DPW, we took a closer look at the DPW Director’s job description. As a result, we made
several minor changes that brought it closer in line with the current expectations of the
job. In particular, we added a number of technology related tasks.

MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING INFORMATION: Revised job
description.

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve, Amend, Deny or Table.

SUGGESTED/REQUESTED MOTION: Motion by
supported by to approve the revised DPW Director job description.

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED: No.




DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS
SUMMARY

Direct the activities of the Public Works Department and related staff in the maintenance of water
and sewer utilities, equipment, property, cemetery, buildings and grounds.

SUPERVISION RECEIVED

Works under the general direction of the Township Manager. Functions within board policy
guidelines. Broad discretion and judgment regarding day-to-day operating decisions.

SUPERVISION EXERCISED

Exercises direct supervisory responsibility over laborers and crew leader in a department with a
wide variety of responsibilities.

RESPONSIBILITIES AND ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND FUNCTIONS

An employee in this position may be called upon to do any or all of the following essential duties:
(These examples do not include all of the duties which the employee may be expected to perform).

1. Plan, organize and direct the activities of the Department of Public Works.

2 Establish work priorities and objectives.

Br Monitor performance of maintenance workers and contractors.

4, Provide technical assistance on operating and maintenance problems.

o Work with Saginaw Charter Township and the City of Saginaw to assure operation of

efficient sewer and water services in the Township.
6. Oversee all aspects of Owen Cemelery’s operations, maintenance, and records.

7. Enforce Township’s storm water requirements. Maintain records and reports as
necessary. Serve as Township’s storm water Operator in charge.

8. Prepare the annual water, sewer, and cemetery budgets for this department.
Administer approved budgets. Review monthly financial statements and proposed
expenditures to assure operation within budgetary constraints and purchasing
regulations established by the Board. Adhere to board rules regarding capital outlay
expenditures and competitive bidding procedures.



2[{Page Director of Public Works job Description

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

Prepare and maintain capital improvement plan and financial forecast for this
department. Work with the Township Manager on long range planning requirements
and priorities.

Act as spokesperson for the Township in response to citizen complaints regarding water
and sewer, building and grounds, cemetery operations, and sidewalk maintenance.

Administer established Township personnel policies for the department. Review
employee Step 1 grievances and resolve them in accordance with appropriate collective

bargaining agreements.

With Township Manager, interview and make recommendation to the board to hire job
applicants for department openings.

Exercise supervisory authority over employees assigned to the department including the
right to discipline, recommend termination, assign job duties, schedule paid time off and
conduct annual performance evaluations of staff. Responsible for scheduling all

personnel to ensure sufficient staffing to accomplish all departmental work and
emergency response 24/7.

Coordinate work with various contractors and regulatory agencies as needed.

Develop and implement regulatory agency policies.

Oversee training programs for department on new procedures and safe work practices.
Develop and maintain the use of technology in the department’s operations including
but not limited to GIS, SCADA, electronic meter communications, electronic data

collection, organization, reporting and storage.

Operate machinery.

Attend all regular Township Board meetings and special meetings as required except as
excused by the Township Manager.

Keep the Township Manager and board informed of department activities through
written and oral reports on a monthly basis or more frequently if needed.

Prepare and maintain emergency departmental operational procedures. Assist
emergency response in the event of community wide disasters.



3jPage Director of Public Works Job Description

22.  Perform related duties as required including keeping the public informed through use of
the township’s web site, newsletier and social media.

23. Oversee ali aspects of semi-annual sidewalk inspections and repairs,

QUALIFICATIONS AND KSAS (Knowledge, Skills and Abilities) FOR EMPLOYMENT

All of the following qualifications, KSA's and duties are essential. An employee in this class, upon
appomtment, should have the equivalent of the following:

o Considerable knowledge of the standard techniques, processes and practices associated
with assigned areas to assure sound operational management.

» Knowledge of basic accounting and rccord-keeping procedures to prepare budgets and
reports.

» Skill in coordinating, assigning and supervising the work of the department
o Skill in Microsoft Office Programs such as Excel, Word, and PowerPoint.
o Skill in community relations.

® Ability to lift and carry 50 pounds on a regular basis. fo-complete-duty4,15.

e Ability to walk, crawl, climb and maneuver where physical mobility is required. te
esppiete Gutios-2- 3415

e Ability to operate equipment and power tools.

o Ability to work effectively with numbers. te-complete duties 567
o Ability to communicate effectively. to-complete duty1-12,14-18.

o Ability to see well. to-complete-dutios 2-4-and 15-

o Ability to hear well. to-complete-duties 2, 34,810 10121617

o Ability to read and understand construction blueprints.



4/Page Director of Public Works Job Description

REQUIRED TRAINING AND EXPERIENCE:

2 Years of post-secondary education, preferably in Public Administration, Construction
Management, Engineering, Technology, Water & Wastewater and 7 years progressively
responsible and relevant experience with at least 1 year of administrative or supervisory

experience.

Must possess and maintain a valid State of Michigan Water Distribution “S-2" Certification or
higher.

Must possess and maintain a valid State of Michigan Driver’s License.

Adopted 1/05/98
Revised 5/01/00
Revised 04/04/2011
Revised 4/12/2021






Uggs A

TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: April 12,2021

SUBMITTED BY: Russ Taylor, Township Manager
Steven P Witt, Township Treasurer
Deidre Frollo, Fiscal Services Director

AGENDA TOPIC: Investment/Withdrawal Authorization Resolution 21-05

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: Annually, the Board passes a resolution authorizing the
depositories for Township funds as well as the officials who have the authority to make
deposits to and withdrawals from the accounts. There is no change from the authorization
that was approved in April of 2020.

MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING INFORMATION:
Investment/Withdrawal Authorization Resolution 21-05.

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Adopt or Not Adopt Resolution.

SUGGESTED/REQUESTED MOTION: Motion by supported
by to adopt the Investment/Withdrawal Authorization Resolution
21-05 pertaining to the authorization of depositories for Township funds and the officials
allowed to make transactions regarding the funds in those depositories.

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED? Yes




RESOLUTION 21-05
THOMAS TOWNSHIP
APRIL 12,2021
AUTHORIZATION RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED that The State Bank, and any Michigan Bank that belongs to the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, hereinafter called the Bank is hereby designated as a
depository for the funds of this Township and designated officers of this Township are hereby
authorized to open or cause to be opened an account or accounts with said Bank on such terms,
conditions and agreements as shall be required by said Bank, to endorse or cause to be endorsed,
in the name of this Township and to cash, to negotiate or to deposit or cause to be deposited in
such account or accounts any money, checks, drafts, orders, notes and other instruments for the
payment of money and to make any other agreements deemed advisable in regard thereto.

RESOLVED FURTHER, checks issued against the funds of this Township on deposit
with said Bank must be signed by two persons; any one (1) of the following from column #1 and
any one (1) of the following from column #2. The stamp option shall only be used in the event
that both the elected official and the appointed deputy are not available. Each check requires at
least one original signature.

Column #1 Column #2
Treasurer (Stamp Option) Clerk (Stamp Option)
Deputy Treasurer Township Manager

RESOLVED FURTHER, that checks issued against the Payroll Fund of this Township
on deposit with said Bank must be signed by two persons; any one (1) of the following from
column #1 and any one (1) of the following from column #2. The stamp option shall only be
used in the event that both the elected official and the appointed deputy are not available. Each

check requires at least one original signature.

Column #1 Column #2
Treasurer (Stamp Option) Clerk (Stamp Option)
Deputy Treasurer Township Manager

RESOLVED FURTHER, that withdrawal orders issued against the Savings Account and
of this Township, on deposit with said Bank may be signed by any one (1) of the following:

Treasurer (Stamp Option)
Deputy Treasurer

RESOLVED FURTHER, that any one (1) of the following;

Treasurer (Stamp Option)
Deputy Treasurer

is authorized to invest money for and on behalf of this Township. The investment instruments
shall be selected based upon the Township's adopted Investment Policy.



Resolution 21-05 Authorization Resolution
Page 2 of 3

RESOLVED FURTHER, that this resolution shall continue in force until express written
notice of its rescission or modification has been furnished to and received by said Bank.

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the signature stamp may only be substituted for an original
signature in the event that both the elected official and the appointed deputy are not available.
The Township Manager is the only person who may authorize the use of the signature stamp.
The stamps shall be kept in a locked area. The Township Manager and Fiscal Services Director
shall be the only individuals who have access to the stamps.

RESOLVED FURTHER, that any of the persons above named hereby are authorized and
empowered to make any and all other agreements which they may deem advisable, from time to
time, with said Bank in respect to transaction between this township and said Bank in regard to
funds deposited in said Bank or any other business transacted by and between this Township and
said Bank.

RESOLVED FURTHER, that any and all resolutions heretofore adopted by the
Township Board of Trustee of this Township and certified to said Bank as governing the
operation of this Township's account(s) with it, be and are hereby continued in full force and
effect, except as the same may be supplemented or modified by the foregoing.

Roll Call Vote:

Ayes:

Nays:

Absent:

I further certify that the Thomas Township Board of Trustees and at the time of adoption
of said resolution had full power and lawful authority to adopt the foregoing resolutions and to

confer the powers therein granted to the person named who have power and lawful authority to
exercise the same.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed the seal of
this Township the 12" day of April, 2021.

Robert Weise, Supervisor



Resolution 21-05 Authorization Resolution
Page 3 of 3
CERTIFICATE

I, EDWARD BROSOFSKI, the duly elected and acting Clerk of Thomas Township, hereby
certify that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township Board of said Township at the
regular meeting of said Board held on April 12, 2021, at which meeting a quorum was present,
by a roll call vote of said members and hereinafter set forth; that said resolution was ordered to
take immediate effect.

Edward Brosofski, Clerk



TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: April 12, 2021

SUBMITTED BY: Trevor Schultz, Assistant Director - Department of Public Works
Rick Hopper, Director - Department of Public Works

AGENDA TOPIC: Approve an agreement with Spicer Engineering to survey Owen
Cemetery and provide a GIS layer for our new cemetery management software.

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC:  DPW has received a cost from Spicer Engineering to
complete a survey and GIS layer of Owen Cemetery. The original survey occurred in 1894
and was last updated in 1972. The survey and GIS layer would be integrated into our new
BS&A Cemetery Management Module and aid in all cemetery requests.

The survey aspect of this project would utilize modern technology to correctly and
accurately determine the borders of the cemetery property, as well as to tie down plot
corners through GPS. Currently, attempting to locate corner markers to facilitate the sale
of a gravesite, or to accurately identify a location for a burial, is an in-efficient and
outdated process. These physical markers are typically buried about 3 inches below grade
and being the size of a pop can, require laying out multiple tape measures and typically
two laborers to locate. If you try to find them with any frost in the ground whatsoever, it
could easily turn into a full day project.

Having these locations tied down with GPS coordinates would allow a single staff member
to walk right to the location of the marker, and quickly and easily identify a specific
gravesite. From the Cemetery management side, this would also streamline the amount
of effort needed to help an individual in locating a grave for purchase, by being able to
show them a specific location on an overlay either in our office, or by sending a digital
image through email.

We are asking the Board to authorize the agreement with Spicer to complete the
cemetery work with a price not to exceed $19,300. The letter agreement allows for some
of this work to be completed by DPW staff by pre-locating corner markers and
monuments. Because of our efforts, the final cost should be $16,050. Any additional
costs above that number, up to $19,300 would have to approved in writing by the
Manager before proceeding.



This expense has been budgeted for in our Cemetery fund, contracted services sub
section.

MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING INFORMATION: Letter agreement from Spicer
outlining work and costs.

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve, not approve, amend or table.

SUGGESTED/REQUESTED MOTION: Motion by , supported by

to approve an agreement with Spicer Engineering to survey Owen
Cemetery and provide a GIS layer for our new cemetery management software.

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED? No.




group ENGINEERS ¢ SURVEYORS ¢ PLANNERS ¢ ARCHITECTS

February 17, 2021

Thomas Township

249 North Miller Road
Saginaw, Michigan 48609
Attn: Rick Hopper

RE:  Owens Cemetery Survey and GIS
Thomas Township, Saginaw County, Michigan
Letter Agreement for Professional Services

Rick,

Thank you for the opportunity to work with you on the Owen Cemetery Project. Spicer Group is very
familiar with this site as our staff has completed boundary survey for the cemetery and encroachment area
along the southerly boundary as well as provided some mapping services.

Project Understanding:

Thomas Township is looking for the location of Lot and Block markers to aid in the generation of a GIS
to integrate with their BS&A software for inventory purposes and on-line usage. We are providing a
scope, fee and schedule for the services specified.

Scope of Services:

We will provide a survey inventory and location of Lot and Block corners readily available to accurately
define Lot and Block limits within the cemetery boundary. The inventory survey of the cemetery will be
per your specifications, which will include the following:

L Inventory Survey

Research previous survey information for any work performed at the cemetery

Set up the project for field crew

Locate Section corners

Locate available Lot and Block corners.

Generate a working base map for the placement of Lot and Block lines.

Discuss any potential discrepancies in the existing base map with corners actually located
in the field.

e Deliver a final Drawing showing all Cemetery Lots and Blocks along with the Boundary
Survey of the property.

II GIS Creation

» Take the working base map from the “Inventory Survey” and create polygons for every
grave plot

e Export the polygon grave plots to an ESRI shapefile

e Join the BS&A unique identifier of each grave plot to each polygon in the shapefile

STRONGER. SAFER. SMARTER. SPICER.
WWW.SPICERGROUP.COM



e Join the existing cemetery database to the newly created shapefile
The fee for our professional surveying services to locate and inventory the blocks and lots of Owens
Cemetery will be a lump sum in the amount of $14,200

If the Township would like to help in the location of the monuments by uncovering as many as possible
ahead of time, Spicer’s fee for professional surveying services to locate and inventory the blocks and lots
of Owens Cemetery will be a lump sum in the amount of $10,950

The fee to create the GIS layers needed by BS&A of the Owens cemctery grave plots will be a lump sum
in the amount of $5,100

The total fee to locate and create the GIS layers would be $19,300 if Spicer is to find and uncover most of
the monuments needed.

The total fee to locate and create the GIS layers would be $16,050 if Thomas Township is to find and
uncover most of the monuments needed ahead of time.

OPTIONAL SERVICES:
Location of roadways and trees
Location of utilities servicing the site, i.e., water, storm, sanitary, electric, etc.
High-resolution aerial imagery of site with 1-inch resolution

Additional services related to this project will be furnished by us after you authorize the work. Our fee
for those additional services will be determined at the time they are rendered.

We will submit monthly invoices to you for basic and additional services furnished and for any
reimbursable expenses. The fee is a lump sum so the invoices will be based on our estimate of the
proportion of total services actually completed at the time of billing.

Attached with this letter is a copy of our general conditions to our basic and additional services which are
hereby incorporated into and made part of this letter agreement by reference. Any changes to the
agreement in this letter must be agreed to in writing by both parties.

If you approve of this proposal, please acknowledge your approval by signing the enclosed copy in the
space provided and return it to our office.

We deeply appreciate your confidence in our firm, and we are looking forward to working with you on
this project.

Sincerely,
/ |
W?/J& "%% Above proposal accepted and approved
by Owner.
Jeremy R. Dancer, PS
Project Manager / Staff Surveyor III THOMAS TOWNSHIP
SPICER GROUP, INC
230 S. Washington Avenue
Saginaw, MI 48607 By:

Phone: (989) 763-2837

- g . Authorized Signature
mailto: jeremyd@spicergroup.com



February 17, 2021
Page 3 of 3

Date:







DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: April 12,2021

SUBMITTED BY: Trevor Schultz, Assistant Director - Department of Public Works
Rick Hopper, Director - Department of Public Works

AGENDA TOPIC: Approve agreement with McDonald Ford to purchase three (3)
2021 F250 Trucks for DPW'’s Fleet, while trading in three trucks purchased last fiscal year
for new.

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: In the 2020/21 fiscal year, DPW entered into an agreement
with McDonald Ford for purchasing fleet trucks. The agreement states that when Thomas
Township purchases fleet trucks, McDonald Ford will purchase them back for the original
price a year later. Trading these trucks back in and then replacing them with new allows
the department to minimize vehicle maintenance costs over the entirety of the
agreement by always having our primary vehicles under factory warranty.

In January 2021, DPW asked for and received permission from the Board to give
McDonald Ford our purchase commitment for the 2021-22 fiscal year. In that letter, we
committed to purchasing six (6) new 2021 F250 trucks. Because we are trading in three
(3) trucks that were purchased last year, we are actually only buying three (3) new trucks.
The exact cost for the three new trucks is $89,304. This is the same vehicle price that we
paid for the three (3) trucks purchased last year.

Looking forward into the future, the purchase of these trucks in 2021 allows us to fully
experience the benefits of this agreement. In all subsequent years, we will ideally be
trading back six (6) trucks, and receiving six (6) new. The only continual cost to the
Township on a year-to-year basis under this program may be the potential truck cost
increase and the incidental costs to purchase and install new decals on the new vehicles.

This purchase was budgeted for in the Water and Sewer Capital Outlay funds and will be
split equally between each fund.



MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING INFORMATION: Invoice from McDonald Ford,
Buy-Back program agreement, Commitment Letter from January.

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve, not approve, amend or table.

SUGGESTED/REQUESTED MOTION: Motion by , supported by
to Approve agreement with McDonald Ford to purchase three (3)
2021 F250 Trucks for DPW’s Fleet, while trading in three trucks purchased last fiscal year
for new.

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED? No.




“Your Family ford Store”
McDonald Ford

Thomas Township
249 North Miller Rd

Date 4/05/2021
INVOICE #13510

Saginaw, MI 49609
2021 Ford F-250 SELLER
VIN:
1FTBF2B61MED49472
1FTBF2B63MED49473 MCDONALD FORD INC
1FTBF2B65MED49474 6790 MIDLAND RD
White FREELAND, MI 48623
SALESPERSON P.O. NUMBER REQUISITIONER SHIPPED VIA F.0.B. POINT TERMS
House Tom McDonald
QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL
3 2021 F-250 $29,768 $89,304

Thank you for your business!

SUBTOTAL $89,304.00
PAID

SHIPPING & HANDLING

BALANCE DUE $89,304.00




McDonald Ford — Thomas Township
2021-22 MUNICIPAL VEHICLE BUY-BACK PROGRAM

VEHICLE VIN NUMBER:
Ford F250 1FTBF2B61MED49472
Ford F250 1FTBF2B63MED49473
Ford F250 1FTBF2B65MED49474
il Ford F250 1FTBF2B67MED49475
Ford F250 1FTBF2B69MED49476
Ford F250 1FTBF2B6XMED49471

McDonald Ford offers to BUY-BACK the municipal vehicles described above under the following terms and conditions:

* BUY-BACK price will be the vehicle’s original purchase price.

® BUY-BACKand replacement vehicle purchase from McDonald Ford will be finalized 12 months (+/- 30 days) after
the original purchase date, pending vehicles are at McDonald Ford awaiting purchase.

e BUY-BACK vehicle remains in operation with the municipality until the replacement vehicle is delivered.
° BUY-BACK vehicle not to exceed 20,000 miles

* BUY-BACK vehicle to be in *GOOD condition as defined below.

e BUY-BACK vehicle will have documented factory recommended maintenance performed.

® BUY-BACK vehicle to be serviced exclusively at McDonald Ford for any warranty work or work not performed by
the municipality’s staff.

* BUY-BACK program will remain in effect for five years and extended annually thereafter upon mutual agreement

Tom McDonald, General Manager Date Thomas Township Supervisor Date
McDonald Ford, Inc.

Thomas Township Clerk Date

*GOOD condition means that the vehicle is free of any major defects. This vehicle has a clean Title, the paint, body and
interior show only normal wear. There should be no rust on this vehicle. The tires match and have substantial tread wear
left. A "good" vehicle will need only minimal reconditioning to be sold at retail.




DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

January 6, 2021

Tom McDonald - Owner
McDonald Ford

6790 Midland Rd.
Freeland, Mi 48623

Tom:

At the Board Meeting held January 5th, 2020, the Thomas Township Board of Trustees have
authorized the purchase of 6 (six), 2021 Ford F250 Super Duty trucks to be used in the

Department of Public Works' fleet. The approved cost per vehicle is to be the agreed upon
amount of $29,768 per truck.

Thomas Township will pay for, and take possession of these vehicles at the turn of the fiscal
year, which will be sometime after April 1, 2021.

Sincw, ‘ |

Russell Taylor
Thomas Township Manager

251 Miller Court ®Saginaw, Michigan 48609 *(989) 781-6438 *FAX (989) 781-0352
www.thomastwp.org







TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: April 12,2021

SUBMITTED BY: Russ Taylor, Township Manager
Deidre Frollo, Fiscal Services Director

AGENDA TOPIC: Approve the selected health and disability carriers.,

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: Typically every 3 years the Township requests our employee
benefits account executive to develop and submit a RFP for medical, vision, dental and
life/AD&D and disability insurances. In February, Melissa Ramos from Brown & Brown of
Central Michigan created the RFP and submitted it to carriers on the Townships behalf. A
summary of the results are as follows:

e Medical & prescription coverage — Quotes were requested from BCBSM, Blue Care
Network(BCN), Health Alliance Plan(HAP) and Priority Health. Each carrier did submit
quotes. Although each carrier did submit quotes that would have resulted in a cost
savings to the Township; these savings would result in a reduction/change in benefits
resulting in increased costs to the employees along with the potential for a disruption in
coverage as the provider network varies from carrier to carrier. Many of these plans
would not have met the health insurance section of the union contracts. Our current
provider BCBSM provided a quote that would increase the cost to the township by
approximately 5.31% while keeping the benefits the same and in compliance with the
SEIU and POAM contracts

o BCN submitted three plan options two of which included a co-insurance of 20-
30% after the deductible. This is a variance from the current plan as currently
there is no co-insurance after the deductible and does not align with the
coverage criteria according to the SEIU and POAM union contracts. The third
option is a non HSA qualifying plan. This plan would also not be in-line with the
criteria of the SEIU and POAM contracts.

O HAP submitted seven plan options four of which would represent a cost saving
to the township. Of these four plans three of them are HMOs which would be a
deviation from the current PPO plan that the Township currently has. The HAP
PPO plan that would be a cost savings to the township includes a 20% co-
insurance after the deductible and would not align with the coverage criteria
included in the SEIU and POAM union contracts.

o Priority Health submitted seven plan options two of which would represent a
cost savings to the Township. One of the plans is a HMO that includes a co-
insurance amount of 10% after the deductible. This plan would not align with



the coverage criteria included in the SEIU and POAM union contracts. The
second is also a HMO plan which would be a deviation for the current PPO plan.

Many of the plans that would be a reduction in cost the Township are HMO plans. Some
of the main differences between a HMO and a PPO are:
-In an HMO members would have no coverage if they were to receive services from an
out-of-network provider.
-Only emergency services are covered outside of Michigan / out-of-network.
-Members are required to name a Primary Care Physician (PCP) in the BCN system
under an HMO.
-Members will need a referral from their PCP in order to seek services from a
specialist.
-There could be some disruption in network coverage if the Township switches to a
BCN plan as not all providers are required to participate with both BCBSM and BCN.
-The BCN plan is not a high deductible health plan so members would not be able to
contribute to a Health Savings Account

Dental Insurance — Quotes were requested from Delta Dental, Standard, BCBSM,
Guardian and MetlLife. All carriers presented quotes with BCBSM being the highest
annual savings. Upon evaluating the BCBSM proposal it was determined that this quote
did not included orthodontia coverage along with some services would result in a
change of class and in turn a cost increase to the employees. A second request was sent
to BCBSM for a quote that included the orthodontia coverage and a clarification of the
classification of the services and the coverage percentages. At the sometime a request
was sent to Delta Dental asking if they would reconsider their rates. Delta Dental did
adjust their rates to include a 5% cost reduction based on the 2020/21 rates.

Vision — Quotes were received from BCBSM, EyeMed, Standard, Guardian and MetLife.
The renewal rate for BCBSM represents a costs savings of approximately 7.74% over the
2020/21 rates. All other carriers’ quotes would have been an increase in cost to the
Township. This is due in large part to the individual rates required for small groups by
the affordable care act. Currently all dependents ages 0-18 are not charged for vision
coverage under the BCBSM as vision is included in the health insurance rates. Switching
carriers would have added a monthly cost for all dependents ages 0-18 with no
reduction in the health insurance rates.

Life/AD&D & Short/Long Term Disability — Quotes were sent out to National Insurance
Services (NIS), The Standard, The Hartford and MetLine along with two others that
declined to provide a quote due to the number of police officers included in the group.
Our current carrier NIS provided a three year rate guarantee along with a reduction in
the cost of the long term disability. This results in a cost savings of 5% annually with no
increase for the next three years.

After review of the results of the RFP for health, vision, dental and life/AD&D and disability
insurance we are recommending that the board accept the rates that were provided by the
current carriers of the Township. Those being, BCBSM for Health & Vision i insurance, Delta
Dental for dental insurance and NIS for Life/AD&D and disability insurance.



MATERIAL ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING INFORMATION: Copy of the results of the RFP for
medical, vision, dental insurances along with life and disability as submitted by Brown &
Brown of Central Michigan.

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION:

Accept/not accept the results of the RFP for BCBSM for medical and vision coverage, Delta
Dental for dental coverage and Madison National Life for life/AD&D and disability coverage
as submitted by Brown & Brown of Central Michigan.

SUGGESTED/REGUESTED MOTION:

Motion by supported by to accept the results of the
RFP for medical, vision, dental and life/AD&D and disability insurances as submitted by
Brown & Brown of Central Michigan

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED? No







Wi §} i
- %JW ________ DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

THOMAS TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: April 12,2021

SUBMITTED BY: Rick Hopper, Director of Public Works

AGENDA TOPIC:  Consider and Approve Text Amendment # 21-G-02 amending
Sections 3.6.1 “c”; 6.3.4 “a”; 6.3.5 “c”; 6.3.6 “d”; 6.3.7 “a”, “e” and “f’; and Section

>

6.3.10 of the Thomas Township Cemetery Ordinance 97-G-10.

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: During a review of the current Cemetery Ordinance,
we have found a number of non-defined issues that need to be further clarified by
amending the text of the ordinance. Most of the text changes revolve around the new
columbarium and the increasing use of cremation in burials or inurnments. Section 6.3.1
“c” adds language defining a columbarium niche. Section 6.3.4 “a” clarifies the past
resident fees assessed for purchasing or transferring rights of burial. Section 6.3.5 “c”
further clarifies how the opening and closing of graves and niches are handled when two
(2) or more sites are opened at the same time, for the same individual(s). Section 6.3.6
“d” clarifies the foundation charges assessed to past residents. Section 6.3.7 “a” clarifies
the burial or inurnment of cremated remains in a grave or niche; “e” clarifies the
identification of cremains when inurned; and “f” adds language prohibiting pet remains
from the burial sites or niches. Finally, Section 6.3.10 adds language that sets a minimal
cost that the Township will reimburse a current, rights of burial owner should they decide
to sell those rights back to the Township and no cost can be determined from our records.
Thomas Township Attorney Otto Brandt has drafted the attached text amendment. The
Policy Committee has reviewed and approved these text changes.

MATERIALS ATTACHED: A copy of the text amendment as well as Ordinance No.
97-G-10.

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve, reject or amend the text amendments
to each section of the Cemetery Ordinance as recommended.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion by , supported by
, to approve the Text Amendment # 21-G-02 amending Sections 3.6.1
“c”;6.3.4 “a”; 6.3.5 “c”; 6.3.6 “d”; 6.3.7 “a”, “¢” and “f”; and Section 6.3.10 of the

2

Thomas Township Cemetery Ordinance, 97-G-10.

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED: Yes




CHAPTER 3 - TOWNSHIP CEMETERY
SECTION:

6-3-1: - TITLE:

This Ordinance shall be known and cited as the THOMAS TOWNSHIP CEMETERY
ORDINANCE,

(Ord. 97-G-10, 5-5-1997, eff. 6-13-1997)

6-3-2: - DEFINITIONS OF CEMETERY LOTS AND BURIAL SPACES:

A

B.
C.

A cemetery lot shall consist of burial space sufficient to accommodate from one to eight (8) burial
spaces.

An adult burial space shall consist of a land area four feet wide and eight feet in length (4' x 8.

A Columbarium Niche shall consist of inurnment space sufficient to accommodate at least

iwo (2) sets of adult cremated remains.

(Ord. 97-G-10, 5-5-1997, eff. 6-13-1997)

6-3-3: - SALE OF LOTS OR BURIAL SPACES:

A

Sale To Residents; Exception: Hereafter, cemetery lots or burial spaces shall be sold only to residents
or taxpayers of the Township for the purpose of the burial of such purchaser or his or her heirs at law
or next of kin. No sale shall be made to funeral directors or others than as heretofore set forth. The
Township Clerk, however, is hereby granted the authority to vary the aforesaid restriction on sales
where the purchaser discloses sufficient personal reason for burial within the Township through
previous residence in the Township or relationship to persons interred therein.

Form: All such sales shall be made on a form approved by the Township Board, which grants a right
of burial only and does not convey any other title to the lot or burial space sold. Such form shall be
executed by the Township Clerk.

Transfer Of Burial Rights: Burial rights may be transferred to those persons eligible to be original
purchasers of cemetery lots or burial spaces within the Township and may be effected only by
endorsement of an assignment of such burial permit upon the original burial permit form issued by the
Township Clerk, approved by said Clerk, and entered upon the official records of said Clerk. Upon
such assignment, approval and record, said Clerk shall issue a new burial permit to the assignee and
shall cancel and terminate upon such records, the original permit thus assigned.

(Ord. 97-G-10, 5-5-1997, eff. 6-13-1997)

6-3-4: - PURCHASE PRICE AND TRANSFER FEES:

A

Charges Established: Purchase price and transfer fees shall be established and set from time to time
by a resolution of the Township Board. “Past Resident” grave or niche purchase and burial rights
transfer fees shall be 150% of the purchase price and transfer fee established by Resolution of
the Township Board.

Payment And Disposition Of Charges: The foregoing charges shall be paid to the Township Treasurer
and shall be deposited in the General Fund.

Changes In Charges: The Township Board, by resolution, shall periodically establish fees to
accommodate increased costs and needed reserve funds for cemetery maintenance and acquisition.

(Ord. 97-G-10, 5-5-1997, eff. 6-13-1997)



6-3
A

C.

-5: - GRAVE OPENING CHARGES:
Charges Established: The opening and closing of any burial space, prior to and following a burial
therein, and including the interment of ashes, shall be at a cost to be determined from time to time by
resolution of the Township Board, payable to the Township.

Authority To Open And Close Graves: No burial spaces shall be opened and closed except under the
direction and control of the DPW Superintendent. This provision shall not apply to proceedings for the
removal and reinterment of bodies and remains, which matters are under the supervision of the State

and/or County agencies.
Multiple interments, burial or inurnments of cremated remains shall be charged independent

opening and closing fees estabiished by Resolution of the Township Board.

(Ord. 97-G-10, 5-5-1997, eff. 6-13-1997)

6-3
A

B.

C.
D.

-6: - MARKERS OR MEMORIALS:
Materials: All markers or memorials must be of stone or other equally durable composition.

Foundation Required For Large Monuments: Any large upright monuments must be located upon a
suitable foundation, as determined by DPW Superintendent, to maintain the same in an erect position.

Number: Only one monument, marker or memorial shall be permitted per burial space.

Construction And Cost Of Foundations: The footing or foundation upon which any monument, marker
or memorial must be placed shall be constructed by the Township at cost to the owner of the burial
right. Foundations costs for “Past Residents” shall be 150% of the foundation fee established
by Resolution by the Township Board.

(Ord. 97-G-10, 5-5-1997, eff. 6-13-1997)

6-3
A

D.

E

-7: - INTERMENT REGULATIONS:
Number Per Space: Only one person may be buried in a burial space except for an adult and an infant
or two (2) children buried at the same time. Two (2) sets of cremated remains may be buried in a
single burial space at the discretion of the DPW Superintendent or the Township Clerk. The
amount of cremated remains inurned in _a Niche shall be at the discretion of the DPW
Superintendent or Township Clerk.

Notice Of Funeral: Not less than thirty six (36) hours' notice shall be given in advance of any time of
any funeral to allow for the opening of the burial spaces.

Required Information And Documents: The appropriate permit for the burial space involved, together
with appropriate identification of the person to be buried therein, where necessary, shail be presented
to either the DPW Superintendent or the Township Clerk prior to interment. Where such permit has
been lost or destroyed, the Township Clerk shall be satisfied, from his or her records or with written
permission from the owner of a lot that the person to be buried in the burial space is an authorized and
appropriate one before any interment is commenced or completed.

Maintenance Of Grave Sites: All graves shall be located in an orderly and neat appearing manner
within the confines of the burial space involved.

All cremated remains must be in a containerized device suitible for burial or inurnment. If

cre

mated remains are inurned in a niche, each set of cremated remains shall be identified on the

container. The uncontained burial, interment, inurnment or spreading of cremated remains shall

not be allowed.

F.

No pet remains shall be buried, inurned or interred on or in any burial site or niche.

(Ord. 97-G-10, 5-5-1997, eff. 6-13-1997)



6-3-8: - GROUND MAINTENANCE:

A.  Excavations: No grading, leveling, or excavating upon burial space shall be allowed without the
permission of the DPW Superintendent.

B. Planting Vegetation: No flowers, shrubs, trees or vegetation of any type shall be planted without the
approval of the DPW Superintendent. Any of the foregoing items planted without such approval may
be removed by the Township.

C. Township May Remove or Trim Vegetation: The Township Board reserves the right to remove or trim
any tree, plant or shrub located within the cemetery in the interest of maintaining proper appearance
and use of the cemetery.

D. Mounds Prohibited: Mounds which hinder the free use of a lawn mower or other gardening apparatus
are prohibited.

E.  Removal Of Vegetation And Decorations: I'he DPW Superintendent shall have the right and authority
to remove and dispose of any and aii growth, embiems, displays or containers therefor that through
decay, deterioration, damage or otherwise have become unsightly, a source of litter or a maintenance
problem.

F.  Fencing Grave Sites Prohibited: Fencing, curbing and coping around grave sites are prohibited,
Surface Restrictions: Surfaces other than earth or sod are prohibited.

H. Refuse Disposal: All refuse of any kind or nature including, but not limited to, dried flowers, wreaths,
papers, balloons, and flower containers must be removed or deposited in containers located within the
cemetery.

(Ord. 97-G-10, 5-5-1997, eff. 6-13-1997)

I, Removal Of Winter Decorations: All grave blankets, wreaths, and other winter decorations must be
removed by April 1,

(Ord. 06-G-06, 5-1-2006, eff. 6-10-2006)
6-3-9: - FORFEITURE OF VACANT CEMETERY LOTS OR BURIAL SPACES:

Cemetery lots or burial spaces sold aller the effective date of the ordinance and remaining vacant
forty (40) years from the date of their sale shall automatically revert to the Township upon
occurrence of the following events:

A.  Notice: Notice shall be sent by the Township Clerk by first class mail to the last known address of the
last owner of record informing him of the expiration of the forty (40) year period and that all rights with
respect to said lots or spaces will be forfeited if he does not affirmatively indicate in writing to the
Township Clerk within sixty (60) days from the date of mailing of the within notice his desire to retain
said burial rights.

B.  No Response To Notice: No written response to said notice indicating a desire to retain the cemetery
lots or burial spaces in question is received by the Township Clerk from the last owner of record of
said lots or spaces, or his heirs or legal representative, within sixty (60) days from the date of mailing
of said notice.

(Ord. 97-G-10, 5-5-1997, eft. 6-13-1997)

6-3-10: - REPURCHASE OF LOTS OR BURIAL SPACES:



The Township will repurchase any cemetery lots or burial space from the owner for the original price paid
the Township upon written request of said owner or his legal heirs or representatives. Where no original
price can be determined, the Township shall set a minimal price for repurchase of burial rights.
The repurchase price shall be equal to the amount set in Schedule of Fees as set by Resolution by
the Township Board. T

(Ord. 97-G-10, 5-5-1997, eff. 6-13-1997)

April 12, 2021



ORDINANCE NO. 21-G-02

THOMAS TOWNSHIP
SAGINAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 6-3-2, "DEFINITIONS OF CEMETERY
LOTS AND BURIAL SPACES"; SECTION 6-3-4, "PURCHASE PRICE AND
TRANSFER FEES"; SECTION 6-3-5, "GRAVE OPENING CHARGES"; SECTION 6-3-
6, "MARKERS OR MEMORIALS";SECTION 6-3-7, "INTERMENT REGULATIONS";
AND SECTION 6-3-10, "REPURCHASE OF LOTS OR BURIAL SPACES" OF
CHAPTER 3 "TOWNSHIP CEMETERY", OF TITLE 6, "PUBLIC WAYS AND
THOMAS; TO PROVIDE FOR REPEAL AND SAVINGS PROVISION S; AND TO
PROVIDE FOR PUBLICATION AND EFFECTIVE DATE.

THOMAS TOWNSHIP, SAGINAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN ORDAINS:

Amendment of Section 6-3-2, "Definitions of Cemetery Lots and Burial Spaces:

Section 1. That Section 6-3-2, "Definitions Of Cemetery Lots And Burial Spaces" of
Chapter 3, "Township Cemetery" of Title 6, "Public Ways And Property” of Ordinance No. 98-
G-05, "Code Of The Township Of Thomas" is hereby amended to read as follows:

6-3-2: DEFINITIONS OF CEMETERY LOTS AND BURIAL SPACES:

A. A cemetery lot shall consist of burial space sufficient to accommodate from one
to eight (8) burial spaces.

B. An adult burial space shall consist of a land area four feet wide and eight feet in
length. (4' X 8"

C. A Columbarium Niche shall consist of inurnment space sufficient to
accommodate at least two (2) scts of adult cremated remains.

Amendment Of Section 6-3-4, "Purchase Price And Transfer Fees":

Section 2. That Section 6-3-4, "Purchase Price And Transfer Fees" of Chapter 3
"Township Cemetery" of Title 6, "Public Ways And Property" of Ordinance No. 98-G-05, "Code
Of The Township Of Thomas" is hereby amended to read as follows:

6-3-4. - PURCHASE PRICE AND TRANSFER FEES:
A. Changes Established: Purchase price and transfer fees shall be established

and set from time to time by a resolution of the Township Board. "Past
Resident" grave or niche purchase and burial rights transfer fees shall be



150% of the purchase price and transfer fee established by Resolution of the
Township Board.

B. Payment and Disposition of Charges: The foregoing charges shall be paid to
the Township Treasurer and shall be deposited in the General Fund.

C. Changes in Charges: The Township Board, by resolution, shall periodically
establish fees to accommodate increased costs and needed reserve funds for

cemetery maintenance and acquisition.

Amendment of Section 6-3-5, "Grave Opening Charges":

Section 3. That Section 3, "Grave Opening Charges" of Chapter 3, "Township
Cemetery" of Title 6, "Public Ways And Property" of Ordinance No. 98-G-05, "Code Of The
Township Of Thomas" is hereby amended to read as follows:

6-3-5: - GRAVE OPENING CHARGES:

A. Charges Established: The opening and closing of any burial space, prior to and
following a burial therein, and including the interment of ashes, shall be at the
cost to be determined from time to time by resolution of the Township Board,
payable to the Township.

B. Authority To Open And Close Graves: No burial spaces shall be opened and
closed except under the direction and control of the DPW Superintendent. This
provision shall not apply to proceedings for the removal and reinterment of bodies
and remains which matters are under the supervision of the State and/or County
agencies.

C. Multiple interments, burial or inurnments of cremated remains shall be charged
independent opening and closing fees established by Resolution of the Township
Board.

Amendment of Section 6-3-6, "Markers Or Memorials":

Section 4. That Section 6-3-6, "Markers Or Memorials" of Chapter 3 "Township
Cemetery" of Title 6, "Public Ways And Property" of Ordinance No. 98-G-05, "Code Of The
Township Of Thomas" is hereby amended to read as follows:

6-3-6: - MARKERS OR MEMORIALS:

A. Materials: All markers or memorials must be of stone or other equally durable
composition.



Foundation Required For Large Monuments: Any large upright monuments must
be located upon a suitable foundation, as determined by DPW Superintendent, to
maintain the same in an erect position.

Number: Only one monument, marker or memorial shall be permitted per burial
space.

Construction And Cost Of Foundations: The footing or foundation upon which
any monument, marker or memorial must be placed shall be constructed by the
Township at cost to the owner of the burial right. Foundations costs for "Past
Residents” shall be 150% of the foundation fee established by Resolution by the
Township Board.

Amendment Of Section 6-3-7, "Interment Regulations":

Section 5. That Section 6-3-7, "Interment Regulations" of Chapter 3, "Township
Cemetery" of Title 6, "Public Ways And Property" of Ordinance No. 98-G-05, "Code Of The
Township Of Thomas" is hereby amended to read as follows:

6-3-7: - INTERMENT REGULATIONS:

A.

Number Per Space: Only one person may be buried in a burial space except for
an adult and an infant or two (2) children buried at the same time. Two (2) sets of
cremated remains may be buried in a single burial space at the discretion of the
DPW Superintendent or the Township Clerk. The amount of cremated remains
inurned in a Niche shall be at the discretion of the DPW superintendent or
Township Clerk.

Notice Of Funeral: Not less than thirty six (36) hours' notice shall be given in
advance of any time of any funeral to allow for the opening of the burial spaces.

Required Information And Documents: The appropriate permit for the burial
space involved, together with appropriate identification of the person to be buried
therein, where necessary, shall be presented to either the DPW Superintendent or
the Township Clerk prior to interment. Where such permit has heen lost or
destroyed, the Township Clerk shall be satisfied, from his or her records or with
written permission from the owner of a lot that the person to be buried in the
burial space is an authorized and appropriate one before any interment is
commenced or completed.

Maintenance Of Grave Sites: All graves shall be located in an orderly and neat
appearing manner within the confines of the burial space involved.

All cremated remains must be in a containerized device suitable for burial or
inurnment. If cremated remains are inurned in a niche, each set of cremated



remains shall be identified on the container. The uncontained burial, interment,
inurnment or spreading of cremated remains shall not be allowed.

F. No pet remains shall be buried, inurned or interred on or in any burial site or
niche.

Amendment of Section 6-3-10, "Repurchase Of Lots And Burial Space":

Section 6. That Section 6-3-10, "Repurchase Of Lots And Burial Space" of Chapter 3
"Township Cemetery" of Title 6, "Public Ways And Property" of Ordinance No. 98-G-05, "Code
Of The Township Of Thomas" is hereby amended to read as follows:

6-3-10: - REPURCHASE OF LOTS OR BURIAL SPACES:

The Township will repurchase any cemetery lots or burial space from the owner for the
original price paid the Township upon written request of said owner or his legal heirs or
representatives. Where no original price can be determined, the Township shall set a price for
repurchase of burial rights. The repurchase price shall be equal to the amount set in Schedule of
Fees as set by Resolution by the Township Board.

Repeal and Saving Provisions:

Section 7. That all ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are
hereby repealed; provided, however, any administrative or judicial proceeding commenced under
any provision hereby repealed shall continue to a final decision as if such provision had not been
repealed.

Publication and Effective Date:

Section 8. That this ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after publication thereof,

Robert Weise, Supervisor

Edward Brosofski, Clerk






= 11 VL]

THOMAS TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: April 12,2021

SUBMITTED BY: Dan Sika, Community Development Director

AGENDA TOPIC: Rezoning request for parcel 28-12-3-23-3000-002; also known as
8725 Geddes Road, from A-1; Primary Agriculture and Conservation Development
District to R-1; Residential One-Family, Low Density District.

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: Thomas Township has received a request from Great
Lakes Homes to rezone a vacant parcel of land located on Geddes Road, about 4 mile
west of N. Miller Road, from A-1; Primary Agriculture and Conservation Development
District to R-1; Residential One-Family, Low Density District. The Thomas Township
Planning Commission held a public hearing on March 17, 2021 to review the request and
to hear any public comment.

The Planning Commission determined that the Township Master Plan Future Land Use
Map indicated that the land in question could be re-zoned to low density residential,
which it is show on the map. The Future Land Use Map is the Township guide when
someone request a re-zoning. The parcel in question is about 40 acres in size and has
frontage on Geddes Road. Ultilities are available if it were to be developed. The
proposed re-zoning was sent to the Township Attorney for review and comment. The
Planning Commission voted to recommend the proposed rezoning of parcel #28-12-3-23-
3000-002 and has sent that recommendation onto the Township Board for final review
and vote.

MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING INFORMATION: An aerial map of
the parcel, copies of the Zoning Ordinance for both zoning districts and a copy of the
Future Land Use map.

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: _ Motion by , supported by
, to approve/deny the requested re-zoning of parcel #28-12-3-23-
3000-002 from its current A-1 zoning to R-1 zoning.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Based on the Planning Commission review and their
recommendation to approve the re-zoning, [ recommend that the Township Board vote to




approve the re-zoning of the parcel from A-1; Primary Agriculture and Conservation
Development District to R-1; Residential One-Family, Low Density District due in part
because it is consistent with the community Master Plan Future Land Use Map and the
parcel has access to utilities for development.

e KROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED: Yes







SECTION 9.1. - A-1 PRIMARY AGRICULTURE AND CONSERVATION DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT.

TABLE 14—A-1 PRIMARY AGRICULTURE AND CONSERVATION DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT USES

| Uses by Right

| i e
* Accessory use

| Uses By Special Permit

* Airport and commercial landing strips

* Cemeteries, public and private

| Drilling, operating and maintenance of

‘ wells

* Childcare organizations

* Golf courses, country clubs, driving ranges |

* Conservation areas and structures, public

and private

* Grain and seed elevators and sales ‘

» Farming, forestry, field crops, orchards,
horticulture, tree nurseries, livestock raising,

animal feeding operations

» Greenhouses and nurseries selling retail on |

premises ‘

| « Home occupations

| *+ Kennels, veterinary hospitals, animal clinics

* Institutions: Religious
|

» Livestock auction yards

* Parks and recreation facilities, public and

private

* Non-motorized race tracks

|

! .-
|

| = Roadside stands selling products grown by
the property owner

* Production of fur-bearing animals for profit i

Single-family dwelling

Farm Manager dwelling

* Quasi-public uses !

* Riding stables [
|

| * Specialized farming including raising of
small animals and livestock

* Sand, gravel or clay pits and quarries ’




| * Yard, rummage or garage sale
[
|

with agricultural enterprise

* Seasonal labor housing complex associated

' » On Site Wind Energy System (Building

|
[ « Shooting ranges
Mounted Wind Turbine; Small Tower Wind |

‘ Turbine)
i -
' * Solar farm
L —
FIGURE S A1 PRIMARY AGRICULTURAL AND CONSERVATION DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT DIMENSIONS
Primary Agricuitizre and Conservation Development Destrict: A1 y
o wes = OSsA ) . ) L
= o —— p— l T ywemaon
wosdeymd, 1L I q onw
on - | ] =
==
| |/
| | /
! J
.
] tin o
n cormer kot J
s yaed o | 1 J e
oot pae - L | ——t
o =4 J
ey |
R
IP— S Pea—— _J S5
Lniram Qround Boos seva = 1180 sq Nt 700 3q. 0L b groamd Oass Ber e of mare Tan 1 | tweet
Maaimuss Bulding heght = 2§ stores o 36 R | gt otmay

Plazed

‘WO OF wiw 4
i lot heed of 30,000 54 1, and s front Bidg tne 100
(A) Farm Manager Dwelling:
0 Bedrooms=600 sq. ft.

1 bedroom=800 sq. ft.
2 bedrooms=1,000 sq. ft.
3 bedrooms=1,200 sq. ft

4 bedrooms=1,400 sq. ft.

O § writs o moce
n

|
N



SECTION 10.1. - R-1 RESIDENTIAL ONE-FAMILY, LOW DENSITY DISTRICT.

TABLE 18 R-1 RESIDENTIAL ONE-FAMILY DISTRICT USES

Uses By Right

* Accessory use

» Cemeteries, public and private

* Home Occupations

¢+ Institutione: Religious

+  Multi-unit housing for personnel when attached to a religious institution or school
» Parks and recreation facilities, public and private

* Quasi-public facility

» Single-family dwellings

» Yard, rummage, or garage sale

» Cemeteries, public and private; Quasi-public facility
Uses by Special Permit

» Cemeteries, public and private

+ Golf courses, country clubs and driving ranges

« [nstitutions: Educational, Human care

» Planned unit development

 Public buildings and utility installations and buildings
* Quasi-public facility



FIGURE 7 R-1 RESIDENTIAL ONE-FAMILY DISTRICT DIMENSIONS

Residential One-Family, Low Denetty District: R-1
(Min wrea = 14,0008q M)

|| onmar
| I T || yemd=s0m
i wide yard, = 6t | iy whcith =
excopt where | 100 1t t
h"mmlﬂﬂ: I mm
tetal side yard of L=
mne |
o ntront
Mim carmer lo I S
reruanany slde | =
&R
Stroet
Mnimum ground floor area = 1100 sq t, 700 sq ft on ground floor for units of ! Shvat
more than 1 story

dght-ofway
Meximum building heigiht = 2.6 storles or 32t
Maximum lot coverage: 26 %



Legend

Future Land Use

Agriculture - 10516 acies
B commercial - 1,554 acres
B industrial - 699 acres
I Open Space / Conservatlon - 1,/8Y acres
I Public / Semi-Public - 249 acres
Low Density Rasidential - 4,462 acres
Medium Density / Multi Family Residental - 416 acres
I High Densily Residential - 233 acres

---ﬁ]%_ﬂ{; | il
4 y N
Yy
- [

bty g

i
; e
i 0%
=

v o
L — Crested 112212021




4 11 ')

THOMAS TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE:  April 12% 2021

SUBMITTED BY: Jill Peters, Thomas Township Assessor

AGENDA TOPIC  Administrative Policy Amendment to Policy #900

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: As part of new laws that have recently been put in place
per the State of MI and State Tax Commission, our current Poverty Exemption Policy
requires and update to be considered within lawful terms as set forth by the State Tax
Commission.

MATERIALS ATTACHED: Updated Poverty Exemption Policy

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve, reject or amend

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion by , supported by
, to approve amendments to Administrative Policy #900, Poverty
Exemption Policy and Procedure.

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED: No.




THOMAS TOWNSHIP ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES

Administrative Policy No: 900 (Page 1 of 5)
Effective Date: February 1, 1999
Amended: April 12, 2021
Policy Regarding POVERTY EXEMPTIONS

POVERTY EXEMPTION POLICY AND PROCEDURE

Pursuant to MCL 211.7.y, local units are required to annually adopt a policy, including an asset test, used
to approve or deny exemptions. The Thomas Township Board has established the following procedures
and criteria for the uniform application and determination of poverty exemptions to be administered by
the Township Board of Review as required under MCL 211.7.u. MICL 211.7.u provides for a property tax
exemption, in whole or in part, for the principal residence of persons who, by reason of poverty, are
unable to contribute to the public charges. A Principal Residence is defined in MCL 211.7dd as a principal
residence or qualified agricultural property. Corporations or limited liability companies will not qualify

for an exemption.

1. Any-property-owner of-Homestead-RProperty Any person owning and occupying a home as a principal
residence, as defined by state law may apply for a poverty exemption by submitting the required petition
and application to the Board of Review during the March session. A-copy-of-that-application-must-be
WMWMe%%MWWWMMThe forms may be

submitted to the local assessing unit on or after January 1 but before the day prior to the last day
of the December Board of Review during the year in which the exemption is requested. If requested
by the Township Assessor, Supervisor or Board of Review members the applicant will appeal in person,
otherwise the application and petition to the Board of Review (Form L-4035) will act as a letter of appeal
and no appearance shall be required.

2. The burden of proving poverty rests with the applicant. The application form may be obtained from
the local unit where the property is located during the year in which the exemption is being requested.
The applicant must supply the necessary application and supporting documents as required by this policy
and procedure statement. Those documents shall include (please include this information for ALL
household members 18 years old and over):

_ G " i \ Michi | Tax_R ith_all
attachments-including-the-MH-1040-CR.
Memmm%w%m“m_mxw

A. The completed application, Form 5737 Application for Poverty Exemption.

B. The most recent (immediate preceding year) Michigan and Federal Income Tax Return
with all attachments including the MI-1040 CR OR Form 4988 if they did NOT complete
tax returns for the previous two (2) years.

C. Form 5739 Affirmation of Ownership and Occupancy.

Form L-4035 Petition to the Board of Review.

E. Valid Driver’s License or other form of identification if requested.

©



THOMAS TOWNSHIP ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES
m

Administrative Policy No: 900 (Page 2 of 5)
Effective Date: February 1, 1999
Amended: April 12, 2021
Policy Regarding POVERTY EXEMPTIONS

F. Produce a deed, land contract or any other evidence of ownership if requested.
3. The determination of qualification for a poverty exemption shall be based on:

A. The adjusted income level of the household after deductions (if any).
of the immediate preceding year.

B. The size of the family unit.

C. The assets and availability of income to the household.

4. The applicant’s reported income shall be reviewed and adjusted, subject to:

A. Gross adjusted income shall be adjusted with a factor e£8-22-of .85. This allows 28 15

percent of employment income to meet any tax liability. At-the-diseretion-of the Board of

Review-actual-tax-liability-asreflected-on-the relevant-taxreturns-may-be-utilized: There

w:II be no factor applied to appllcants who do not have an income from employment.

5. The determination of the size of the family unit shall-consider—shall be reflective of Michigan income
tax procedures in general. The allowance for a family unit shall consider:

A. Applicant shall be entitled to one “allowable exemption” for each verified household
member.
B. An additional “allowable exemption” may be granted for:
1. Any household member that is 65 years old or older.
2. Any household member that is paraplegic or quadriplegic.
A. Exemption amount is equal to the amount of exemptions allowed on the MI Income Tax
Return for the immediately preceding year.

6. The ad,tusted income Ievel for each family unit that quahﬂes for a poverty exemptlon shall be based on

the
federal poverty gu:delmes updates annually by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services and

published by the State Tax Commission.

7. In the determining of the granting of any poverty exemption, all assets of the applicant (excluding the
applicant’s primary residence), as well as all available sources of income of funds shall be considered. The



THOMAS TOWNSHIP ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES

Administrative Policy No: 900 (Page 3 of 5)
Effective Date: February 1, 1999
Amended: April 12, 2021
Policy Regarding POVERTY EXEMPTIONS

maximum assets allowed for a poverty exemption shall be three{3)}times-the-adjusted-incomelevelsset
MMWWWIWWWM%W 510,000 and the

applicant shall not own a secondary home (assets will include, but are not limited to, homes or property
other than your homesteaded property, cars, boats, trailers/RV’s, any motorized recreational equipment,
stocks and bonds).

8. The granting of a poverty exemption may be partial-or-total-100 percent, 50 percent, 25 percent or 0
percent.,

9. The granting of an exemption shall be based on five percent of gross income as-adjusted, for property
tax purposes. The tax shall be figured using the prior year’s millage rates.

A. If the amount of the tax, based on adjusted gross income levels is less than $250.00, the
exemption shall be a 100% poverty exemption.

B. If the amount of the tax figured exceeds $250.00, the taxable value for the current year
shall be figured by the following formula: Tax (Based on 5% of adjusted gross income
levels) divided by the prior year’s millage rate times 100 equals taxable value. This will
determine if the exemption is granted at 50 percent, 25 percent or nor granted.

10. Income shall be considered to include all of the following:

A. Money, wages, sand salaries before any deductions.

B. Net receipts from non-farm self-employments. These are from a person’s own business,
professional enterprise, or partnership, after deduction for business expenses.

C. Net receipts from farm self-employment. These are receipts from a farm which one
operates as an owner, renter, or sharecropper, after deductions for farm operating
expenses.

D. Regular payments from social security, railroad retirement, unemployment
compensation, strike benefits from union funds, workers compensation, veteran’s
payments, and public assistance (including Aid to Families with Dependent Children,
Supplemental Security Income, Emergency Assistance money payments, and non-
federally funded general relief money payments).

E.  Alimony, child support and military family allotments or other support from an absent
family member or someone not living in the household.

F. Private pensions, government empluyee penslons (including military retirement pay) and
regular insurance payments or annuity payments.

G. College or university scholarships, grants, fellowships and assistantship.

H. Dividends, interest, net rental income, net royalties, periodic receipts from estates or
trusts, and net gambling or lottery winnings.

I.  Money received from the sale of a property such as stocks, bonds, and a house.

J. Monetary aid from friends or family with documentation of said aid.



THOMAS TOWNSHIP ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES
'————___—_—_—__'—_____-—————-—————__

Administrative Policy No: 900 (Page 4 of 5)
Effective Date: February 1, 1999
Amended: April 12, 2021
Policy Regarding POVERTY EXEMPTIONS

11. Income does NOT include the following:

A. Food or housing received in lieu of wages and the value of food and fuel produced and
consumed on farms.

B. Federal noncash benefit programs such as Medicare, Medicaid, food stamps and school
lunches.

C. Homestead Property Tax Credit.

12. In order to be considered for a poverty exemption, the following steps must be completed:

COMPLETE THIS APPLICATION IN FULL. H-must-bereturned-to-the-Assessoratleast-one-week-before-the

Board-of-Review- The forms and required documents may be submitted to the local assessing unit
on or after January 1 but before the day prior to the last day of the December Board of Review
during the year in which the exemption is requested.

A. The most recent (immediate preceding year) Michigan Income Tax return with all attachments
including the MI-1040 CR AND the most recent (immediate preceding year) Federal Income Tax
Return with all attachments OR State Tax Commission form 4988.

Provide a copy of your Driver’s License or State issued identification.

Form 5739, Affirmation of Ownership and Occupancy, completed and retuned.

Form L-4035 Petition to the Board of Review completed and returned.

If your application is not fully completed and does not have the necessary copies and attachments,
your application will be considered incomplete. Incomplete applications will be considered as a
request by the applicant to withdraw from consideration the request for a poverty exemption. If
an applicant has special needs that require assistance in presenting their circumstances to the
Board of Review, he/she should contact the Township Office at least one week before the Board
of Review.

monNn®

13. Board of Review Responsibilities: The Board of Review shall approve or deny the request for the
poverty exemption. The Board of Review is required to follow the policy and guidelines adopted by the
local assessing unit in granting or denying a poverty exemption. The Board of Review is not permitted
to deviate from the adopted policy and guidelines.

14. Appeal Rights: An appeal of a decision of the Board of Review is made by completing and submitting
a petition to the Michigan Tax Tribunal no later than July 31 of the same year. A decision of the July or
December Board of Review may be appealed by completing and submitting a petition to the Michigan
Tax Tribunal within 35 days of the July or December Board of Review’s decision. More information
on how to file an appeal is available by contacting the Michigan Tax Tribunal. Information can also
be viewed on the Michigan Tax Tribunal’s website at https://www. michigan.gov/taxtribunal.




THOMAS TOWNSHIP ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES

Administrative Policy No: 900 (Page 5 of 5)
Effective Date: February 1, 1999
Amended: April 12, 2021
Policy Regarding POVERTY EXEMPTIONS

POVERTY EXEMPTION is defined by Michigan Complied Laws, Section 211.7 u. The law reads: The real and
personal property of persons who, in the Jjudgment of the supervisor and the board of review by reason
of poverty, are unable to contribute toward the public charges is exempt from taxation under this act.
This section does not apply to the property of a corporation.

Please be aware that as an applicant for a poverty exemption, you must also comply with the lullowing
section of the Michigan Complied laws relative to General Property Tax:

SECTION 211.118 PROVIDES, any person who, under any of the proceedings required or permitted by
this act shall willfully swear faisely shall be guilty of perjury and subject to penalties.

SECTION 211.119 PROVIDES, ... @ person who willfully neglects or refuses to perform a duty imposed
upon that person by this act, when no other provision is made in this act is guilty of a misdemeanor,
punishable by imprisonment for not more than 6 months, or a fine of not more than $300.00 and is liable
to a person injured to the full extent of the injury sustained.



THOMAS TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE:  April 122021

SUBMITTED BY: Jill Peters, Thomas Township Assessor

AGENDA TOPIC: New Administrative Policy #901

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC:  As part of the new assessing reform, Assessors Offices
are required to have a policy on hand regarding how tax exempt properties are to be
handled. The Township will also have supporting documentation and 501C3 paperwork
on hand to support the tax exempt claim. Tax Exempt properties can include but not be
limited to: Churches, Schools, Religious Organizations, Hospitals, etc.

MATERIALS ATTACHED: Tax Exempt Properties Policy

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve, reject or amend

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion by , supported by
, to approve Administrative Policy #901, a new policy on Tax Exempt

Properties.

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED: No




THOMAS TOWNSHIP ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES

Administrative Policy No: 901 (Page 1 of 1)
Effective Date: April 12,2021
Amended:

Policy Regarding REAL PROPERTY EXEMPTIONS

Procedures for Granting and Removing Real Property Exemptions

Thomas Twp., Saginaw County is abiding by State Legislation, MCL 211.70, also outlined by the State Tax
Commission published under Bulletin 26 of 2017 when granting and removing real property exemptions.

MCL 211.70 of the General Property Tax Act provides an exemption for real or personal property owned
and occupied by a nonprofit charitable institution while occupied by that . . . institution solely for the
purposes for which that . . . institution was incorporated.” All requirements must be met to qualify for
an exemption. In part, a property must meet the following:

Is the real estate owned and occupied by the exemption claimant?

Exemption claimant must be library, benevolent, charitable, educational or scientific institute.

Is the exemption claimant a nonprofit charitable institution?

Does the claimant thereon occupy the buildings and other properties solely for the purposes for
which the claimant was incorporated?

5. Claimant must have been incorporated under laws of Michigan.

sl ol [Nl

It will be the procedure of the Township to have taxpayers wishing to apply for a real property exemption
to first complete and submit an application. Records will be kept in the parcel folder and will include all
documents submitted by the taxpayer to support their request to apply for an exemption. Existing
exemptions will be reviewed annually and adjustments to the status of the exemption may be made by
the Assessor upon review.

Assessor may request additional information from an exempt organization to ensure the charitable tax
exemption still qualifies.

If the Assessor has sufficient evidence that the taxpayer no longer qualifies for the real property
exemption, they need to immediately remove the exemption and send proper notification to the taxpayer
outlining their appeal rights. If the Assessor does not receive sufficient supporting documentation
accompanying the application the Assessor should also send the taxpayer denial information along with
their appeal rights.

Assessors do not have the authority to grant/approve exemptions that are not complete. Claimants need
complete the application in its entirety and submit all required documents.



_FIRE DEPARTIENT

TOWNSHIP BOARD
AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: April 12,2021
SUBMITTED BY: Chief, Michael Cousins
AGENDA TOPIC: Purchase Ladder Truck from Ferrara with contingencies.

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: I had mentioned at the budget hearing, our ladder truck is
in need of replacing due to some reliability concerns. Our current ladder truck was
purchased used from Saginaw Township in 2012 and has served us very well. It was built
in 1993, so it is close to 30 years old. In the past year, the ladder truck failed its ladder
test and had to be re-tested. Later in the year, we ran into a problem with truck frame rails
having some rust on them and were told by our mechanic we should start looking for a
replacement. A few months ago, we had a problem with the air tanks and brakes. As the
repairs were in progress, we learned parts for this truck were becoming hard to locate due
to its age. This brings us up to the current need of replacing the ladder truck.

The expense would come from the Fire Apparatus Budget, and although we can afford
this large purchase, I want to be cautious to not reduce our fund balance to a concerning
level. At this point, our Apparatus Budget will have a satisfactory fund balance as we
have been conservative on our expenditures. We have been and will continue to look into
some funding options to include some donations and a grant. Both options will continue
to be explored.

We had been planning to purchase a demonstrator fire truck versus a new custom-built
ladder truck, all in an attempt to save money. Typically, a demonstrator fire truck is a
truck the manufacturer produces and takes around to show other fire departments, then
sells it at a reduced price. This is where I felt we could save some money. As we began
looking around to see what our options were, we found a truck we believe is what we are
looking for and at a great price. I had originally budgeted $700,000.00 for this truck
thinking we could secure a ladder truck for this amount; however, the prices we found
were all higher than what I had thought they would be.



2| Page

I have attached a spreadsheet to show a number of details we are looking at as we try to
compare an equal product to other manufacturers. Typically, when we purchase a new
truck, it’s very easy to compare one against the other as the bid spec calls for it to be
made or built a certain way. The problem we have here is we can only ask each company
to submit what thcy have available for us. Some of these manufaclurers have told us they
could build us something for less than what a demonstrator truck would cost, and have
supplied us with a price or an estimated price. Since we are not able to bid this out in
accordance with our Township’s purchasing policy, I am asking the Policy Committee to
consider allowing an exception to the purchasing policy, and based on the information we
have from these four vendors, support the purchase a ladder truck that best fits our needs
and our budget.

We are expecting one more vendor to provide a quote sometime Monday morning. Fven
with that quote, and based on the current information I have, the best deal for us is to
purchase the ladder truck from Ferrara in the amount of $723,417.00. This truck was put
into production in early 2020 with pricing from 2019. When Covid 19 became a known
pandemic, production was halted. Since then, production is back up and running, and the
truck is nearing completion. The manufacturer felt that since the truck was built with and
to the 2019 standards and pricing, it should be left as such. This is why Ferrara is so
much less expensive than the other manufacturers. To have this ladder truck built today,
to these exact same specifications, the truck would cost $840,000.00. This is where we
would see a savings for us of $116,583.00

As you can see from the spreadsheet, this ladder truck would be available to us as early as
the end of April 2021. This is certainly much quicker than I had expected. The next
closest quote is close to $800,000.00 which is the quote. The ladder truck was
manufactured in Louisiana and is where it is currently locatcd.

Although it sounds like a great deal, I want to make sure it is as good as it sounds. I
struggle to not get a good look at this truck before we sign a purchase agreement.

We have sent three firefighters to inspect this ladder truck. They have returned and all
had favorable reviews. These three have conducted inspections on our last 4 fire trucks
and know what they are looking for. They have all agreed this truck “is” Thomas Fire and
when [ asked the question, are we “just settling”, the answer was a very clear no. They
believe this truck will mect our needs for at least the uext 20 years.

In a meeting with the policy committee, I explained the need for unexpected incidentals.
These incidentals would include but not be limited to the installation of our radios and the
needed equipment that was not foreseeable when this truck was being built. The far
majority of our current equipment located on the ladder truck would come off and would
be placed on the new ladder truck. These incidentals expense would take the approved
price to an even 720,000.00. As it turns out, the end price comes in at $723,417.00. The
expense [or the radio installation should be approximately another $1500.00 which would
be completed by our local radio company.



3|Page

They have already agreed to add our painting schematics and themes to the Truck at no
additional cost. They would deliver the truck to us here and train our people to properly
operate it. Although Ferrara is not known in our immediate area, they do have a heavy
presence within the Grand Rapids Fire Department, and they are very pleased with them
there. This is also true within the Detroit Fire Department. Both departments are much
busier than Thomas Township and didn’t have anything negative to say about Ferrara.

This has been presented to the policy committee for an amendment to our purchasing
policy. They recognized the unique situation we are in and the savings by acting
promptly on this, and thus have supported the purchase.

The purchase of the ladder truck has been brought before the Public Safety Committee
who is recommending the approval.

¢ SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION: Spreadsheet on Manufactures comparisons.
Emailed quote from Apollo
Emailed quote from Rosenbauer
Specifications with a quote from Ferrara
Updated quote from Ferrara
Picture of the proposed ladder truck

¢ POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve, Deny, Amend, or Table.
e SUGGESTED/REQUESTED MOTION: Motion by

supported by to approve the purchase of the Ladder
Truck from Ferrara in the amount of $723,417.00.

¢ ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED? No



"000°078$ punoue aq pjnom pue ‘1adeayd 10} s33ds INO yIM 3|Ing U0 aAey pIno2 ay ‘8dud
13y31y ay3 auay ‘sjqejiene uondo A1ans sajlied ) se PS3U M U3yl alow 39 Aew (elsae spy3 das sajes 03 uipiodde TINNS -1
"000CTS Inoge 404 }2onJ) 3y] Juieda.
waya saey pino3 s "Apoq pas pue dog uo 33IYM Yum auoy omy si 1| "pajuied Apeadje si owad NILHANS -€
"000°008S PUNOJE pajew|isa pue ‘GdL 1509 e 3e pue pjing o)
SYluow pT IN0qe JO 3ul| 3wl e aARY PINOM 31 $3ds INO YIM 3jIng 3U0 193 am §| “Yoni) owaq YNVENISOY -2
"8u1dPd 6T0Z 3y3 Yum pasnpoud sem 31 se 1amoj Yanuw st 2a1td Jua1IND 3Y 4 "00°000°0F8S JO 221ud € Je Supjoo; g pinom am
‘uilid sAepo) yum ¥Inu) SWes 1exa Siy3 PjiNg 03 2J9M am 3 - VHVYYN34 T

00°€8S ‘9TTS sguines

1zZinr Tz-Aey 1z-8ny 1z-1dy 3|qejieAy
v 4 v Z sJ93311nQ
000¢ 00SsT 0sze 0S.1 dwnd NdD
S3A S3AA SBA S3A| spnpuj Buiuiel)

sugjies 0os suojien 00s suojien 00s suojje9 Q0G| 9zISue] JAeAp

dH 00§ ZTX sulwwn) dyosy 61 sulwwin) dH 00S| dyost 61 suwwn) au18u3
SLY1S JadIA 8/ leuav £/aH [SpON

S'TT WSOTTT WSiiT w9 TT WSI9H onuL

L'8E 8¢ 19.LE 19,9¢ Y18uat yonuay

1984 6/ 1994 g/ 1934 8/ 1994 /L Yi8ua Joppe

00°/S.'T¥6S IV €79'ST8S 000'S€8S «00°LTV'ETLS CRIBN
-7 1SD -g ofjody -¢ duljiuoly -T 12341Q Aso)oey J0nqisiq

|91wis uayydng J3anequasoy eJelsaq Auedwo)




FERRARA»

/R=\"GROUP

Proposal

For

Thomas Township Fire Department

8215 Shields Drive
Saginaw, Ml 48609



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Proposal ... cecvreeniercerreeireseens Page 3
Shop Order ........couvrevireveeceerrnrnes Page 4

Drawing ........ccccourincecnrisssenennenn. Page 14
PictUres ......cccccoveeiereeennnneeseesenas Page 15



FERRARA#®

A=V"GROUP

Ferrara Fire Apparatus, Inc.
27855 James Chapel Road

Fire Apparatus Proposal

February 18, 2021

Holden, LA 70744 QUOTE NUMBER  H6619-0005
225-235-2212 PAGE 10F 1
jim.stover@ferrarafire.com VALID FOR  Until 04-30-2021
TO Gary Salo
Thomas Township Fire Department ATTN: Gary Salo
8215 Shields Drive PHONE 989-295-2182
Saginaw, Ml 48609 Fax
EMAIL
RFQ or Bid Number RFQ or Bid Description CUSTOMER Customer Contact
NUMBER
HD77 Demo H6619 Gary Salo
PO or Contract Number Delivery Terms Estir.nated Payment Terms
Delivery
FOB Holden, Louisiana Due at Delivery
LINE MFG. LIST
BE| DESCRIPTION
ITEM QTyY | ITEM NUMBER PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED
1 H6619 Ferrara Cinder HD77 Aerial Demo H6619 500 Gallons / 1750 GPM $708,526.00 $708,526.00
Shop Order HD77RML-0005 Dated 2-18-2021
Proposal for specified unit is based on availiblity of demo unit.
At time of propsoal the demo unit is scheduled to be completed
in mid March. Unit can be inspected as anytime with prior notice.
Quotation prepared by: Jim Stover, Sales Manager SUBTOTAL $708,526.00
Signature
***Quotation provided is only valid for items above, and will be honored until April 30 or unti unit sells,
per terms and conditions stated above, Payment shall be received in the time frame and method, os stated above, This quote is non-
transferable, and can only be used by the customer stated above. If you have any questions, please feel free to give us a call, A Ferrara
apparatus contract shall be part of this purchase and a PO from the buyer if a PO is used for this type of purchase by the purchaser. TOTAL $708,525.00

THANKYOU FOR THE OPPORTUNITY TO PROVIDE YOU WITH A PROPOSAL




FERRARA®

R=\VGROUP —_—

Quote SO

—

—_— e
—————

Cinder HD77 Rear Mount Ladder

Exp. Date:
Quote No:
Job/Order No:
AERIAL:
LEGALS:

CHASS-CUSM:
CHASS-MODS:

PUMP-ENC:
BODY:
BODY-CMNT:
AERIAL:
ELE-CMPNT:
PAINT:

WRNTY-MNLS:

EQUIPMENT:

02/18/2021
PART NO

00-06-0420
00-12-0420
00-12-0620

00-12-0820
00-12-1020
00-14-0620
00-16-6420
00-16-8820
00-18-0620
00-18-1820
00-22-0220
00-22-0620
00-22-0820

00-D2-0820
02-A2-0220

02-A4-0630
02-A4-2420

12/31/2020
HD77RML-0005
HE6619

FMA-10-225 Aerial Custom - RM, HD77 300/400/500 Tank
FFA-00-10 Legals - Aerial

FCH-10-225 CHASSIS - Aerial RM, HD77 300/400/500 Tank
FCM-70-100 Chassis Mods - STOCK UNIT

FPE-30-400 Pump Enclosure - Aerials - RML

FBA-10-320 Bodies - Aerial RML, HD77 300/400/500 Tank
FBC-10-100 Body Components - Aerials

FAL-10-200 Aerial Ladder - Rear Mount, HD77
FEC-10-100 Elec. Components - Aerial RM Custom
FPC-10-100 Paint - Ladder/Platfrom

FWM-30-100 Warranty / Manuals - Aerials Custom RML
FEP-20-100 Loose Equipment Pkg. - Platform

DESCRIPTION

== Legals - Aerial - 419.001 04/03/19 == 1
Payment Terms: Ferrara Standard 1|FE
Manufacturer - Virtual 1|FE
S§ < Principal Dimensions 1| FE
The apparatus shall have the following dimensions:
Overall Length: 36' 6"
Overall Height: 11’ 6"
Wheelbase: 218"
Cab to Axle: 156"
Certified Welders 1| FE
Body Weight 1| FE
Drawings - Approval 1|FE
Final Inspection - Factory (Lodging/Meals) Per Person 3| FE
Training - Ladders/Platforms, 3 Days 1|FE
S Vehicle Transportation - Over the Road (Per Mile) - FFA ONLY I1111 1| FE
Delivery Time: Calendar Days 1|FE
Service Contacts 1| FE
Company Scrvice Vehicles 1| FE
Replacement Parts 1|FE
== CHASSIS - Aerial RM, HD77 300/400/500 Tank - 419.001 04/03/19 == 1| FE
Custom XD Full Tilt Cab - CINDER AERIAL 1| FE
WHEELBASE / FRAMERAILS / COMPONENTS / ACCESSORIES 1| FE
s Wheelbase: 218" 1| FE
Frame Rails - Full Length Double 1| FE
Paint - Frame Rail, "F-Shield" 1| FE
The chassis frame rails, cross members, fuel tank and air reservoirs shall |be
completely encapsulated in a ruggedized, protective coating. The air reservoirs,
reservoir hanger straps and fuel tank shall all be treated separately prior to assemply.
The frame, cross members, bumper backing reinforcement plate, radiator skid plate,
spring hangers‘ cab lock mounts and required bolts shall all be in place prioﬁ to




02/18/2021
PART NO

02-A4-2620
02-A6-1420

02-B2-0220
02-C4-2220
02-D2-0220
02-D4-0620

02-E4-0420
02-P2-0420
02-P2-1020
02-P6-0620
02-P8-0420
02-R2-1420
02-R4-0420

04-A2-1020
04-A6-0620
04-A8-0220
04-B2-1220
04-C2-0620
04-C4-0220
04-D2-1420
04-E2-2820
04-E4-0220
04-E4-2020

04-G2-2020
04-K2-8620
04-M2-0220
04-M6-0420
04-P2-0220
04-R2-4820
04-52-2420
04-S2-6020
04-56-1220

06-A2-0220
06-A2-0420
06-A2-4020
06-A2-6020
06-A4-4020

06-B4-2020

08-A2-1020
08-B2-0620

S

DESCRIPTION
treatment to ensure complete coverage.

"F-Shield" Color: Black
Tow Hooks - Chrome, Below the Bumper
FRONT BUMPERS / COMPONENTS / ACCESSORIES
Front Bumper - 12" High, Polished Stainless Steel
Front Bumper Extension - 24"
Gravelshield - Front Bumper Extension
< Compartment - Front Bumper, Center
A safety sign FAMA22, which warns of the need to secure hose, shall be visibld
personnel at the hose storage area.

Restraining Strap - Center Compartment

> Air Horn - PS Thru Bumper (P2)

> Air Horn - DS Thru Bumper (P6)
Switch - Air Horn, (2) Driver/Officer Side Floor
Air Horn Wiring - Active All Modes
Speaker - DS Thru Bumper (P7)
Siren Speaker - Cast Product SA2401

FRONT AXLES / COMPONENTS / ACCESSORIES
Front Axle - 23,000 Pounds, Meritor MFS-20
Steering System - Sheppard, Over 21,500 Pounds
Chassis Alignment
Front Suspension - 23,000 Pounds, Parabolic
Front Brakes - Disc, Meritor EX-225
Cramp Angle - 41 Degrees
Front Tires - Goodyear 425/65R22.5 "L" G296 MSA 23,000 Pounds
Front Wheels - 22-1/2" x 13", Alcoa Aluminum
Wheel Trim - Front, Baby Moons/Lug Nut Covers
Mud Flaps - Front
SINGLE REAR AXLES / COMPONENTS / ACCESSORIES
Rear Axle - 35,000 Pounds, Dana Spicer S35-590 FT
Rear Suspension - 35,000 Pounds, Spring
Standard Differential - Single Axle
Vehicle Top Speed: 60-62 MPH
Rear Brakes - S-Cam 16-1/2" x 7"
Rear Tires - Goodyear 315/80R22.5 "L" Endurance TSD 35,000 Pounds
Rear Wheels - 22-1/2" x 9", Alcoa Aluminum
Wheel Trim - Rear, Lincoin Hats
Tire Pressure Monitor (Single Rear Axles) - LED Alert
AIR BRAKE SYSTEM / COMPONENTS
Harness and Hose Routing System
Air Brake System - Color Coded Nylon w/1/4 Turn Drain Valves
Chassis Air System Fittings - Push-Lock Type
Aijr Compressor - Wabco 18.7
< > ABS/ATC/ESC System - SINGLE AXLE

NOTE:
The following restriction apply to the ESC system:
160" - 176" wheel base range with 1500-gallon maximum water on non-aerial units
177" - 304" wheel base range with 2200-gallon maximum water on non-aerial units,
177" - 304" wheel base range with 2200-gallon maximum water on aerial units.

If the proposed unit does not fall in these parameters then it will have to be tilt t
tested.

Air Dryer - Bendix AD-9
ENGINES / COMPONENTS / ACCESSORIES
Engine - 450 HP, Cummins L9 (EPA 2017)
Engine Brake - Cummins ISL Engine
ENGINE / COMPONENTS / COOLING SYSTEM - ISL

QTy

e to

able

e N S SEY

Nﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ

h el el el med

Page 2

FE
FE
FE
FE
FE
FE
FE

FE
FE
FE
FE
FE




02/18/2021
PART NO
08-C2-0420
08-C2-1420
08-C2-2620
08-C2-4220
08-C2-4420
08-C2-6020

08-D2-2220
08-E2-0620
08-E4-0220
08-E6-0220
08-E6-0420
08-E8-4420
08-G4-2020
08-G4-4020
08-G6-0230

08-G8-8220

10-A2-0220
10-A4-0620
10-H2-0220
10-H4-1820

10-J2-0220
10-J4-0220
10-J4-0820
10-J4-2020
10-J6-0820
10-48-2020
10-M2-0820

12-H6-2420
12-P2-1020
12-P4-0220
12-P6-0820
12-P8-1020
12-R2-0620
12-R2-0820
12-R4-0420
12-R4-2220

14-A2-0420
14-A2-1620
14-A2-6220
14-A4-0620
14-A6-0220
14-A6-1620
14-A6-2020
14-A6-8220
14-A8-0230

14-G2-1020
14-G4-0220
14-G4-2220
14-G4-6420
14-G6-0420
14-G6-4020
14-G6-6020
14-H2-0820

S

S

DESCRIPTION
Cooling System - 1400 Square Inch Radiator
Cooling System Fan - Cummins ISL
Radiator Coolant - Extended Life
Coolant Hoses - Premium Rubber
Coolant Hose Clamps - Gates PowerGrip
Auxiliary Engine Cooler

ENGINE / COMPONENTS / CHARGING SYSTEMS
Alternator - 430 AMP, Delco Remy 5551
Battery System (6) - Exide (750 CCA Each)
Battery Boxes - Stainless Steel
Battery Master Load Disconnect
Total System Manager w/High Idle - Class 1

> Battery / Air Charger - Pump Plus 1200, Kussmaul 52-21-1100

> Receptacle - Kussmaul 20 AMP Super Auto-Eject 091-55-20-120
Recepiacle Location - Driver's Side Cab Wheel Well Area

> Cover - Super Auto Eject Yellow, Kussmaul 091-55-234-YW w/Bar Graph
Display
Plate - Shore Power Inlet

TRANSMISSION / COMPONENTS / ACCESSORIES

> Transmission - Allison 3000 EVS
Transmission Push Button Shifter - 5 Speed
Drive line - 1710 Series
Fire Pump Installation

FUEL SYSTEM / COMPONENTS - ISL

Fuel Tank - 50 Gallon

Fuel Lines - Reinforced Wire Braided

Fuel Filter - Secondary Filter

Fuel Water Separator - Primary Filter

DEF System w/5 Gallon Tank - Left Rear Under Cab

DEF Fill w/Door - Left Crew Cab Extenslon

Exhaust System - EPA 2017/18

CAB CONFIGURATIONS - CINDER XD - SMFD thru LFD

> Custom Cab - Ferrara XD 96, XMFD Cab w/8" Notched Raised Roof

Cab Doors - Full Length, 4 Door Raised Roof Cab (PADDLE LA TCHES)

Cab Door Hinges - Concealed

Cab Door Locks - Manual Paddie Type (4 Door Cab)

Window Regulators - Electric (4 Door Cab)

Window - Left Side Fixed, 16-1/2"W x 33-1/2"H

Window - Right Side Fixed, 16-1/2"W x 33-1/2"H

Cab Tilt Lock Suspension (Full Tiit Cab)

Cab Tilt Electric Pump w/Manual Back-Up (Standard Location)

CUSTOM CAB - EXTERIOR TRIM COMPONENTS

Front Gtllle - Stainless Steel

Front Grille Logo - Ferrara/NON-Lighted

Side Grilles w/Ember Separator

Cab Mirrors - Heated/Remote, Velvac Stainless Steel

Exterior Trim - Cab Handrails, Knurled Stainless Steel

Fenderettes - Polished Stainless Steel

Exterior Trim - Rear Step Well w/Removable Battery Access Covers

Exterior Trim - Tread Plate, Back of Cab :
> Exterior Trim - Tread Plate, Cab Roof (Flat Roof Cabs)

CUSTOM CAB - INTERIOR TRIM COMPONENTS

Corrosion Protection/Sound Deadening - "F-Shield”

Interior Cab Finish - "F-Shield" Dark Gray

Interior Trim - Gray Floor Mats/Engine Tunnel Covering

Interior Trim - Sprayed Aluminum, Rear Wall
> Interior Trim - Grab Handles (4 Door Cab)

Interior Trim - Officer's Dash, Glove Box

Interior Trim - Sun Visors (3)

Interior Trim - Upper Door Panels "F-Shield" (4 Door Cab)

ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ

ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂhlﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂMﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ




02/18/2021
PART NO

14-H2-4220

14-H4-1220

14-K2-0100
14-K2-0420
14-K2-0620
14-K2-0820
14-K2-2020
14-K2-2220
14-K2-4220
14-K2-6220
14-K2-8220
14-K4-0420
14-K4-4020
14-P2-1620
14-P2-2420

16-A2-1220
16-A8-0420
16-A8-1220
16-A8-4020
16-A8-6020
16-A8-8020
16-B4-0220
16-B4-2820
16-C2-0620
16-D2-0620
16-E2-1820

16-M2-0820

16-M2-1420
16-M2-6020
16-M2-6420
16-M2-6620
16-M4-2620
16-M6-0620
16-M6-2020

16-P2-0220
16-P2-2420
16-P4-0220
16-R4-0420

18-A2-0620
18-A4-0830
18-A6-0820
18-A6-1220
18-A6-6020
18-A6-6220
18-B4-1420

18-D2-0820

18-M6-0220

>

DESCRIPTION
Interior Trim - Lower Door Panels "F-Shield" (4 Door Cab)
Interior Trim - Lower Door Panels Reflective Stop Sign (4 Door Cab)
CUSTOM CAB - INSTRUMENTS AND CONTROLS
Smart Truck Technology - AXIS
Cab Instrumentation & Controls - Standard Gauges
Driver's Information Display Panel
Chassis Electrical System - Standard Wiring
Doghouse Mounted Switch Panel - Ferrara XD Aluminum
Switch Panel - Driver's Side (Pump Applications)
Switch Panel - Center, 96" Wide XD Cab
Switch Panel - Officer’s Side
Vehicle Data Recorder (VDR) w/Seat Belt Warning - Class 1
Seat Belt Warning System Panel - Class 1
Steering Column w/Self Canceling Turn Signals - Douglas
Heat/Air Conditioning - Under Dash and Rear Crew Area
A/C Condenser Housings: Black
CUSTOM CAB / SEATING / AIR BAG PROTECTION / EMS
COMPARTMENTS
Seating / EMS Compartments - Bostrom
Seat Material - Bostrom Durawear
Seat Color - Gray/Black
Seat Belts - Standard 3-Point NON ABTS
No SCBA Bracket Required
No Filler Panels Required
Seat - Driver, Bostrom Sierra Air-100 RX
Seat - Officer Bostrom Tanker 450 SCBA
Seat - DS Rear Facing Crew, Bostrom Tanker 450 SCBA
Seat - OS Rear Facing Crew, Bostrom Tanker 450 SCBA
Seats (2) - IB Forward Facing Crew, Bostrom Tanker 450 SCBA
CUSTOM CAB - ACCESSORIES
Fuse Block - 12-Volt 6-Place, Blue Sea 5025
The fuse block shall be located on the side of the engine tunnel behind
officer's seats.

12-Volit Dual USB Charging Port - Cab Mounted, Kussmaul 091-219-4
12-Voit Power and Ground Studs (2)
12-Volit Power Outlet - Cab Mounted
Wiring - 12-Volt Outlet, Batiery Direct
Electronic Siren - Whelen 295HFS2
Electric Horn - Single
Back Up Alarm - 107 dB, Whelen WBUA107
CUSTOM CAB - INTERIOR LIGHTING
Lights (4) - LED Cab Dome, 6" Red/Clear Whelen 60CREGCS
Light - Open Door w/Alarm, Whelen TIR3 LED
Lights (6) - Step Well, TecNiq D04 Linear Dragon
Lights (2) - Engine Maintenance, LED
CUSTOM CAB - EXTERIOR ILLUMINATION
Front Cab Lighting - Whelen "M" Series LED
Headlights - LED, FireTech FT-4X6-4KIT
Lights (2) - Turn Signal, Whelen "M" Series LED (Headlight Module Mounted)
Lights (2) - Turn Signal/Marker, Whelen 400 Series LED
Lights (2) - Cornering, LED
Lights - DOT, LED
Lights (2) - Inboard Lower Front Warning, Whelen M6 LED M6 (Red w/Clear
Lens)
Lights (4) - LED Cab Ground, Whelen 20COCDCD
AUDIO / VISUAL COMMUNICATION SYSTEMS
== Chassis Mods - STOCK UNIT - 520.001 05/01/20 ==
Camera - Back Up w/Color Monitor, Federal Signal CAMSET70-NTSC4B
The monitor shall be located in the left front cab corner.

the

e R R R S R N N G L G

el S B T S G G G G ey

e B e e e e T T S J WL SCN QPP X Yy

Tk vwed med, el




02/18/2021
PART NO

18-P2-0220
18-P2-0420
18-P2-0620
18-P2-0820
18-P2-1020
18-P2-1220
18-P2-1420
18-P2-1620
18-P2-1820
18-P2-2020
18-P2-2220
18-P2-2420
18-P2-2620
18-P2-2820
18-P2-4020
18-P2-4220
18-P2-4420
18-P2-4620
18-P2-4820
18-P2-6020
18-P2-6220
18-P4-1020
18-P6-0220
18-P6-0420

20-A2-0230
20-A4-2220
20-A4-4020
20-C4-0220
20-D6-0220
20-D6-1220
20-D8-0620
20-F4-0220

20-F8-0220

20-J2-0220
20-J4-1620
20-J6-0220

20-J6-6220
20-M4-0220

22-A2-0420
22-F2-0220
22 G2-0220
22-J2-0220
22-P2-0220
22-P2-1220
22-R2-0220
22-R2-2020
22-R4-0420
24-A2-1620
24-G4-0220
24-G4-0420
24-G4-1020
24-J8-0420
24-R2-0420
24-56-0820
24-T2-0420
24-T2-0620
24-W2-0220

S

DESCRIPTION

NFPA SAFETY SIGNS
Safety Signs - General Requirements
Safety Signs - Battery Explosion, FAMAQ1
Safety Signs - Rotating Shafts, FAMAQ2
Safety Signs - Hot Surfaces, FAMAO3
Safety Sign - Hot Exhaust, FAMA04
Safety Sign - Spinning Fan, FAMAQS
Safety Signs - Seated & Belted, FAMAQ7
Safety Sign - Air Conditioning Refrigerant, FAMAO9
Safety Sign - Cab Equipment Mounting, FAMA10
Safety Sign - Fire Service Tire Rating, FAMA12
Safety Sign - Electronic Stability Control, FAMA13
Safety Sign - Cab Seating, FEMA14
Safety Signs - Helmet Worn in Cab, FAMA15
Safety Sign - Vehicle Backing, FAMA17
Safety Signs - Intake/Discharge Cap Pressure, FAMA18
Safety Signs - Hose Restraint Required, FAMA22
Safety Signs - Climbing Method Instruction, FAMA23
Safety Signs - Riding on Exterior, FAMA24
Safety Sign - Pump Training, FAMA25
Safety Signs - No-Step, FAMA26
Safety Sign - Siren Noise, FAMA42
Safety Sign - Apparatus Movement Warning
Plate - Fluid Capacity
Plate - Overall Height/Length/Weight
== Pump Enclosure - Aerials - RML - 419.001 04/03/19 ==
PUMP MODULE - SIDE MOUNT EXTRUDED ALUMINUM
Separate Pump Module - Extruded
Trim - Dunnage Area, Tread Plate
Pump Panels - Black Anodized Aluminum
Light - Left Side Pump Panel, OnScene LED Access
Light - Right Side Pump Panel, OnScene LED Access
Light - Pump Compartment, LED
Running Boards - Slotted Aluminum, Left & Right Side

> Slide-Out Platform - Pump Operator's, 500-Pound Capacity

Gauges - Master Suction/Pressure, 4-1/2" Metal Face
Pressure Governor - FRC Pump Boss PBA400-A00
Gauges - 2-1/2" Pressure, Metal Face
Gauge Bezels - Color Coded
Tags - Pump Panel, Color Coded (Metal)
PUMP / COMPONENTS / ACCESSORIES
Pump System - 1250-2000 GPM Single Stage, Hale QMAX
Packing Glands - Hale
Pump Shift - Dash Muunled
Primer - Pump, Hale Model ESP (Qit Less)
Valve - Master Pump Drain
Valve - Individual Drain, 3/4" 1/4 Turn
Pump Test Points w/Engine Speed Counter - Hale Pumps
Certification - Pump, 1750 GPM Pump
Plate - Pump Test Certification
Steamer Inlets - 6" w/Long Handle Cap, Left & Right Side
Valve - Waterway Dump
Valve - Waterway Drain
Rear Inlet - Aerial Waterway, 4" Black Iron
Valve - Intake Relief, Akron 53
Tank-To-Pump - 3" Valve w/Push-Pull Control
> Tank Fill - 2" Valve w/Push-Pull Control
Cooler - Engine, 1/2" Line w/ 1/4 Turn Valve
Cooler - Pump, 3/8" Line w/ 1/4 Turn Valve
> Plumbing - Stainless Steel




02/18/2021

24-W4-0220
26-A2-0220
26-D2-0420
28-00-0140
28-00-0220
28-A6-0220
28-A8-0220
28-A8-6020
28-D4-0420
28-D6-2020
28-D8-0820
28-D8-2220
28-D8-6020
28-H8-0420
28-K2-8020
28-K2-9920
28-K4-0220
28-K4-4020
32-E2-2020

32-A2-2620
32-D8-0420
34-A2-1220
56-A2-0420
56-B2-1020
56-B2-4025
56-B2-4620
56-B2-6820
56-C2-2620

56-C8-2030
56-C8-4020
56-C8-4420
56-D2-4020

S

<

>

>
>

> Pull Down Strap - Compartment Door

DESCRIPTION

Plumbing Finish - Natural

Apparatus Valves - Akron Brass 8800 Series

Suction - Left Side, 2-1/2" Valve w/Swing Control at Valve

DISCHARGE OUTLETS - AERIALS

All 2-1/2" Side Discharge Outlets Terminate 30-Degree Elbows

Discharge - Front Bumper w/ Swivel - thru Tread Plate (PS)

Discharge - Front Bumper, 2" Valve w/Push Pull Control

Discharge - Swivel Stop, Tread plate

Crosslays (2) - Double Lay, 2" Valve w/Push Pull Control

Crosslay - Double Lay, 2-1/2" Valve w/Push Pull Control

Cover - Hypalon w/End Flaps, Crosslays

End Flaps - Hypalon w/Snaps, Crosslays

Cover/End Flaps Color: Red

Discharges (2) - Left Side, 2-1/2" Valve w/Push-Pull Control

Discharge - Left Panel, Aerial Waterway 4" Valve w/Handwheel Control

Flowmeter - Pump Panel, Fire Research DFA400-040

Discharge - Right Side, 2-1/2" Valve w/Push-Pull Control

Discharge - Right Side, 3" Valve w/Push Pull Control

Return Line - Fill Subsurface

== Bodies - Aerial RML, HD77 300/400/500 Tank - 419.001 04/03/19 ==
WATER TANKS / COMPONENTS / ACCESSORIES

Water Tank - Polypropylene, 500 Gallons (R)

Certification - NFPA Water Tank Size

Gauge - Water Level, Tank Vision Pro WLA300-A00

Body - Extruded Aluminum, HD77-S Rear Mount Ladder

Body Sub frame - Extruded Aluminum

Body/Compartment Construction - HD57 / HD77 Aerials

Wheel Well Panels & Fenders - Body, Painted Aluminum

Hose Bed - EZ Stack, Right Rear

Compartments - Left Side, Rescue Style w/NO Hose Chute

L1

There shall be one-(1) compartment forward of the rear wheels. The inter

compartment dimensions shall be approximately 60" wide x 66-1/4" high x 1

deep.

L2
There shall be one-(1) high side compartment over the rear wheels. The inte

or
|4n

ior

dimensions of the compartment shall be approximately 36" wide x 38" high x

24" deep.

L3

There shall be one-(1) high side compartment over the rear outrigger. The

interior dimensions of the compartment shall be approximately 42" wide x
high x 24" deep.

L4

There shall be one-(1) compartment behind the rear outrigger. The inteJior

dimensions of the compartment shall be approximately 31" wide x 58-1/4" hi
24" deep.

Compartment Door - Left Side Roll Up, ROM Satin Finish
Keyed Lock - Roll-Up Door, Left Side

Compartments - Right Side, Rescue Style w/EZ Stack

R1

There shall be one-(1) compartment forward of the rear wheels. The inter|
compartment dimensions shall be approximately 60" wide x 71-3/4" high x 1
deep in the lower section and 12" deep in the upper.

R2

0"

h x

or
}4"

There shall be one-(1) compartment behind the rear outrigger. The inteIior

~ & AR

FE
FE
FE
FE




02/18/2021 Page 7

DESCRIPTION QTy 1D
dimensions of the compartment shall be approximately 55-1/2" wide x 28" hig
24" deep.
56-D8-2030 > Compartment Door - Right Side Roll Up, ROM Satin Finish 2| FE
56-D8-4020 > Keyed Lock - Roli-Up Door, Right Side 2| FE
56-D8-4420 < > Pull Down Strap - Compartment Door 1| FE
The strap shall be located on compartment L1.
56-E2-0220 Turntable Access - Swing Out, Left Rear 1| FE
56-E4-0220 Compartment - Ladder/Pike Pole Storage, Torque Box 1|FE
56-E4-1030 Compartment Door - Ladder Compartment, ROM Satin Finish Roll Up 1| FE
56-E4-4020 Tubes (6) - Pike Pole Storage 1|FE
56-E4-6820 Cover Plates - Outrigger, Stainless Steel 1|FE
60-A2-4820 Vertical Load Test - Body 1|FE
64-B2-0430 > Compartment - Wheel Well Double Air Bottle, Left Front (FFA) 1| FE
64-B4-0430 Compartment - Wheel Well Double Air Bottle, Left Rear (FFA) 1| FE
64-B4-6230 > Compartment - Wheel Well Double Air Bottle, Right Front (FFA) 1| FE
64-B6-6230 Compartment - Wheel Well Double Air Bottle, Right Rear (FFA) 1| FE
64-B8-0220 Doors - Wheel Well Compartments, Stainless Steel 1| FE
66-A2-0420 Body Trim Package 1|FE
66-A2-2420 Fuel Fill - Recessed w/Door, Left Side 1| FE
66-A2-4420 Mud Flaps - Rear 1|FE
66-A2-4620 Rub Rail - Extruded Aluminum 1| FE
66-A4-4420 < Step - Chrome Folding, Front of Body 2| FE
The steps shall be located, one-(1) each side, on the front compartment face.
66-A4-8820 Tow Eyes (2) - Rear, Below Body 1|FE
66-A4-8900 Storage Rack - Qutrigger Ground Pads 1|FE
66-A4-8940 Pads (2) - Magnetic Auxiliary Stabilizer 1| FE
66-A6-0620 Handrails (2) - Aerial Access, Knurled Aluminum 1| FE
66-A6-6420 Handrail - Front of Body, 12" Knurled Aluminum 2| FE
66-A8-4220 Cover - Hose Bed, Hypalon 1|FE
66-A8-6420 End Flap - Hypalon w/Snaps, Hose Bed 1| FE
66-A8-8020 Cover/End Flap Color: Red 1 |FE
66-A8-8820 Hose Bed Capacity 1|FE
== Body Components - Aerials - 419.001 04/03/19 == 1|FE
== Aerial Ladder - Rear Mount, HD77 - 419.001 04/03/19 == 1| FE
68-A2-2420 Ladder - 77' Rear Mount 1| FE
68-A6-0420 Specifications - 77' Rear Mount Ladder 1|FE
68-B2-0420 Construction / Dimensions - 77' Rear Mount Ladder 1| FE
68-C2-1020 Covers - Rung, Serrated Rubber 1| FE
68-C2-2020 Egress - Bolt-On 1| FE
68-C2-2220 Steps (2) - Folding, Fly Section 1| FE
68-C2-2420 Eyelets - Rescue, Aerial Fly Seclion 1| FE
68-C2-4020 Extension Indicator Base Section 1| FE
68-C2-4420 Angle Indicator - Lighted, Aerial Base Section 1| FE
68-C2-6420 < > Sign Plates (2), Ladder Base Section, Job Color 1| FE
The paint color/code shall be red FLNA 31979.
68-C4-0420 Torque Box 1| FE
68-C4-6020 > Travel Support - Rear Mount Ladders, Heavy Duty 1| FE
68-D2-0420 Hydraulic System 1| FE
68-D2-4020 Power Take-Off 1| FE
68-D4-0420 Hydraulic Pump w/Aux. Pump for Hyd. Generator under 15K 1| FE
68-D4-8020 Gauges - Hydraulic Pressure 1| FE
68-D4-8420 Kit - Filter Isolation 1| FE
68-D4-8620 Emergency Pump 1| FE
68-D4-8820 Swivel - Hydraulic 1| FE
68-D4-9020 Swivel - Electric 1| FE
68-D6-0420 Elevation System 1| FE




02/18/2021
PART NO
68-D6-4220
68-D6-6820
68-D6-8020
68-D8-0420
68-D8-2220
68-D8-4020
68-E2-0620
68-E2-4020
68-E4-1020
68-E4-2040
68-E4-4020
68-E4-6220
68-E6-0220
68-F2-0220
68-F2-1020
68-F4-0820
68-F6-1320
68-F6-2020
68-F6-2220
68-F6-8020
68-G2-0220
68-G2-0420
68-G2-0620
68-G2-0820
68-G2-1020
68-H2-0420
68-H2-2220
68-H2-4420
68-H4-0630
68-H4-8820
68-H6-6020
68-H8-2020
68-J2-0220
68-M2-0220
68-M2-2820
68-M4-2020
68-M6-1220
68-M8-1420
68-P2-0420
68-R2-0420
68-R2-2620
68-S2-0420
68-56-0220
68-56-2420
68-T2-0220
68-T2-4020
68-T2-8020
68-T8-2020

70-A2-2032
70-A2-4020
70-A2-6020
70-A2-8020

70-E2-2220

S

DESCRIPTION

Extension / Retraction System
Extension / Retraction System Pulleys - Greaseless
Wear Pads / Bearing Surfaces
Rotation Bearing - Heavy Duty
Rotation Gear Box
Tool Kit
Stabilizers - Rear
Outrigger Cylinder Stroke
Locks - Stabilizer, Mechanical
Hot Dip Galvanizing - Outriggers
Stabilizer - Extension System
Lights - Stabilizer Work, LED
Lights - Stabilizer Warning, LED
Controls - Stabilizer, Electric/Hydraulic
Controls - Ground Station
Turntable - Cut-off Right Side
Safety Chain - Stainless Steel
Controls - Turntable Console
Door Ajar Pre-Wire - Console Lid
Load Sensing System - Automatic
Interlock System - Aerial Stow Operation w/indicator Light
Interlock System - Cab/ Body Damage Control
Interlock System - Rotation
Retraction Safety System
Interlock System - Cradle
Waterway System
Waterway Material
Waterway - Retractable / Dual Position, Electric
Monitor - Akron 3480 w/5178 1500 GPM Nozzle, 165-Degree Travel
Capabilities Monitor Flowing Water
Master Stream - Controls, Tip/Turntable
Valve - Waterway Relief ,
Communication System - 2 Way/2 Station
Electrical System - E-Chain
Lights (4) - Turntable Work, LED
Spotlights (2) - Aerial Base Section, Whelen Pioneer Micro MPBW
Floodlight - Left Aerial Tip Section, Whelen PFH1
Spotlight - Right Aerial Tip Section, Whelen PCH1
Lighting - Blue LED Rung lllumination
Paint - Aerial Device, Gray
Paint - Aerial Monitor, Red
Load Chart - Aerial
Safely Signs - Aerial Applications, NFPA 2016
Plate - Aerial Information Specification
Testing - Third Party
Testing - Stability
Certificate - Inspection
Internal Corrosion Protection
== Elec. Components - Aerial RM Custom - 419.001 04/03/19 ==

***** ELECTRICAL / COMPONENTS / ACCESSORIES *****
Electrical System - Apparatus Body
Electrical System - 12 Volt Testing
12-Voit Wiring Protection - Split Loom
EMI/RFI Protection

AUDIBLE WARNING DEVICES
INTERIOR COMPARTMENT LIGHTING
< > Light - LED Compartment, On Scene Solutions Access Series

The shall be one-(1) light installed in each compartment (this includes the lafdar
compartment).




02/18/2021
PART NO

70-H2-0220

72-G8-9020

72-P8-0420
72-56-4020

74-C8-1620

74-D8-1220

74-E8-1420
74-G8-1020

74-H8-2020
74-J4-0620
74-J4-2620

74-10-2220
74-1.2-4020
74-L2-4420

74-L2-4820

74-P2-1620

80-C2-0220
80-C2-0420
80-D2-1220
80-E2-0220
80-E4-0420
80-E4-8020
80 E8-0220
80-E8-0620
80-E8-4020
80-G2-0220
80-G8-1820
80-H2-0220

98-A2-0420
98-A2-1020
98-A2-4220
98-A4-0210
98-A4-0420
98-A6-0210
98-A6-0220
98-A6-1020
98-A8-0220
98-A8-0420

S DESCRIPTION QTyY

Switch - Compartment Daoor Ajar Indicator

Zone A Upper Light Bars (2) - 22" LED Forward Facing, Whelen Freedom IV
FANMINI

Zone B/D Upper Body Side Rear Lights (2) - Red w/Clear Lens LINZ6 LED,
Whelen

Zone C Upper Outboard Lights (4) - Red w/Clear Lens LINZ6 LED, Whelen
LINZ6R

Zone B & D Lower Front (2) - Red w/Clear Lens LINZ6 LED, Whelen LINZ6R
The lights shall be located, one-(1) each side, on the bumper extension ends.

A

Zone B & D Lower Midship (2) - Red w/Clear Lens LINZ6 LED, Whelen
LINZ6R
The lights shall be located, one-(1) each side, in the body wheel well area.

A

Lights (2) - Outrigger Cover Plate, Whelen LINZ6R
Zone B & D Lower Rear (2) - Red w/Clear Lens LINZ6 LED, Whelen LINZ6R
The lights shall be located, one-(1) each side, below compartments L4 and R2.

A

Zone C Lower Lights (2) - Red w/Clear Lens M6 LED, Whelen M6RC
Stop/Turn/Reverse Lights - LED, Whelen M6
Housing - Rear Tail Light Assembly, M6FCV4

12-VOLT APPARATUS LIGHTING / ACCESSORIES
Lights - LED Clearance and Maker
Light - LED License, Whelen OSCOEDCR
Light - LED Perimeter lllumination, Whelen 3SCOCDCR
The light shall be located on the front hose bed wall and shall be activated ith
the pump panel light switch.

A

Light - LED Perimeter lllumination, Whelen PELCC
The light shall be located in the dunnage area and shall be activated with|the
pump panel light switch.

A

< > Lights (2) - M6 LED Scene, Whelen M6ZC
The scene lights shall be installed, one-(1) each side on the upper rear inbdard
corners of the body.

== Paint - Ladder/Platfrom - 419.001 04/03/19 ==
Painl - Body/Cab

> Paint Color/Code: Red FLNA 31979 (FFA Red 1)
Interior Compartment Finish - Natural

> Stripe - Scotchlite, 4"
Striping Color: White
Striping Layout: Straight Down Cab/Body
Striping - Rear Body, Relleclive Chevron
Chevron Striping Colors: 3M Red & Lime Green
Reflective Material - Designated Walking Surfaces
Lettering - 3" Spun Gold w/Shade
Letters - Aerial Sign Plates
Sign Plates - Aerial Lettering (Specify Color)
== Warranty / Manuals - Aerials Custorm RML - 419.007 04/03/19 ==
Warranty - Body Parts & Labor, 2-Year
Warranty - Cab/Chassis Parts & Labor, 2-Year
Warranty - Aerial/Platform, F-Series
Warranty - Cab Structural, 10-Year/100,000 Miles
Warranty - Body Structure, 10-Year/100,000 Miles
Warranty - Cab Paint/Perforation, 10 Year
Warranty - Body Paint/Perforation, 10 Year
Warranty - Frame Corrosion "F"-Shield"
Warranty - Frame Rails, Lifetime
Warranty - Meritor Axle, 2-Year/Unlimited Miles

_L—L*_L_A—L—LN_L_Lﬂ_Lo)_L—L_L—L_L—L_L—L_L—Lﬂ

-~

L Sl W T Gy

FE

FE




02/18/2021

98-A8-4220
98-A8-4420
98-A8-4620
98-A8-6020
98-A8-8020
98-A8-8420
98-B2-0220
98-B2-1220
98-B2-1820
98-B2-2020
98-B2-2220
98-B2-6020
98-B2-6620

90-A2-0420
90-B4-0220
90-B4-0820
90-C4-0420

90-C6-0620

90-D4-2020

90-D6-1020

90-E4-0620

90-L6-0220

90-L6-0420

90-L6-0820

92-C4-2620

92-F4-0820

96-C2-0220

96-E2-0220

v

DESCRIPTION
Warranty - Cummins Engine, 5-Year/100,000 Miles
Warranty - Allison Automatic Transmission, 5-Year/Unlimited Miles
Warranty - Anti Lock Brake System, 3-Year/300,000 Miles
Warranty - Hale Pumps
Warranty - Plumbing System, 10-Year
Warranty - Poly Water Tank, Lifetime
Manuals (2) - Chassis Operation, Digital
Manuals (2) - Engine/Transmission Operations
Manuals - Apparatus Body & Components
Manuals - Pump
Safety Guide - FAMA
Wiring Diagrams - Cab/Chassis, Standard
Wiring Diagrams - Apparatus Body, Standard
== Loose Equipment Pkg. - Platform - 419.001 04/03/19 ==
Equipment Package - NFPA 1901 2016, Fire Department Supplied
ISO Compliant Aerial Ladders
ISO Compliant Aerial Ladders - Alco Lite/Duo-Safety
Ladder - 10’ Folding Attic, Duo-Safety 585-A
The ladder shall be located in the torque box.

Ladder - 16" Roof, Alco-Lite PRL-16
The ladders shall be located in the torque box.

Ladder - 14° Combination, Duo Safety 35-B-14'
The ladder shall be located in the torque box.

Ladder - 24’ 2-Section Extension, Alco-Lite PEL-24
The ladder shall be located in the torque box.

Ladder - 35' 3-Section Extension, Alco-Lite PEL3-35
The ladders shall be located in the torque box.

Pike Pole - 6' Fiberglass
The pike poles shall be located in the torque box.

Pike Pole - 8' Fiberglass
The pike poles shall be located in the torque box.

Pike Pole - 12’ Fiberglass
The pike poles shall be located in the torque box.

Elbow - 3" FNST x 5" Storz 30 Degree, Kochek SKE53R
The elbow shall be located on the 3" right side discharge.

Cap w/Chain - 5" Storz, Kochek CC507
The cap shall be located on the 3" right side discharge elbow.

Wheel Chocks (2) - Folding, Ziamatic SAC-44-E w/Mounting Bracket

The chocks shall be located below compartment L1.

Pompier Ladder Belt

L S S R G e T T G G G G G G

FE

FE

FE

FE

FE

FE

FE

FE

FE

FE




13 DRARTUL T3 G7Y % TEmscaues B 0% i
WITHOUT THk !Hrim Flmllum’ nmﬁ IR

UNAUTHERIZED <
TULLEST EXTENT OF THE LAW,

A6 FOLDIN 10)_|
|14 COMBO l"h m c,||_.|4

3 mms lNI M wum
APPRONIMATE ANG ARE SUNJCCT TO DEVIATIONS THAT MAY OCCUR O BE
WECESSARY DURING COMSTRUCTION, SONT DTTANN WAY WAT Ar siins
.urm.-u—\ I
" LETRAS
= -
=1 o= -
=
o R 1 (ad
rALTL e
o A
o = — ]
VAL BASE)

remGroup
CINDER HD /7 DEMD

JOB NO.: H6619 / CH2881
1500 GPM HALE QMAX PUMP
500 GALLON WATER TANK

weme
° [ BT W

LN S 18 a3

LN W LD

Teage wh

-6t EIVERALL LEMGTIO




DEMO HD77 H6619 77' REAR MOUNT LADDER




DEMO HD77 H6619 77' REAR MOUNT LADDER




DEMO HD77 H6619 77' REAR MOUNT LADDER




Jim Stover
Regional Sales Manager
C: 225-235-2212
E: Jim.stover@ferrarafire.com

FERRARA®»

/R=\VGROUP




¢
FERRARA» Fire Apparatus Proposal

R=VGROUP

Ferrara Fire Apparatus, Inc.

27855 James Chapel Road March 30 2021
Holden, LA 70744 QUOTE NUMBER  H6619-0006
225-235-2212 PAGE 1 0OF 1
jim.stover@ferrarafire.com VALID FOR  Until 04-30-2021

TO Chief Michael Cousins

Thomas Township Fire Department ATTN: Chief Michael Cousins

8215 Shields Drive PHONE 989-781-4141

Saginaw, Ml 48609 Fax 989-781-6059

EMAIL mcousins@thomastwp.org

RFQ or Bid Number RFQ or Bid Description CUSTOMER Customer Contact
NUMBER
HD77 Demo H6619 Gary Salo
PO or Contract Number Delivery Terms R Payment Terms
Delivery
FOB Thomas Township, Michigan Due at Delivery

LINE MFG, LIST

TY | [TEM NUMBER DESCRIPTION
ITEM Q PRICE UNIT PRICE EXTENDED

1 H6619 Ferrara Cinder HD77 Aerial Demo H6619 500 Gallons / 1750 GPM $708,526.00 $708,526.00

Shop Order HD77RML-0005 Dated 2-18-2021

1 Change Order shelving, trays and hardware dated March 30 2021 $16,751.00 $16,751.00

1 Credit Credit for final inspection travel -$1,860.00 -$1,860.00
Quotation approved for purchase by: Micheal Cousins Fire Chief SUBTOTAL $723,417.00

Signature

***Quotation provided is only valid for items above, and will be honored until April 30 or unti unit selfs,
per terms and conditions stated above. Payment shall be received in the time frame and method, as stated above. This quote is non-transferable, and can
only be used by the customer stated above. If you have any questions, please feel free to give us a call. A Ferrara apparatus contract shall be part of this
purchase and a PO from the buyer if a PO is used for this type of purchase by the purchaser. Contract to follow upon review and approval by the Thomas
Township. TOTAL $723,417.00

THANK YOU FOR THE OPPORTUNITY TO PROVIDE YOU WITH A PROPQOSAL






---------- Forwarded message ---------

From: David Desrochers <ddesrochers@apollofire.com>
Date: Tue, Apr 6, 2021 at 17:21

Subject: RE: Aerial Demo

To: GASalo <gasfirex@gmail.com>

CC: Bob Konupek <bkonupek@apollofire.com>

Hi Gary,

The Sutphen SLR75 demo # 502 (HS-6961) as specified is $ 825,623.41 delivered. It does
include a lettering package, and in-service training and a shelving package. You guys may add
some options at this point in the build. Sutphen will hold the truck with a letter of intent to
purchase from your department. The build completion timeline is May 2021.

Let me know if you have any questions or need additional information. Thanks for the
consideration.

Dowvid R. Desrochery

Director of Fire Apparatus Sales
Apolio Fire Equipment Co.
12584 |akeshore Drive

Romeo, Michigan 48065

(800) 626-7783 (O)
(248) 736-3371 (M)
(586) 752-6907 (F)

www.apollofire.com




------ Original Message ------

From: "Gary Salo" <gasfirex@gmail.com>
To: "Wendy Simon" <wsimon@fisi.net>
Sent: 3/19/2021 8:04:03 AM

Subject: Re: Demo

Received, thank you.

On Wed, Mar 17, 2021 at 12:48 PM Wendy Simon <wsimon@flsi.net> wrote:
Hi Gary,

Per your request, here is demo # 75069 specs. Ihave enclosed it in Summary and Detail form.
Price on this truck as it sits is $ 835k.
I am working on pictures. They will be forthcoming.

Let me know if you have any questions.

Thanks

Wendy Simon

Front Line Services, Inc
8588 Carler Road
I'reeland MI 48623

www.flsi.net
989-695-6633 office 989-695-6636 fax 989-284-1658 cell

"The significant problems we face cannot be solved at the same level of
thinking we were at when we created them" ~ Albert Einstein



TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE:  April 12" 2021

SUBMITTED BY: John Corriveau, Parks & Recreation Director

AGENDA TOPIC: Approval of new policy for Park Facility Rentals

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: This agenda item is for a new policy for Park Facility
Rentals. This is not a completely new idea as with events like Rebel Magnolia happening
at Roberts Park we have thought about the possibility of hosting more events in our parks
as a possible new revenue source. This policy would cover such things as renting all the
pavilions in Roethke, the pool, train, depot building, setting up tents and allowing music
exclusively for their event. The park would remain open for people to walk, fish and still
use. With COVID 19 guidelines limiting what people can do indoors we have had an
influx of people asking if they can hold weddings, receptions, company picnics and other
large events that we currently don’t have policies and fees that allow that. The Parks
Department did a lot of research and made calls to other communities to see if and how
they handle such events in their parks. We received a few sample policies and began
reviewing and discussing how we could create a similar policy for our parks. This is a
large document and it contains a lot of information as we tried to cover as many possible
scenarios as we could. I feel we will be able to make it smaller as we move forward and
can narrow it down more. We met with our insurance company to go over liability for
these events, liquor liability and other concerns they/we had. We increased the amount of
liability insurance renters will need, this includes Liquor Liability Insurance when
needed. A Parks Event Committee was formed at our last Park Commission meeting to
review all event request before recommending to the Board for final approval.

MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING INFORMATION: Park Facility Rental
Policy.

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve, Deny, Amend or Table.

SUGGESTED/REQUESTED MOTION: Motion by supported
by to approve the new Park Facility Rental Policy as written.

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED? No




THOMAS TOWNSHIP ADMINSTRATIVE POLICIES

Administrative Policy No: 703 (Page 1 of 12)
Effective Date: April 12, 2021
Amended:

Policy Regarding Park Facility Rentals

Thomas Township has established this policy for the purpose of conveying the rules, regulations and
procedures regarding the use of Thomas Township Parks and facilities. This policy covers the use of the
Roethke Park Pavilions, Roethke Park Pool, Roethke Park Depot and Train, Roberts Park Pavilions, Roberts Park
Soccer Fields, Roberts Park Soccer Complex, Roberts Parks Softball Diamonds and all other Park facilities.

10.
11.
12.
13.

Thomas Township facilities shall be rented on a first-come, first-serve basis. Thomas Township
residents can make reservations starting the first work Monday of January. Non-residents can start
reserving the first work day in February. Reservations may be held for 10 days without payment, but
shall not considered final until the applicable Rental Agreements are completed, deposits/fees are
paid, and insurance is filed, if required. If payment and paperwork is not received by the 10 day,
the reservation will be terminated.

Refunds for pavilion reservation cancellations require a 14-day written notice or no refund will be
granted. Cancellations received 14 days or more before the date reserved will receive a full refund
minus a $20.00 service fee. If a park or facility is closed due to adverse weather conditions or other
causes beyond the control of the Township (plumbing or electrical failure), a full refund shall be
granted or an attempt will be made to accommodate another date.

The Township will have priority use of said facilities for any official meetings or business. A rental
contract approval may be withdrawn if the facility is needed for township use with reasonable
notice provided.

A copy of homeowner’s insurance with at least $300,000 Personal Liability Insurance is required and
must be provided with the rental fee.

If alcohol will be present at any rental, the renter must provide proof of additional liquor liability
insurance of $1,000,000 coverage along with their homeowner’s insurance.

The renter must also name the Township of Thomas; 249 N. Miller Rd. Saginaw, Ml 48609 as
additionally insured with their homeowner’s policy for their rented date.

A $200 deposit is required at the time of reservation. The deposit will be returned in fuli after a
Thomas Township Employee has inspected the rented space and no damages are found. If damages
are found, the deposit will not be returned.

Gambling, of all types, is prohibited in all facilities.

Any fundraising activities must be specified on the rental contract and be approved by Park
Commission.

The operation and parking of motor vehicles is permitted in designated parking areas ONLY.

No loud music or DJ’s are allowed in park unless it is an approved event by the Park Commission.
The use of adhesive tape, staples, nails, etc. on pavilion or any other park structure is prohibited.
All pavilion users must pick up and clean the pavilion, tables and area surrounding their rented
space before leaving. Tables must remain inside pavilion areas at all times.



THOMAS TOWNSHIP ADMINSTRATIVE POLICIES

N A A e A A
Administrative Policy No: 703 (Page 2 of 12)
Effective Date: April 12, 2021
Amended:

Policy Regarding Park Facility Rentals

14. A personal canopy, tent, or inflatable (such as a bounce house) is PROHIBITED in the park at any
time unless approved for an event by the Park Commission

15. No organization may reserve the entire park for any event that excludes the public from using the
park unless otherwise approved.

16. Any variation of these rules must have specific approval of the Thomas Township Parks and
Recreation Commission

17. The Thomas Township Park Commission reserves the right to refuse any request for park use.

18. Pavilion rentals may not set-up prior to the rental date. If renters would like to set up prior to their

reserved date, the day/days they wish to set up must also be rented as well.

19. The renter is legally responsible for any/all damage or accidents which may occur in the rented
facility. Thomas Township shall not be liable for any personal injury or damages that may occur
during the rental period.

20. If there are any problems with the facility on the day of the reservation, it is the responsibility of the
renter to notify Thomas Township on the next business day.

21. The rental contract must be completed by a person of at least 18 years of age who represents the
organization/group requesting the use of the facility. The person completing the contract is
responsible for the conduct of the group, for all fees and charges, and to ensure that the facility is
left in the appropriate condition. They will be liable for any damages.

22. Reservations made for organizations and/or groups of minors must be made by a responsible adult.
There must be sufficient adult supervision at all times during the rental period to assure proper
conduct of the group.

23. The rental fee must be paid in full and Rental Agreement completed in order to finalize a rental
reservation for Roethke Park, Roberts Park, Community Park, Soccer complex.

24. Non-profit Organizations: Thomas Township recognizes that non-profit service organization (50103
and local chapters of national 501©3 organizations) which directly contribute to the social welfare
of Thomas Township have a positive impact in contributing to the social fabric and building a sense
of community. Any such non-profit service organization which is allowed to use Township facilities
at a discounted fee (Monday-Friday) shall still abide by all other requirements of this Facility Rental
Policy including submitting a reservation/application form, copy of insurance and following the rules
of the facility.



THOMAS TOWNSHIP ADMINSTRATIVE POLICIES

Administrative Policy No: 703 (Page 3 of 12)
Effective Date: April 12, 2021
Amended:

Policy Regarding Park Facility Rentals

25. The Board of Trustees by resolution will set rental fees, security deposits, and insurance
requirements for the use of Township facilities.

26. In-kind Donations: The Parks Director may waive the rental fees, security deposits, and insurance
requirements for groups which are providing an in-kind or community reiated donation.

27. Community Events: Thomas Township recognizes that festivals and similar events may have a
positive impact in building a sense of community. On a case-by-case basis, the Park Commission will
review and forward their recommendation to the Board of Trustees who will vote whether or not to
allow use of an entire park(s) and any associated facilities for such an event. The Board of Trustees
may place conditions on the use (for example: review by police and/or fire department, insurance,
parking, emergency access, noise, clean-up, or security).

28. The Park Commission will establish a fee based on what facilities are being rented and the impact to
the park then forward to Board of Trustees for approval for each event.

29. The renter agrees to hold harmless Thomas Township and its employees from any expense or cost in
connection with the use of Township facilities and further agrees to assume all responsibility for
liability of any kind. The Thomas Township Facility Rental Policy is intended to protect the Township
and its residents from any potential liability. This policy is not intended to apply to official Township
meetings and/or activities.



THOMAS TOWNSHIP ADMINSTRATIVE POLICIES

Administrative Policy No: 703 (Page 4 of 12)
Effective Date: April 12, 2021
Amended:

Policy Regarding Park Facility Rentals

Roethke Park Rentals

e Pavilion #1 Fee: S60 resident, $90 non resident

e Pavilion #2: $60 resident, $90 nonresident

e Pavilion #3: S60 resident, $90 nonresident

® Pool Rental Fee: $100 resident, $125 nonresident (7pm-9pm) see rules
* Depot Rental Fee: $80 resident, $110 nonresident, $125 Business

e Band Shell Fee: $150 resident, $200 nonresident, Business $300.

% Non-Profit service organization (501©3 and local chapters of national 501©3 organizations) fees will
be 25% of the cost Monday — Thursday and will be charged 50% cost Friday, Saturday and Sundays.

*New fees have not been approved yet as part of the Fee Schedule

¢ Thomas Township park hours per Thomas Township ordinance are from 7:00 a.m. — 9:00 pm (All
pavilion renters and users must have their rented pavilion cleaned and must vacate the park by 9:00

p-m.)

Pool Rentals

The Thomas Township Pool at Roethke Park shall be rented on a first-come, first-serve basis. Thomas
Township Residents can reserve Park Facilities starting the first work Monday of January of each year. Non-
Residents can start reserving the pool the first work day in February.

A reservation may be reserved but is not final until the application rental agreements are completed,
deposits/fees are paid, and insurance is filed.

1. Pool Rental Fee: $100 resident, $125 nonresident

2. The Thomas Township Pool can be rented from 7:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. Friday, Saturday and
Sunday from mid-June through mid-August.

3. When using the pool during the rented times, renters must follow all pool rules posted and
obey lifeguards at all times.

4. All pool rentals are to follow the general pavilion rental rules and policies.

5. There is no food allowed on the pool deck. There are picnic tables outside the pool area.

% Non-Profit service organization (501©3 and local chapters of national 501©3 organizations) fees will
be 50% of the cost Monday — Thursday and will be charged full cost Friday, Saturday and Sundays.



THOMAS TOWNSHIP ADMINSTRATIVE POLICIES

Administrative Policy No: 703 (Page 5 of 12)
Effective Date: April 12, 2021
Amended:

Policy Regarding Park Facility Rentals

Roberts Park Rentals

Pavilions at Roberts Park shall be rented on a first-come, first-serve basis. Thomas Township Residents can
reserve pavilions starting the first work Monday of January of each year. Non-Residents can start reserving
pavilions the first work day in February.

A reservation may be reserved but is not final until the application rental agreements are completed,
deposits/fees are paid, and insurance is filed.

General Pavilion Rentals

® Roberts Park Soccer Complex
o $200 Resident*
o $250 Non-Resident*
o Business in Thomas: $350, out of Thomas $450
® Roberts Park Big Pavilion
o $200 ($100 per half) Resident*
o $250 ($125 per half) Non-Resident*
© Business in Thomas: $350 per half, out of Thomas $450, per half
e Old Roberts Pavilion
o $75 Resident
o $100 Non-Resident

% Non-Profit service organization (501©3 and local chapters of natlonal 501©3 organizations) fees will
be 50% of the cost Monday — Thursday and will be charged full cost Friday, Saturday and Sundays.

*New fees have not been approved yet as part of the Fee Schedule

» Thomas Township park hours per Township ordinance are from 7:00 a.m. — 9:00 pm (All pavilion
renters and users must have their rented pavilion cleaned and must vacate the park by 9:00 p.m.)



THOMAS TOWNSHIP ADMINSTRATIVE POLICIES

Administrative Policy No: 703 (Page 6 of 12)
Effective Date: April 12, 2021
Amended:

Policy Regarding Park Facility Rentals

EVENT RENTALS

Thomas Township has established this policy for the purpose of conveying the rules, regulations and
procedures regarding the use of Thomas Township Parks and facilities. This policy covers how events at
Roethke Park and Roberts Park are requested and the steps required for Thomas Township approval.

1. Thomas Township recognizes that festivals and similar events may have a positive impact in building a
sense of community. On a case-by-case basis, the Park Commission will review and forward their
recommendation to the Board of Trustees who will vote whether or not to allow the use of an entire
park(s) and any associated facilities for such an event.

2. The Board of Trustees may place conditions on the use (for example: review by police and/or fire
department, insurance, parking, emergency access, noise, clean-up, or security).

3. Event fees are established per park based on what facilities are at each park, the outdoor space and
the impact events will have on the parks.

4. Any request for an event must go must be submitted_in writing with a full detailed explanation at
least TWO months prior to the start date of the event.

5. The person making the request for the event must attend a Park Commission meeting prior to the
event start date to seek approval for their request. The Park Commission will give their
recommendation to the Thomas Township Board of Trustees for final approval.

6. If approved, the renter will sign into contract with Thomas Township outlining the event with park
rules and policies along with all fees required to rent the park for their event. The Thomas Township
Park Commission and Thomas Township Board of Trustees has the right to deny any request for any
reason.

7. All organizations, leagues, and vendors shall secure and maintain, at no expense to Thomas Township,
a comprehensive general liability policy (Insurance) issued by one or more companies authorized to do
business in the State of Michigan.

a) The renter must provide Thomas Township Parks and Recreation Department with a certificate
of insurance verification at the time of the application submittal.

b) Said policy must name Township of Thomas; 249 N. Miller Rd. Saginaw, MI 48609 as
additionally insured.

c) Liability limits shall be $1,000,000 combined single limit for personal injury and property
damage; including acts of negligence, errors and mistakes.

d) If alcohol will be present at the event, Insurance must also include $1,000,000 of liquor liability
coverage.




THOMAS TOWNSHIP ADMINSTRATIVE POLICIES

Administrative Policy No: 703 (Page 7 of 12)
Effective Date: April 12, 2021
Amended:

Policy Regarding Park Facility Rentals

8. The insurance policy must be read through and be approved by the Parks and Recreation Director.
After the renter has presented their event to the Thomas Township Parks Commission, the Thomas
Township Parks Commission will make their recommendation to allow or not allow the event to the
Thomas Township Board for final Approval.

9. The renter agrees to hold harmless Thomas Township and its employees from any expense or cost in
connection with the use of Township facilities and further agrees to assume all responsibility for
liability of any kind. The Thomas Township Facility Rental Policy is intended to protect the Township
and its residents from any potential liability.

10. A 25% Non-Refundable deposit is required at the time of the initial Event Request. Once approved by
the Thomas Township Board of Trustees, the renter has 10 days from the date of contact notifying
them of the events approval to pay the remaining 75% of the fees due.

11. Fees are not refundable due to inclement weather. Fee adjustments may be made at the discretion of
the Thomas Township Parks and Recreation Director and the Thomas Township Board of Trustees.

For Profit Rentals:

® Roberts Park Event Rental Fee for use of Entire Park and Facilities
o Friday 5pm untill Noon Sunday
o $5,000 Base fee for groups selling or making profit from event.
= Separate fee for staffing, police, fire or other additional cost to be added by Thomas
Township as determined by Board of Trustees.
o Detailed event layout and approval by Park Commission required prior to rental agreement.
® Roethke Park Event Rental Fee for use of Entirc Park and Facilities
o Friday 5pm until Noon Sunday
o $4,000
o Detailed event layout and approval by Park Commission required prior to rental
agreement.

For Non- Profit Rentals:

* Roberts Park Gatherings/Business picnics - $1,500 includes all pavilions, ball diamonds and grass
parking lot.
= Roethke Park Gatherings/Business picnics

Train, pool, depot building, bandshell all three pavilions $2,000*



THOMAS TOWNSHIP ADMINSTRATIVE POLICIES

Administrative Policy No: 703 (Page 8 0f 12)
Effective Date: April 12, 2021
Amended:

Policy Regarding Park Facility Rentals
SPORT RENTALS

Thomas Township has established this policy for the purpose of conveying the rules, regulations and
procedures regarding the use of Thomas Township Parks and facilities. This policy covers how sports and field
rentals are to be requested and the steps required for Thomas Township approval.

Roberts Park Softball Diamonds

1. Field rentals will follow the same rental rules, regulations and procedures as a pavilion rental. Refer to
the Parks and Facility Rental Policy.
2. Fields are available for rent Monday — Sunday, April 15 through September 30.

Field Use Priorities

a) Thomas Township sponsored or co-sponsored activates/programs

b) Government agencies serving Thomas Township, Including Swan Valley School District.

¢) Thomas Township Community Service Groups, Civic Organizations, designated Youth Sports
Providers

d) Thomas Township Residents, groups, agencies and businesses

e) Non-resident, non-resident groups/organizations

3. Thomas Township park hours per Township ordinance are from 7:00 a.m. — 9:00 pm (All games /
tournaments must be completed by 8:45 p.m.)

4. Groups or individuals renting the fields are only authorized to utilize the fields specified and approved
in the application process.

5. The rental fee must be paid in full and rental agreement must be completed to finalize any field
rentals.

6. All organizations, leagues, and vendors shall secure and maintain, at no expense to Thomas Township,
a comprehensive general liability policy (Insurance) issued by one or more companies authorized to do
business in the State of Michigan

a) The renter must provide Thomas Township Parks and Recreation Department with a certificate
of insurance verification at the time of the application submittal.

b) Said policy must name Township of Thomas; 249 N. Miller Rd. Saginaw, MI 48609 as
additionally insured.

c) Liability limits shall be $1,000,000 combined single limit for personal injury and property
damage; including acts of negligence, errors and mistakes.

d) The insurance policy must read and approved by the Parks and Recreation Director.



THOMAS TOWNSHIP ADMINSTRATIVE POLICIES

Administrative Policy No: 703 (Page 9 of 12)
Effective Date: April 12, 2021
Amended:

Policy Regarding Park Facility Rentals

e} Residents can rent fields individually for $75 or all 4 can be rented for a sporting event for
$325 Monday through Thursday.

f) Non-Residents can rent fields individually for $100 or all 4 can be rented for a sporting event
for $425 Monday through Thursday.

7. For weekend/multiple day (tournaments) residents can rent all 4 fields for $450 or Non-Residents can
rent all 4 fields for $550. (There is a separate rental form that must be completed for tournaments)

8. Multiple day field rentals must be approved by The Parks Commission

9. Striping and dragging ball diamonds: $35 per diamond, per time.

10. Fees are not refundable due to inclement weather. Fee adjustments may be made at the discretion of
the Thomas Township Parks and Recreation Director and the Thomas Township Board of Trustees.

11. If atournament is cancelled for any reason other than weather, 50% of the fee will be refunded.

SOCCER FIELDS

1. Field rentals will follow the same rental rules, regulations and procedures as a pavilion rental. Refer to
the Parks and Facility Rental Policy.

2. Fields are available for rent Monday — Sunday, April 15 through September 30.

Field Use Priorities

a) Thomas Township sponsored or co-sponsored activates/programs
b) Government agencies serving Thomas Township, Including Swan Valley School District.

¢) Thomas Township Community Service Groups, Civic Organizations, designated Youth Sports
Providers

d) Thomas Township Residents, groups, agencies and businesses
e) Non-resident, non-resident groups/organizations

3. Thomas Township park hours per ThomasTownship ordinance are from 7:00 a.m. — 9:00 pm (All games
/ tournaments must be completed by 8:45 p.m.)

4. Renters are only authorized to utilize the specific fields specified and approved in the application
process.

5. The rental fee must be paid in full and rental agreement must be completed to finalize any field
rentals.

6. All organizations, leagues, and vendors shall secure and maintain, at no expense to Thomas Township,

a comprehensive general liability policy (Insurance) issued by one or more companies authorized to do
business in the State of Michigan



Administrative Policy No: 703 (Page 10 of 12)
Effective Date: April 12, 2021
Amended:

Policy Regarding Park Facility Rentals

7. The renter must provide Thomas Township Parks and Recreation Department with a certificate of
insurance verification at the time of the application submittal.
a. Said policy must name Township of Thomas; 249 N. Miller Rd. Saginaw, MI 48609 as
additionally insured.
b. Liability limits shall be $1,000,000 combined single limit for personal injury and property
damage; including acts of negligence, errors and mistakes.
c. The insurance policy must be read through and be approved by the Parks and Recreation
Director.
8. Field Rentals must be approved by the Parks Commission
9. Fee: One soccer field, with nets for one day $75 for practice only.

10. Fee for games or tournament $250 resident per field, $300 Non-Resident per field (*Must use Thomas
Township Concessions; no outside concession or food allowed.)

11. Fees are not refundable due to inclement weather. Fee adjustments may be made at the discretion of
the Thomas Township Parks and Recreation Director and the Thomas Township Board of Trustees.
% If atournament is cancelled for any reason other than weather, 50% of the fee will be refunded.

Sand Volleyball

1. Court rentals will follow the same rental rules, regulations and procedures as a pavilion rental. Refer
to the Parks and Facility Rental Policy.

2. Courts are available for rent Monday ~ Sunday, April 15 through September 30

3. Thomas Township park hours per Township ordinance are from 7:00 a.m. — 9:00 pm (All games /
tournaments must be completed by 8:45 p.m.)

4. The rental fee must be paid in full and rental agreement must be completed to finalize any field
rentals.

5. All organizations, leagues, and vendors shall secure and maintain, at no expense to Thomas
Township, a comprehensive general liability policy (Insurance) issued by one or more companies
authorized to do business in the State of Michigan

a) The renter must provide Thomas Township Parks and Recreation Department with a certificate
of insurance verification at the time of the application submittal.
Said policy must name Township of Thomas; 249 N. Miller Rd. Saginaw, Mi 48609 as
additionally insured.

b) Liability limits shall be $1,000,000 combined single limit for personal injury and property
damage; including acts of negligence, errors and mistakes.

c) Theinsurance policy must be read and be approved by the Parks and Recreation Director.

Administrative Policy No: 703 (Page 11 of 12)



THOMAS TOWNSHIP ADMINSTRATIVE POLICIES

Effective Date:
Amended:

April 12, 2021

Policy Regarding Park Facility Rentals

6. If courts are being rented for practice purposes, insurance is not required.
7. Fees for Court Rentals Monday - Thursday
i. Resident - $50 per court
ii. Nonresident - $75 per court.
®= Fee for Court Rental Friday, Saturday and Sunday (Weekend/Tournaments)
i. Residents - $300 (Roberts); $400 {Roethke)

8. Fees are not refundable due to inclement weather. Fee adjustments may be made at the discretion
of the Thomas Township Parks and Recreation Director and the Thomas Township Board of
Trustees.

9. If atournament is cancelled for any reason other than weather, 50% of the fee will be refunded.

Disc Golf Course

1. Course rentals will follow the same rental rules, regulations and procedures as a pavilion rental.
Refer to the Parks and Facility Rental Policy.
2. Disk Course is available for rent Monday — Sunday, April 15 through September 30

3. Thomas Township park hours per Township ordinance are from 7:00 a.m. —9:00 pm (All games /
tournaments must be completed by 8:45 p.m.)

4. The rental fee must be paid in full and rental agreement must be completed to finalize any field
rentals.

5. All organizations, leagues, and vendors shall secure and maintain, at no expense to Thomas
Township, a comprehensive general liability policy (Insurance) issued by one or more
companies authorized to do business in the State of Michigan

a) The renter must provide Thomas Township Parks and Recreation Department with a
certificate of insurance verification at the time of the application submittal.

b) Said policy must name Township of Thomas; 249 N. Miller Rd. Saginaw, MI 48609 as
additionally insured.

c) Liability limits shall be $1,000,000 combined single limit for personal injury and property
damage; including acts of negligence, errors and mistakes.

d) The insurance policy must be read through and be approved by the Parks and Recreation
Director.

6. Disc Course rentals must be approved by the Parks Commission
Fee to rent course for day $350

Administrative Policy No: 703 (Page 12 of 12)



THOMAS TOWNSHIP ADMINSTRATIVE POLICIES

Effective Date: April 12, 2021

Amended:

Policy Regarding Park Facility Rentals
Field Use Priorities

a) Thomas Township sponsored or co-sponsored activates/programs

b) Government agencies serving Thomas Township, Including Swan Valley School District.

¢) Thomas Township Community Service Groups, Civic Organizations, designated Youth Sports Providers
d) Thomas Township Residents, groups, agencies and businesses

e) Non-resident, non-resident groups/organizations



u - u

F- I.-II-__ - H . N I .

. o
.
:
:

u
-

.
.
.
.
.
I
.
u
I I I N B . T B . I B N

==




THOMAS TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE:  April 12,2021

SUBMITTED BY:  Dan Sika, Community Development Director

AGENDA TOPIC: Rob Eggers from Spicer Group to go over the updated Master Plan

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC:  Thomas Township is required to review and if
necessary, update the Community Master Plan every 5 years. During much of 2020 and
into 2021 the Township Planning Commission has been doing the review and update of
the Plan, in-between Covid-19 delays. Tonight, the final updated Master Plan will be
presented to the Township Board. I have asked Rob Eggers from Spicer Group to attend
the meeting and briefly highlight the document because of the work that he has done
helping the Planning Commission with the update process. The Planning Commission
approved the updated Master Plan at the March 17, 2021 regular meeting by resolution.
No additional action is necessary by the Township Board at this time.

The review and update process went very well and I feel that Township has a very good
plan for the next 5 years. Rob Eggers will conduct a short presentation.

MATERIALS ATTACHED: A copy of the Thomas Township Master Plan as updated.

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: None necessary Rob Eggers from Spicer Group
will conduct a short presentation highlighting the updated Master Plan.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: No action necessary

ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED: No vote is necessary




g1 & =N

I R

= .
b =
|. .
o -
r

LI_] N B . u



TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: April 12,2021

SUBMITTED BY: Russ Taylor, Township Manager

AGENDA TOPIC: Discuss local State of Emergency as declared by Saginaw County
as it relates to future public meeting formats.

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: If things were not confusing enough, we now have to
consider what format we will use to hold public meetings for Township business. This
would include not only Township Board meetings, but Planning Commission, Park
Commission, Zoning Board of Appeals and all other similar meetings. Saginaw County
declared a local State of Emergency on April 1% that is set to expire on April 8"
Meanwhile, the County Board of Commissioners will be considering an extension this
declaration for a time period that has yet to be determined. This declaration of a “local
State of Emergency” permits communities within the County to hold virtual meetings
such as we have held for several months now via Zoom. Our meeting on the 12 will be
our first in-person meeting in quite some time now. This is because the State’s legislative
exception to the Open Meetings Act has expired. In its place, the State did make the
allowance to enable Counties to declare this “local State of Emergency” in place of it.

I really do not have a clear knowledge of every Board members’ perspective on virtual
versus in-person meetings during this time of the COVID pandemic. And, I believe that
this is clearly a Board decision that exceeds my authority as Manager. So, I am asking for
your collective direction as to how you wish to proceed. As I understand it at this time (I
will research further before Monday as the information is brand new), we have three
options:
"1. Hold all meetings in-person.
2. Hold all meetings virtually.
3. Offer a hybrid option of in-person and zoom.

We are prepared to conduct the meetings however the Board directs.



Page 2 of 2
April 12,2021

o MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING INFORMATION: Declaration of a
local State of Emergency by the Saginaw County Board ol Commissioners.

o POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve, Amend, Deny or Table.

o SUGGESTED/REQUESTED MOTION: None.

e ROLL CALL VOTE REQUIRED: No.




COUNTY OF SAGINAW

111 SouTH MICHIGAN AVENUE
SAGINAW, MICHIGAN 48602
PHONE (989) 790-5200 FraXx (989) 790-5566

Saginaw County COVID-19 Local Emergency Declaration

April 1, 2021

The novel coronavirus (COVID-19) is a respiratory disease that can result in severe illness or death.
COVID-19 and its variant are caused by a strain of coronavirus that had not been previously identified
in humans and can quickly spread from person-to-person.

On March 18, 2020, the first COVID-19 death was confirmed in Wayne County, Michigan. Since that
date, there have been 16,912 COVID-19 related deaths in Michigan, with 527 in Saginaw County.
Since the first cases were confirmed in Saginaw County, the daily COVID-19 positivity rate in Saginaw
County has fluctuated with a high of 25.6% and a low 2.7%. The 7-day average positivity rate has
trended up since early March 2021 and is currently at 10.5%.

The Director of the MDHHS has concluded that the COVID-19 pandemic continues to constitute an
epidemic in Michigan and that control of the epidemic requires restrictions on public gatherings.
Current CDC, MDHHS, and/or MIOSHA recommendations continue to be for staff to work remotely
when possible, for personnel to wear masks when unable to distance a minimum of six-feet, and to
reduce capacities when the nature of the gathering or design of the space limits the ability to
maintain six-foot distancing between people in attendance. While it is possible to control the
number of attendees at certain daily functions such as appointments at a county facility or court
hearings, by their very nature, it is not possible to control the number of attendees at a public
meeting.

Because of the ever-evolving circumstances related to the spread of COVID-19 and the inability to
control the number of public who may attend an open meeting, Saginaw County and other public
bodies in local jurisdictions may find it necessary to conduct public meetings virtually to reduce the
risk of spread to members of the public, government staff, or members of public bodies. To
accommodate the specific need of protecting the public, staff, and other attendees at public
meetings, where capacity is unknown or unable to be controlled, Saginaw County is declaring a Local
State of Emergency to allow the continued use of virtual public meetings.



COUNTY OF SAGINAW

111 SocutH MicHIGAN AVENUE
SaGcinaw, MICHIGAN 48602
PHONE (989) 790-5200 FraXx (989) 790-5566

This declaration is made pursuant to the authority contained at §10 of the Emergency Management
Act and §3 of the Open Meetings Act, which permits a public body to meet by electronic or telephonic
means upon declaration of a local state of emergency or state of disaster if meeting in person would
place at risk the personal health or safety of members of the public or members of the public body.
Per Section 14 of PA 390, as amended, the Saginaw County Office of Emergency Management is
directed to transmit this request to the Emergency Management and Homeland Security Division of
the Michigan State Police.

Respectfully,

(an) S Rat—

Carl Ruth, Board Chairman
Saginaw County Board of Commissioners



RESOLUTION “A” D RAFT

A RESOLUTION DECLARING A LOCAL STATE OF EMERGENCY FOR THE PURPOSE OF
PERMITTING THE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS AND OTHER PUBLIC BODIES
OF SAGINAW COUNTY TO MEET BY ELECTRONIC AND TELEPHONIC MEANS

At a special meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the County of Saginaw, State of Michigan held
at Saginaw, Michigan on the 8 day of April 2021 at 5:00 p.m.

Christopher S. Boyd, Kathleen K. Dwan, Carol E. Ewing, Kyle R. Harris,
Dennis H. Krafft, Gerald D. Little, Sheldon Matthews, Carl E. Ruth,
Jack B. Tany, James G. Theisen, Michael A. Webster

Commissioner offered the following resolution and moved for adoption.
The motion was seconded by Commissioner

PRESENT, Commissioners:
ABSENT, Commissioners:

WHEREAS, as recently as March 19, 2021 the Director of the Michigan Department of Health
and Human Services (MDHHS) made the following findings:

“The novel coronavirus (COVID-19) is a respiratory disease that can result in serious illness or death. It
is caused by a new strain of coronavirus not previously identified in humans and easily spread from
person to person. COVID-19 spreads through close human contact, even from individuals who may be
asymptomatic.”

WHEREAS, on March 10, 2020, MDHHS identified the first two presumptive-positive cases of
COVID-19 in Michigan. As of March 30, 2021, Michigan had seen 665,948confirmed cases and 16,082
confirmed deaths attributable to COVID-19. To date, there have been 527 confirmed deaths
attributable to COVID-19 in Saginaw County.

WHEREAS, as of March 11, 2021 the State of Michigan had a seven-day average of 1,825 daily
cases, nearly 90% higher than the number of cases in mid-February. Since the first cases were
confirmed in Saginaw County, the daily COVID-19 positivity rate in Saginaw County has fluctuated with
a high of 25.6% and a low 2.7%. The 7-day average positivity rate has trended up since early March
2021 and is currently at 10.5%.



WHEREAS, the Director of the MDHHS has concluded that the COVID-19 pandemic continues
to constitute an epidemic in Michigan and that control of the epidemic requires restrictions on public
gatherings, and current CDC, MDHHS, and/or MIOSHA recommendations continue to be for staff to
work remotely when possible, for personnel to wear masks when unable to distance a minimum of six-
feet, for masks to be work at any gathering, and to reduce capacities when the nature of the gathering
or design of the space limits the ability to maintain six-foot distancing between people in attendance.

WHEREAS, it is possible to control the number of attendees at certain daily functions such as
appointments at a county facility or court hearings, by their very nature, it is not possible to control the
number of attendees at a public meeting.

WHEREAS, because of the ever-evolving circumstances related to the spread of COVID-19 and
the inability to control the number of public who may attend an open meeting, Saginaw County and
other public bodies in local jurisdictions may find it necessary to conduct public meetings virtually to
reduce the risk of spread to members of the public, government staff, or members of public bodies. ;

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED, that to accommodate the specific need of protecting the
public, staff, and other attendees at public meetings, where capacity is unknown or unable to be
controlled, the Saginaw County Board of Commissioners is continuing the declaration of a Local State
of Emergency made by the Board Chair on April 1, 2021, to allow the continued use of virtual public
meetings. This declaration is made pursuant to the authority conlained at 8§10 of the Emergency
Management Act and §3 of the Open Meetings Act, which permits a public body to meet by electronic
or telephonic means upon declaration of a local state of emergency or state of disaster if meeting in
person would place at risk the personal health or safety of members of the public or members of the
public body. Per Section 14 of PA 390, as amended, the Saginaw County Office of Emergency
Management is directed to transmit this request to the Emergency Management and Homeland
Security Division of the Michigan State Police.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this declaration of a Local State of Emergency shall continue in effect
until December 31, 2021.

AYES, Commissioners:
NAYS, Commissioners:
ABSTAIN, Commissioners:

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.



CERTIFICATION OF RESOLUTION

STATE OF MICHIGAN )
)ss
COUNTY OF SAGINAW )

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the Board of Commissioners of the County of
Saginaw, State of Michigan, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of
proceedings taken at a special meeting of the Board of Commissioners of said County, held on the 8t
day of April, 2021, the original of which is on file in my office. Public notice of said meeting was given
pursuant to and in compliance with Act No. 267, Public Acts of 1976, as amended.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto affixed my official signature this 8th day of April, 2021.

Vanessa Guerra, County Clerk
County of Saginaw






